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I am
 pleased to subm

it m
y seventh and last A

nnual R
eport for the period 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009.

This report is subm
itted in term

s of section 181 (5) of the C
onstitution of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica, 
1996. 

S
ignificant achievem

ents w
ere m

ade in the year under review
. W

e constantly endeavour to im
prove the 

service w
e provide to protect those adversely affected inter alia  by m

aladm
inistration.

Yours faithfully
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To strengthen constitutional dem

ocracy by conducting investigations  

 
into alleged or suspected im

proper conduct by organs of state,  

reporting and recom
m

ending rem
edial action, and enhancing aw

areness 

and  accessibility to all. 

V
IS

IO
N

M
IS

S
IO

N

To strive for quality and fair service delivery 

by all organs of state.

1. V
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

IS
S

IO
N

i

1. V
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

IS
S

IO
N
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2. C
O

R
E

 V
A

L
U

E
S

Im
p

artiality

W
e ensure im

partiality in our interactions w
ith our stakeholders. W

e perform
 our duties w

ithout 

fear or favour, m
indful of the independence of our office.

C
o

u
rtesy

W
e display courtesy to all and treat people w

ith dignity and respect.

E
m

p
ath

y

W
e are sensitive tow

ards and understand our stakeholders’ needs and feelings.

In
teg

rity

W
e strive to m

aintain high standards of trustw
orthiness, m

indful of our obligation of confidentiality.

A
cco

u
n

tab
ility

W
e alw

ays give an account of our actions and decisions.

S
ervice O

rien
ted

W
e strive to execute our responsibilities tim

eously, fairly and consistently, w
ith due regard given to 

the facts of each m
atter before us.

ii
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It is for m
e an honour and privilege to present to P

arliam
ent the 13th A

nnual R
eport for the O

ffice of the 
P

ublic P
rotector.  A

s the current incum
bent, it w

ill be m
y final A

nnual R
eport encom

passing the 2008/09 
financial year.

M
y term

 of office com
es to an end on the 23rd O

ctober 2009.  In 2002 w
hen I accepted the appointm

ent 
as P

ublic P
rotector of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica, I w
as aw

are that it w
ould be an enorm

ous and daunting 
assignm

ent to serve m
y people.

I saw
 m

yself as a hum
ble servant of the people and therefore could not decline the appointm

ent.  It has been 
a w

inding and arduous road to traverse.  It gives m
e an im

m
ense sense of joy, happiness and satisfaction 

that I have successfully navigated the journey.

W
hen I assum

ed duty on the 1st N
ovem

ber 2002, I joined an office that w
as receptive and functional.  

A
lthough it w

as long after m
y predecessor  left the office and could not form

ally hand over the office to m
e, 

I im
m

ediately discovered that there w
ere still challenges facing the O

ffice of the P
ublic P

rotector (O
P

P
).

The m
ost significant w

ere the follow
ing:

To develop a strategic business plan to guide and direct its activities. 
a. 

To develop m
echanism

s to ensure  com
pliance w

ith the E
m

ploym
ent E

quity A
ct.

b. 
To develop m

echanism
s to ensure com

pliance w
ith the S

kills D
evelopm

ent A
ct.

c. 
To review

 the organisational structure in order to align it w
ith the strategic plan.

d. 
Investigations on the consequences of com

plaints rather than the root causes thereof.  
e. 

E
xpedite the finalisation of high profile and com

plicated m
atters.  

f. 
To develop the P

erform
ance M

anagem
ent S

ystem
s w

hich w
ere not in place w

ithin the O
P

P.
g. 

W
ork space w

as inadequate and not conducive to a good and favourable w
orking environm

ent.
h. 

To develop an O
utreach P

rogram
m

e in order to com
ply w

ith the C
onstitutional im

perative that the 
i. 

O
P

P m
ust be accessible to all citizens and com

m
unities.

A
ppointm

ent of a C
hief E

xecutive O
fficer .

j. 
To develop a com

m
unication strategy to prom

ote w
orking relationship w

ith the m
edia and stakeholders.

k. 
To introduce em

ployee pension schem
e for all O

P
P staff.

l. 

It is indeed gratifying that, as I present this report, all challenges listed w
ere successfully addressed and 

form
 part of this report.

H
ead O

ffice of the O
P

P is now
 located at the P

ublic P
rotector H

ouse, H
illcrest O

ffice P
ark, P

retoria.

W
e pride ourselves w

ith a functional Think Tank C
om

m
ittee that is underpinned by a professional S

ecre-
tariat.  This com

m
ittee serves as a quality assurance m

echanism
 of all reports that are issued on com

pletion 
of investigations.  

3. F
O

R
E

W
O

R
D

iii
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The O
P

P received a clean A
udit R

eport for the past six years and in som
e cases w

ithout a single m
atter 

of em
phasis.  A

lthough w
e have a qualification for the year being reported on, it relates to a narrative and 

valuation of our assets. O
n the w

hole, our financial and procurem
ent system

s are, according to the audit 
report, flaw

less.

This report bears evidence of our achievem
ents, successes and challenges that lie ahead.

M
y sincerest thanks and gratitude go to the O

P
P staff, they are the reason behind all the successes high-

lighted in this report.  M
ay they continue to serve the people of S

outh A
frica w

ith the dedication and devotion 
they have dem

onstrated during m
y term

 of office.

M
y heartfelt thanks and gratitude also go to P

arliam
ent and the O

P
P stakeholders, w

ho throughout m
y term

 
of office as P

ublic P
rotector of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica, have supported and guided m
e.

It w
as an honour to serve the people of S

outh A
frica and to com

plete the tasks assigned as I have!

A
D

V
. M

A
B

E
D

L
E

 L
A

W
R

E
N

C
E

 M
U

S
H

W
A

N
A

F
O

R
E

W
O

R
D

 C
O

N
T

IN
U

E
D

... 

iv
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an R
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C
M

S
 

 
C

ase M
anagem

ent S
ystem

C
S

A
P  

C
ivil S

ociety A
dvocacy P

rogram
m

e

D
O
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D
epartm

ent of Labour

D
P

W
   

D
epartm

ent of P
ublic W

orks

E
E

 
 

E
m

ploym
ent E

quity

E
W

P   
E

m
ployee W

ellness P
rogram

m
e

G
E

P
F  

G
overnm

ent E
m

ployees P
ension Fund

H
R

D
 

 
H

um
an R

esource D
evelopm

ent

H
R

M
IS

 
H

um
an R

esource M
anagem

ent Inform
ation S

ystem

IC
T 

 
Inform

ation and C
om

m
unication Technology

K
M

 
 

K
now

ledge M
anagem

ent 

M
O

P
P  

M
obile O

ffice P
ilot P

roject

N
D

P
P  

N
ational D

irectorate of P
ublic P

rosecutions

N
T 

 
N

ational Treasury

O
H

S
A  

O
ccupational H

ealth and S
afety A

ct

O
P

P  
 

O
ffice of the P

ublic P
rotector

PA
JA 

 
P

rom
otion of A

dm
inistrative Justice A

ct

P
FM

A  
P

ublic Finance M
anagem

ent A
ct

P
M

S
 

 
P

erform
ance M

anagem
ent S

ystem

P
P 

 
P

ublic P
rotector

P
PA 

 
P

ublic P
rotector A

ct

P
S

E
TA 

P
ublic S

ervice S
ector E

ducation and Training A
uthority

S
A

P
S

  
S

outh A
frican P

olice S
ervice

S
D

I  
 

S
ervice D

elivery Indicator

U
K

ZN
   

U
niversity of K

w
aZulu-N

atal

W
S

P 
 

W
orkplace S

kills P
lan

A
O

R
C

A
fi

O
b

d
R

C
t

v
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5.1  
A

ppointm
ent m

echanism
 and pow

ers

The P
ublic P

rotector is appointed by the P
resident on the recom

m
endation of the N

ational A
ssem

bly in 
term

s of C
hapter N

ine of the C
onstitution of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica (A
ct 108 of 1996). The P

ublic 
P

rotector is required to be a S
outh A

frican citizen w
ho is suitably qualified, experienced and has exhibited 

a reputation for honesty and integrity. The C
onstitution also prescribes the pow

ers and duties of the P
ublic 

P
rotector. 

S
ection 181 of the C

onstitution provides that the P
ublic P

rotector shall be subject only to the C
onstitution 

and the law
. H

e/S
he m

ust be im
partial and m

ust exercise his/her pow
ers to perform

 his/her functions w
ithout 

‘fear, favour or prejudice’. N
o person or organ of state m

ay interfere  w
ith the functioning of the P

ublic 
P

rotector.

The P
ublic P

rotector has the pow
er to investigate any conduct in state affairs, or in the public adm

inistration 
in any sphere of governm

ent that is alleged or suspected to be im
proper or to result in any im

propriety or 
prejudice. Follow

ing such an investigation the P
ublic P

rotector has to report on the conduct concerned and 
he/she can take appropriate rem

edial action. A
dditional pow

ers and functions are provided for by the P
ublic 

P
rotector A

ct, 1994. The P
ublic P

rotector m
ay not investigate court decisions. H

e/ she m
ust be accessible 

to all persons and com
m

unities. O
ther organs of state m

ust assist and protect the institution to ensure its 
independence, im

partiality, dignity and effectiveness.

The P
ublic P

rotector is neither an advocate for the com
plainant nor for the public authority concerned. H

e/
she investigates com

plaints and m
akes a finding and w

here necessary recom
m

ends rem
edial action. 

5.2  
A brief history of O

P
P

M
ost dem

ocracies have a national institution sim
ilar to that of the P

ublic P
rotector –although called by 

different nam
es, am

ongst others, O
m

budsm
an, M

ediator, C
om

m
issioner – w

hich is em
pow

ered by legislation 
to assist in establishing and m

aintaining efficient and proper public adm
inistration.

The idea of the institution of the O
m

budsm
an originated in S

w
eden, but did not spread to other countries 

until the 20th century, w
hen it w

as adopted in other S
candinavian countries. In the early 1960s various 

C
om

m
onw

ealth and other, m
ainly E

uropean countries, established such an office. B
y m

id 1983, there w
ere 

approxim
ately 21 countries w

ith O
m

budsm
an offices at provincial, state or regional levels. In particular, 

the transition of m
any countries to dem

ocracy and dem
ocratic structures of governance over the past 

tw
o decades has led to the establishm

ent of m
any m

ore O
m

budsm
an offices during this recent period. 

A
ccordingly, by 1998, the num

ber of O
m

budsm
an offices had m

ore than quadrupled to encom
pass offices 

both in states w
ith w

ell established dem
ocratic system

s and in countries w
hich had younger dem

ocracies, 
such as countries in Latin A

m
erica, C

entral and E
astern E

urope, as w
ell as in parts of A

frica and the A
sia 

P
acific countries.

T
E

C
T

O
R
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W
ith the daw

n of dem
ocracy in S

outh A
frica, an institution sim

ilar to an O
m

budsm
an nam

ely; O
ffice of the 

P
ublic P

rotector w
as established. 

5.3 Jurisdiction 

The P
ublic P

rotector has jurisdiction over all organs of state, any institution in w
hich the state is the m

ajority 
or controlling shareholder and any public entity as defined in section 1 of the P

ublic Finance M
anagem

ent 
A

ct, 1999.

5.4 P
articular pow

ers and duties

D
uring an investigation, the P

ublic P
rotector, m

ay, if he/she considers it appropriate or necessary:
5.4.1 

D
irect any person to appear before him

/her to give evidence or to produce any docum
ent  

  
 

in his/her possession or under his/her control w
hich, in the opinion of the P

ublic P
rotector,  

 
has a bearing on the m

atter being investigated, and m
ay exam

ine such person for that  
 

 
purpose;

5.4.2 
R

equest any person at any level of governm
ent, or perform

ing a public function, or other-
  

 
w

ise subject to his/her jurisdiction, to assist him
/her in the perform

ance of  his/her duties 
  

 
w

ith regard to a specific investigation; and
5.4.3 

M
ake recom

m
endations and take appropriate rem

edial action.

5.5 R
eporting

The P
ublic P

rotector is accountable to the N
ational A

ssem
bly and m

ust report on his/her activities and the 
perform

ance of his/her functions to the A
ssem

bly at least once a year. The P
ublic P

rotector m
ust, how

ever, 
at any tim

e subm
it a report to the N

ational A
ssem

bly on the findings of particular investigations if:
5.5.1 

H
e/she deem

s it necessary;
5.5.2 

H
e/she deem

s it in the public interest;
5.5.3 

It requires the urgent attention of, or an intervention by, the N
ational A

ssem
bly; or

5.5.4 
H

e/she is requested to do so by the C
hairperson of the N

ational C
ouncil of P

rovinces.
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B
orn in 1948, at B

ordeaux 
in Lim

popo Province, M
abedle 

Law
rence M

ushw
ana studied 

through 
the 

U
niversity 

of 
S

outh A
frica 

and 
obtained 

a B
 Iuris degree. H

e also 
attended 

the 
U

niversity 
of 

Zululand w
here he obtained 

tw
o legal diplom

as and later 
an LLB

 degree.

H
e started his legal career in 

1972 as an interpreter of the 
M

agistrate’s court in M
hala, 

B
ushbuckridge and becam

e 
a 

public 
prosecutor 

three 
years later. B

y 1977, he had 
risen to the position of m

ag-
istrate in M

alam
ulele, R

itavi, 
G

iyani and M
hala districts. 

A
t the tim

e of his resigna-
tion in 1986, due to political 
activities, he w

as P
rincipal 

M
agistrate.

Tw
ice detained under the old 

A
partheid S

tate of E
m

ergency R
egulations, he w

as later adm
itted as an attorney of the H

igh C
ourt of S

outh 
A

frica and w
ent on to establish his ow

n law
 firm

 in 1992. H
e w

as subsequently adm
itted as an A

dvocate 
of the S

uprem
e C

ourt of S
outh A

frica.

A
dv M

ushw
ana had a distinguished career as a m

em
ber of P

arliam
ent from

 1994 -2002 and has led a 
num

ber of delegations on international P
arliam

entary tours. H
e also served on several P

arliam
entary 

com
m

ittees, am
ongst others, he co-chaired the joint P

arliam
entary B

udget C
om

m
ittee and the C

ode of 
C

onduct and Ethics C
om

m
ittee. H

e served as C
hairperson of C

om
m

ittees and also on the Audit C
om

m
ission 

and the Judicial S
ervices C

om
m

ission. H
e participated in the drafting of the S

outh A
frican C

onstitution and 
served as D

eputy C
hairperson of the N

ational C
ouncil of P

rovinces. H
e resigned from

 this position to take 
up office as the second P

ublic P
rotector of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica.

H
e is actively involved in com

m
unity service and is renow

ned for his language proficiency. A
s a law

 student, 
he obtained a distinction in P

ractical A
frikaans. H

e is also fluent in E
nglish, X

itsonga, Zulu, N
orthern S

otho, 
isiS

w
ati and X

hosa. In addition, he is conversant in S
outhern S

otho, Tshivenda and S
etsw

ana. 

6. P
R

O
F

IL
E

 O
F

 T
H

E
 P

U
B

L
IC

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
O

R
    A

D
V M

A
B

ED
LE LAW

R
EN

C
E M

U
SH

W
A

N
A

    A
D

V M
A

B
ED

LE LAW
R

EN
C

E M
U

SH
W

A
N

A
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Table 1:  
Statistics of com

plaints brought forw
ard, received, finalised and carried over to the 2009/10 financial year reflected as per  

 
N

ational and Provincial Investigations.

BRANCH
COMPLAINTS 

BROUGHT FORW
ARD 

= 6780

COMPLAINTS 
RECEIVED

= 12435

COMPLAINTS 
FINALISED

= 13220

COMPLAINTS CARRIED 
OVER 2009/10

= 5995

NATIONAL
1042

2130
2713

459

EASTERN CAPE
659

1235
1336

558

FREE STATE
277

650
806

121

GAUTENG
544

1578
1291

831

KW
AZULU-NATAL

1000
1285

1270
1015

LIMPOPO
1010

1643
1623

1030

MPUMALANGA
587

709
685

611

NORTHERN CAPE
399

524
710

213

NORTH W
EST

748
1869

1952
665

W
ESTERN CAPE

514
812

834
492

TOTAL
6780

12435
13220

5995

G
raph 1.1: Statistics of com

plaints brought forw
ard, received, finalised and carried over to the 2009/10 financial year reflected as  

 

 
per N

ational and Provincial Investigations

7.  
STATISTIC

A
L O

VER
VIEW
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G
raph 1.2: Statistics of com

plaints brought forw
ard, received, finalised and carried over to the 2009/10 financial year.

Table 2:   C
om

parison of statistics received and finalised in the 2005/06 until the 2008/09 financial  years

F
INANCIAL YEAR

C
OMPLAINTS RECEIVED

C
OMPLAINTS FINALISED

2005/06
17415

17619

2006/07
12629

13434
2007/08

13195
11280

2008/09
12435

13220

G
raph 2:   C

om
parison of statistics received and finalised in the 2005/06 until the 2008/09 financial  years.
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Table 3:  
Statistics of non-jurisdictional m

atters dealt w
ith and com

plaints referred to other institutions in 2008/09 reflected as per   

 
N

ational and Provincial Investigations.

BRANCH
NON-JURISDICTIONAL

COMPLAINTS REFERRED TO 
OTHER INSTITUTIONS

NATIONAL 
424

176

EASTERN CAPE
71

61

FREE STATE
104

143

GAUTENG
1203

439

KW
AZULU-NATAL

101
11

LIMPOPO
113

70

MPUMALANGA
161

12

NORTHERN CAPE
23

46

NORTH W
EST

676
5

W
ESTERN CAPE

243
18

TOTAL
3119

981

G
raph 3:  Statistics of non-jurisdictional m

atters dealt w
ith and com

plaints referred to other institutions in 2008/09 reflected as per   

 
N

ational and Provincial Investigations
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Table 4:  
Sam

ple of gender breakdow
n of com

plaints taken from
 4 897 of the investigations finalised in 2008/09 financial year.

FEMALE
MALE

1595
3302

G
raph 4:  Sam

ple of gender breakdow
n of com

plaints taken from
 4 897 of the investigations finalised in 2008/09 financial year

Table 5:  
Statistics of cases older than 1 year as at 31 M

arch 2009 reflected as per N
ational and Provincial Investigations.

NATIONAL
17

EASTERN CAPE
23

FREE STATE
0

GAUTENG
103

KW
AZULU-NATAL

39

LIMPOPO
136

MPUMALANGA
65

NORTHERN CAPE
11

NORTH W
EST

71

W
ESTERN CAPE

0

T
O

TA
L

465
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G
raph 5:  Statistics of cases older than 1 year as at 31 M

arch 2009 reflected as per N
ational and Provincial Investigations.

Table 6:  
Sam

ple of average turnaround tim
es in w

hich investigations w
ere finalised in 2008/9 financial year reflected in   

 

 
percentages per period.

P
ERIOD

0-3 Months
5783

4-9 Months
2360

7-12 Months
2926

13-24 Months
1257

25+ Months
229
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G
raph 6:  Sam

ple of average turnaround tim
es in w

hich investigations w
ere finalised in 2008/9 financial year reflected in   

 

 
percentages per period.
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The O
P

P operates w
ith four program

m
es w

hich are as follow
s:

PROGRAMME
SUB PROGRAMME

Programme 1:  
Investigations and  

 
Reporting

1.1 National Investigations
1.2 Provincial Investigations
1.3 Special Investigations      
 

Programme 2: 
Executive  Management

2.1 Public Protector
2.2 Deputy Public Protector
2.3 Chief Executive Officer
2.4 Executive Support
2.5 Communications
2.6 Security and Risk  Management

Programme 3: 
Outreach

3.1 National Outreach
3.2 Provincial Outreach

Programme 4: 
Corporate Support  

 
Services

4.1 Human Resource and Management  
      Development
4.2 Finance and Supply Chain Management
4.3 Knowledge Management
4.4 Information Technology
4.5 Administration Support

8.1 P
ro

g
ram

m
e 1: In

vestig
atio

n
s an

d
 R

ep
o

rtin
g

8.1.1  
O

b
jective o

f th
e p

ro
g

ram
m

e: 
 

 
8.1.1.1 To conduct national, special and provincial investigations that are effective,  

 
 

efficient, inform
ed, tim

eous and of high quality.

8.1.2  
O

u
tco

m
e o

f th
e p

ro
g

ram
m

e: 
 

 
8.1.2.1 Im

proved service delivery to stakeholders.

8.1.3  
S

trateg
ic o

b
jectives fo

r th
e p

ro
g

ram
m

e:

8.  
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 O
N

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
IC

 O
B

JE
C

T
IV

E
S

 F
O

R
  

 
 

 
 

2008/09 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
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  S
UB-P

ROGRAMMES: ALL 
R

ESPONSIBILITIES

8.1.3.1    To conduct investigations in compliance with  the constitutional
                mandate of the OPP.

Control Investigator: National 
1. 

Investigations (8.1.3.4)
Control Investigator: Special 

2. 
Investigations
Executive Manager: Provincial 

3. 
Investigations

8.1.3.2    To conduct systemic investigations.

8.1.3.3    To conduct own-initiative investigations.

8.1.3.4    To develop investigative techniques, processes and training.

8.1.3.5    To reduce the turnaround time of investigations.

8.1.3.6    To ensure effective, relevant reporting in all finalised investigations.

8.1.3.7    To monitor and report on remedial actions recommended to organs 
                of state.

S
ub-P

rogram
m

e: A
LL (N

ational , S
pecial and P

ronvincial Investigations)

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS 

FOR THE YEAR 2008/09

8.1.3.1  To conduct 
                investigations 
                in compliance
                 with the 
                constitutional 
                mandate of the 
                PP

Investigation 
plans for all 
investigations

%
 of investigation 

plans for all 
investigations

Investigation plans 
defined for 100%

 of all  
investigations

Achieved
Investigation plans 
defined for all 
investigations.

Approved 
project plans 
for appropriate 
investigations

%
 of project plans 

for appropriate 
complaints

Project plans 
defined for 100%

 of 
appropriate complaints

Achieved
Project plans defined 
for all appropriate 
complaints.

Jurisdictional 
complaints 
received

%
 of attendance to all 

complaints received
100%

 of attendance to 
all complaints received

Achieved
6780 complaints were 
brought forward to the 
2008/09 financial year, 
12 435 received, 19 215 
attended to
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EAUSURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF TARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/9

Jurisdictions 
complaints 
investigated and  
finalised

%
 of complaints 

investigated and  
finalised

100%
 of 

complaints 
investigated and  
finalised

P
artially  A

ch
ieved

Target not met partly due to
capacity constraints and 
ambiguity of the target. 13 220 
complaints finalised, and 5995 
carried over to the 2009/10 
financial year.

Complaints where 
the Prosecuting 
Authority is notified 
due to facts disclosing
 the commission of 
an offence.

%
 of complaints 

finalised by 
notification to 
the Prosecuting 
Authority

100%
 of 

complaints 
finalised by 
notification to 
the Prosecuting 
Authority

A
ch

ieved
2 complaints were finalised 
by notification to the National 
Prosecuting Authority

Complaints 
disposed of by 
way of referral to 
appropriate public 
bodies

%
 of complaints 

disposed of by 
way of referral 
to appropriate 
public bodies 

100%
 of 

complaints 
disposed of by 
way of referral 
to appropriate 
public bodies

A
ch

ieved
981 complaints were disposed of 
by way of referral to appropriate 
public bodies

Complaints not 
investigated 
because:

Remedies not 
• 

exhausted or 
Reported after 

• 
2 years and no 
special circum-
stances exist

%
 of complaints 

disposed of as 
no jurisdiction

100%
 of 

complaints 
disposed of as 
no jurisdiction

A
ch

ieved
3119 complaints were disposed 
of as no jurisdiction

Jurisdictional 
complaints finalised 
by ADR (Alternative 
Dispute Resolution) 

%
 of complaints 

finalised by ADR
100%

 of 
complaints 
finalised by ADR

A
ch

ieved 
All finalised complaints have 
closing reports. All 13 220 
complaints  were finalised by 
way of closing report where a 
matter has been negotiated and 
settled.

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   12
2009/08/31   02:39:31 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

13

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09
8.1.3.2 To conduct 
              systemic 
              investigations

Systemic 
investigation Reports

Number of 
systemic 
investigations 
reports 
submitted 

Submission 
of Report on 
the number 
of systemic 
investigations

 A
ch

ieved
16 systemic investigations 
conducted, 4 finalised, two 
finalised by way of closing 
report and 10 still under 
investigation and will be 
finalised in the 2009/10 
financial year. All systemic 
investigations have reports.

8.1.3.3 To conduct own-
               initiative 
               investigations

Own-initiative 
investigations Report

Number of 
own initiative 
investigations  
finalised per 
annum

Minimum of 1 
own initiative 
investigation 
finalised per 
province

Minimum of 1 
own initiative 
investigation 
finalised per 
Investigative Unit

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to high staff 
turnover of investigative staff 
in Provincial offices, capacity 
constraints and high workload.  
The target was 9, however, 5 
own initiative investigations 
were conducted 2 finalised, 3 
still under investigation.  
Achieved
11 own initiative investigations 
conducted 3 finalised by a 
closing report, 4 signed by 
the Public Protector and 4 still 
under investigations and will 
be finalised in the 2009/10 
financial year.

8.1.3.4  To develop 
               investigative 
               techniques, 
               processes and 
               training
 

Investigators trained 
on process manual

%
 of 

investigators 
trained

100%
 of 

investigators 
trained.

A
ch

ieved
The investigative techniques 
process manual has been 
developed and all the 
investigators trained
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09
8.1.3.5  To reduce the 
               turnaround 
               time of 
               complaints

Regular statistical 
report on relevant 
complaints
Comparative 
statistical report on 
complaints older 
than one year to be 
included in quarterly 
report

%
  compliance

Reduced 
turnaround 
time for 
finalisation of 
complaints

100%
 compliance

Finalise all 
complaints within 
one year

A
ch

ieved
Statistical report compiled on a 
monthly basis

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
complexity of some of the 
complaints, high workload 
and high staff turnover.  6780 
complaints were brought 
forward to the 2008/09 financial 
year, 12 435 received, 19 
215 attended to and only 465 
complaints were older than 1 
year as at 31 March 2009. 

8.1.3.6 To ensure 
              effective, relevant 
              reporting on all 
              finalised 
              investigations

Report for every 
finalised investigation

%
 of reports 

produced
100%

 of reporting 
on all finalised 
investigations

A
ch

ieved
Reports (formal or closing) 
were compiled for all finalised 
investigations

8.1.3.7 To monitor and 
               report on 
               remedial  action
               recommended to  
               organs of State.

Remedial action 
Monitoring Report

Quarterly 
Reporting

100%
 compliance

A
ch

ieved
100%

 of all complaints where 
recommendations were made 
were accepted and in the 
process of being implemented

8.2 
P

ro
g

ram
m

e 2:  E
xecu

tive M
an

ag
em

en
t

8.2.1 
O

bjective of the program
m

e: 
  

 
8.2.1.1 To provide strategic direction and im

prove internal and external com
m

unication to   
 

 
inculcate a com

m
on vision and im

proved profile for the O
P

P.

8.2.2 
O

utcom
e of the program

m
e: 

  
 

8.2.2.1 Im
proved service delivery to stakeholders.

  
 

8.2.2.2 S
m

ooth, tim
eous flow

 of accurate inform
ation to all O

P
P staff.

  
 

8.2.2.3 Increased aw
areness and know

ledge of the constitutional m
andate of the O

P
P
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8.2.3 S
trategic objectives for the program

m
e:

S
UB-P

ROGRAMMES: CEO
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.2.3.1  Manage the definition and review of organisational  strategic performance 
               assessment and reporting.

8.2.3.2   To ensure the consolidation and continuous update of the policies into an 
                integrated Staff Corporate Manual.

8.2.3.3   To ensure the improvement of efficiency and effectiveness of the investigation
                process

8.2.3.4   Definition of business processes linked to the organisational structure

8.2.3.5   Ensure that staff strategic involvement process is outlined

8.2.3.6   Ensure the development of strategy on skills diversification for investigators

8.2.3.7   Consolidate Organisational Risk Management Plan

8.2.3.8  Facilitate and monitor change management and transformation processes

8.2.3.9    Ensure attainment of unqualified audit reports

8.2.3.10  Quality Internal  Audit Reports

CEO

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: E
XECUTIVE S

UPPORT
R

ESPONSIBILITY 

8.2.4.1    To conduct file inspections. 
8.2.4.2    To implement and review Think Tank committee  procedures and processes
8.2.4.3    Enhance collaboration with stakeholders.
8.2.4.4    To co-ordinate the OPP Management, EXCO and Think Tank meetings
8.2.4.5    Establish, migrate and launch AORC.
8.2.4.6    Development of the Exchange Programme Strategy.
8.2.4.7    Implement and monitor the Service Delivery Charter.

Senior Manager :
 Executive Support

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: S
ECURITY AND R

ISK M
ANAGEMENT 
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8.2.5.1    To implement and monitor processes for the protection of OPP information and
                   assets, including staff
8.2.5.2    Monitor the implementation of the Risk Management Plan

Security Manager

 S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: M
ARKETING AND C

OMMUNICATIONS
R

ESPONSIBILITY 
8.2.6.1    Improve communication and routing of information to stakeholders
8.2.6.2    Effective internal communication
8.2.6.3    Manage media relations
8.2.6.4   To enhance corporate brand of the OPP
8.2.6.5    Establish events co-ordination function and manage events, including the annual 
                   theme conference
8.2.6.6    Ensure staff of OPP adhere to protocol procedures
8.2.6.7   Effective co-ordination of International Visits

Senior Manager: 
Communications

Sub-Program
m

e: C
EO

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.3.1   Manage the 
                definition and 
                review of 
                Organisational 
                Strategic 
                Performance 
                 Assessment 
                and 
                Reporting.

Organisational Strategy 
Performance and
Statistical Reports

Frequency 
of Strategy 
Performance 
meetings and 
Statistical reports

Quarterly 
Strategy 
performance 
meetings and 
Statistical 
reporting 

A
ch

ieved
Quarterly strategic 
performance meetings held 
and quarterly statistical 
reports submitted.

Number of 
meetings and 
reports

Annual strategy 
review meeting 
and reporting

A
ch

ieved
Annual strategy review 
meeting held.

Number of 
meetings and 
reports

Annual reporting 
to Parliament

A
ch

ieved
Annual report tabled in 
Parliament as prescribed.

Strategic Performance 
Assessment Framework 
and Templates

%
 completion 

of assessment 
framework

Approved 
and Finalised 
Assessment 
Framework and 
Templates.

A
ch

ieved
Assessment framework and 
templates approved and 
implemented. 

16
P

ub
lic P

ro
tecto

r S
o

uth A
frica A

nnual R
ep

o
rt  1 A

p
ril 2008 - 31 M

arch 2009
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.3.2  To ensure the 
               consolidation 
               and 
               continuously 
               update of the 
               policies into 
               an integrated 
               Staff 
               Corporate 
               Manual.

Integrated Corporate 
Staff Manual

%
 Completion of 

Staff Manual
Review and 
Update

A
ch

ieved
Integrated Corporate Staff 
Manual reviewed, updated 
and implemented.

Policy Formulation 
Review Procedure

%
 Completion of 

Procedure
Review and 
Update

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to 
budgetary constraints which 
resulted in re-negotiating 
terms of reference and 
deliverables with the 
service provider.  However, 
policy formulation review 
procedure drafted and 
tabled at EXCO for approval 
and will be finalised in 
2009/10 financial year. 
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.3.3   To ensure the 
                improvement 
                of efficiency 
                and 
                effectiveness 
                of the 
                Investigation 
                Process

Project Charter 
template

Complete and 
approved Project 
Charter
Improved 
Statistical 
Reporting

100%
 completion 

of Project Charter
A

ch
ieved

Project Charter template 
approved and has been 
implemented 
Monthly and quarterly 
statistics analysed and 
verified.

Indices defined for 
management of 
investigations and 
Complaints against 
institutions

Approval of Index 
variables

100%
 Utilisation 

of Indices
A

ch
ieved

Indices for management of 
investigations and complaints 
against top institutions 
defined.

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Function

Quality of Terms 
of Reference and 
Monitoring and 
Evaluation report

Monitoring and 
Evaluation report 
as part of Annual 
Report 

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
N.B The target, measure and 
output were not aligned and a 
decision was taken by EXCO 
to remove the objective.

8.2.3.4  Definition of 
               Business 
               Processes 
               linked to the 
               organisational 
               structure

Business Process 
Report and 
Organisational Structure

%
 completion of 

Organisational 
Structure

Approved Re-
Alignment of 
Business Process 
and Approved 
Organisational 
Structure. 

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to 
the delay caused by the 
consultative processes with 
relevant stakeholders e.g.  
Minister of Finance and 
Department of Public Service 
and Administration.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.3.5    Ensure that 
                 Staff 
                 strategic 
                 involvement 
                 process is  
                 outlined

Adopted Policy 
Document and Policy 
Process Flow Chart

%
 completion of 

policy document 
and process flow 
chart

100%
 completion 

of policy 
document and 
process flow chart

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to 
capacity constraints. Policy 
document and process 
flow chart not achieved, 
however questionnaire on 
the involvement of staff on 
the strategic process was 
outlined. 

8.2.3.6    Ensure the 
                 Development 
                 of strategy 
                 on skills 
                 diversification
                 for all OPP 
                 staff 

Adopted Policy on skills 
diversification for all 
OPP staff

%
 completion of 

policy on skills 
diversification for 
all OPP staff

100%
 completion 

of policy on skills 
diversification for 
all OPP staff

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints. Policy 
on skills diversification for 
all OPP staff not achieved 
as it was dependent on 
research.  The objective 
will be incorporated in the 
intergrated Human Resource 
Manual

8.2.3.7   Consolidate 
                Organisational 
                Risk 
                Management 
                Plan

Annual Plan
%

 completion 
of Annual Risk 
management plan

100%
 completion 

of Annual Risk 
Management 
Plan

A
ch

ieved
The Annual Risk 
Management Plan has been 
implemented and monitored.

8.2.3.8    Facilitate and 
                 monitor 
                 Change 
                 Management 
                 and  
               Transformation 
                processes

Change Management 
Strategy & Policy 
Developed

%
 Development & 

implementation
100%

 
development 
and approval 
of change 
management  
Policy & Strategy

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Change Management 
Strategy and Policy 
development not achieved 
and has been deferred to the 
2009/10 financial year due to 
budgetary constraints 
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.3.9    Ensure 
                 attainment of 
                 unqualified 
                 audit reports

Unqualified audit 
reports

%
 compliance

100%
 compliance

A
ch

ieved
Unqualified audit report 
obtained in the 2007/08 
financial year.

8.2.3.10  Quality 
                 Internal Audit 
                 Reports

%
 Implementation of 

recommendations
100%

 
Implementation of 
recommendations

100%
 

Implementation of 
recommendations

A
ch

ieved
Internal Audit 
recommendations have been 
implemented.

Sub – Program
m

e: EXEC
U

TIVE SU
PPO

R
T

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.4.1 To conduct 
                file 
                inspections

File inspection report
Number of file 
inspection

1 per national 
and provincial 
office

A
ch

ieved
File inspections conducted 
at national and provincial 
offices.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.4.2 To implement 
                and review 
                Think Tank 
                Committee 
                procedures 
                and 
                processes

Implemented Think 
Tank Operational 
Process Manual

Implementation of 
Think Operational 
Process Manual

Implement, 
Review and 
Improve

A
ch

ieved
Think Tank Operational 
Process Manual has been 
reviewed, improved and 
implemented.

Think Tank reports 
submitted

Number of 
certified reports 
submitted to Think 
Tank 

On average,        
1 certified report 
per investigator 
per year

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to high 
turnover of investigative 
staff and training of newly 
appointed investigators.  At 
the beginning of 2008/09 
financial year 96 investigator 
posts were filled, nine 
resigned, 88 remained and 
only 40 certified reports were 
signed and issued by the 
Public Protector.

8.2.4.3 Enhance  
             collaboration 
             with 
             stakeholders
  

Stakeholders 
Collaboration Framework 
in relation to Chapter 9 
and related institutions

%
 Completion of 

Stakeholders Plan
100%

 Completion 
of Stakeholders 
Plan

A
ch

ieved
Stakeholders plan drafted 
and adopted.  (Collaboration 
Framework). 

OPP Participation
Minutes of OPP 
Participation 
Chapter 9 and 
related structures 
forums

Record minutes 
for all necessary 
participations

A
ch

ieved
Recording of minutes for all 
OPP Chapter 9 participation 
at necessary meetings in 
place.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.4.4 To co-
            ordinate the
            OPP 
            management 
             EXCO and 
            Think Tank 
            meetings

Approved Structure of 
meetings

Number of 
meetings in terms 
of the structure

Meetings as 
per Meetings 
structure

A
ch

ieved
5 Management and 12 
Executive committee 
meetings held.

8.2.4.5  Establish, 
                 migrate and 
                 launch  
                 AORC

AORC established, 
migrated and launched

%
 of AORC 

established and 
migrated

100%
 functional

A
ch

ieved
The AORC has been 
established, migrated and is 
functional but not launched 
due to budgetary constraints.

8.2.4.6 Development 
               of the 
               Exchange 
               Programme 
               Strategy

Exchange Programme 
Strategy

Development and 
implementation

100%
 

implementation of 
strategy

 A
ch

ieved
The Exchange Programme 
Strategy has been adopted 
and implemented. 

8.2.4.7 To 
                 implement 
                 and monitor 
                 the Service 
                 Delivery 
                 Charter.

Service Delivery Charter
Report on 
implementation 
(Quarterly and 
annual Report)

Approval of 
Charter

A
ch

ieved
The Service Delivery Charter 
has been approved and has 
been implemented.
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Sub – Program
m

e: Security and R
isk M

anagem
ent

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUTS
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.5.1 To establish
               and 
               implement 
               processes 
               for the 
               protection of 
               OPP 
               information 
               and assets, 
               including 
               staff

Security management 
Policy

%
 development 

and 
implementation

100%
 

Implementation of 
policies 

A
ch

ieved
Security Management policy 
has been implemented

Security management 
Strategy 

%
 development 

and 
implementation

100%
 

development of  
strategy

A
ch

ieved
The Security Management 
Strategy has been developed 
and implemented

Security procedure 
manual

%
 development 

and 
implementation

100%
 

development of 
Procedure manual 

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to 
budgetary constraints.  
However the Security 
Procedure Manual has been 
drafted and will be finalised 
in the 2009/10 financial year.

8.2.5.2 Develop and
                implement 
                Risk 
                Management 
                Strategy

Risk Management 
Strategy

%
 development of 

the Strategy
100 %

 
development of 
the Strategy

A
ch

ieved
The Risk Management 
Strategy has been developed

Compliance report on 
the implementation 
of Risk Management 
Strategy

%
 implementation 

of Risk 
Management 
Strategy

100%
 

implementation of 
Risk Management 
Strategy

A
ch

ieved
The Risk Management 
Strategy has been 
implemented
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Sub – Program
m

e: C
om

m
unications

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUTS
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.6.1 Manage 
               communication 
                and routing of 
               information to 
               stakeholders
 

Communication 
strategy that 
includes external 
and internal 
communications

Submission 
of approved 
Communication 
strategy that includes 
external and internal 
communications to PP

Implementation 
and monitoring of 
Communication 
strategy

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints.  
However, the 
Communication Strategy 
approved in 2007/08 
financial year was 
implemented and will be 
reviewed in the 2009/10 
financial year. 

External Newsletter 
to increase 
awareness of OPP 
and highlighting 
success stories

Number of newsletters 
printed and 
distributed according 
to the approved 
Communications Plan

Print and distribute 
the approved 
number of external 
newsletters

A
ch

ieved
Two external newsletters 
printed and distributed.

Information 
brochures, posters, 
display stands  and 
banners

Production of 
brochures in different 
languages

Print and distribute 
the approved 
number of material

A
ch

ieved
Information brochures, 
posters, display stands and 
banners have been printed 
and distributed.

Editing & 
Translation

W
hen required

100%
 compliance 

with the 
requirements

A
ch

ieved
Editing and translation done 
as and when required.
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

OUTPUT
MEASURE

2008/09 TARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.6.1. Manage 
              communication 
              and routing of 
              information to 
              stakeholders
 

Communication 
strategy that 
includes external 
and internal 
communications

Submission 
of approved 
Communication 
strategy that includes 
external and internal 
communications to PP

Implementation 
and monitoring of 
Communication 
strategy

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints.  
However, the 
Communication Strategy 
approved in 2007/08 
financial year was 
implemented and will be 
reviewed in the 2009/10 
financial year. 

External Newsletter 
to increase 
awareness of OPP 
and highlighting 
success stories

Number of newsletters 
printed and 
distributed according 
to the approved 
Communications Plan

Print and distribute 
the approved 
number of external 
newsletters

A
ch

ieved
Two external newsletters 
printed and distributed.

Information 
brochures, posters, 
display stands  and 
banners

Production of 
brochures in different 
languages

Print and distribute 
the approved 
number of material

A
ch

ieved
Information brochures, 
posters, display stands and 
banners have been printed 
and distributed.

Editing & 
Translation

W
hen required

100%
 compliance 

with the 
requirements

A
ch

ieved
Editing and translation done 
as and when required.

One on one Radio 
Interviews

Use electronic media 
as a lobby tool to 
enhance positive 
publicity.  Current 
affairs and talk shows 
will be targeted

One on one 
interviews as 
initiated and 
approved

A
ch

ieved
One on one interviews 
conducted.

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   25
2009/08/31   02:39:48 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

26

STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

OUTPUT
MEASURE

2008/09 TARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

PP‘s Road Show
Number of 

4. 
visits to tar-
geted editors 
and senior 
journalists
Increased 

5. 
awareness 
and utilisa-
tion of OPP 
Services

Visits as approved
A

ch
ieved

Approved PP’s Road Shows 
conducted.

Speeches and 
speakers / briefing 
notes 

W
hen required

100 %
 compliance 

with the received 
request for 
speeches / briefing 
notes from the PP

A
ch

ieved
Speeches and briefing notes 
from the PP compiled as 
requested.

W
ebsite content 

management 
Update within 48 
hours after approval of 
information

100%
 compliance 

with approved 
information for 
updating the 
website

A
ch

ieved
Approved information 
for updating the website 
complied with.

8.2.6.2 Ensure 
                effective  
                internal 
               communication
 

Electronic 
Newsletter

Produce and issue 
monthly newsletter

Produce and issue 
monthly newsletter

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints.  One 
electronic newsletter 
produced. 

Intranet
Relevant content:

Organisational 
• 

info
E-newsletter

• 
Classified ads

• 

Introduce the 
Intranet by April 
2008

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Intranet not introduced in 
the financial year as it was 
dependent on the provision 
of share point and budgetary 
constraints.
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STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

OUTPUT
MEASURE

2008/09 TARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

  8.2.6.3  Manage 
                   media 
                   relations

Media relations 
programme, 
including:  
Media Briefings, 
Media visits, 
Opinion Pieces, 
Editorials
Advertorials, etc

Increase in the 
publication of OPP 
positive news stories
Developed Media 
Relations Programme

Implement the 
Plan

 A
ch

ieved
The approved 
Communication Strategy 
included the implementation 
plan.

Media Monitoring 
Report

Frequency of 
Monitoring

Daily media 
• 

clippings
W

eekly media 
• 

summaries
Monthly 

• 
Media Impact 
Analyses

A
ch

ieved
Report on the daily 

• 
media clippings, weekly 
media summaries 
circulated to all relevant 
OPP staff on a monthly 
basis.

8.2.6.4 To enhance 
                the Corporate 
                brand of the 
                OPP

Corporate Branding 
Enhancement 
Strategy and Plan

Approval of Corporate 
Brand Enhancement 
Strategy and Plan

Implementation 
of the enhanced 
Corporate Brand 
Strategy and Plan
Compliance with 
approved Strategy 
and Plan

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
budgetary constraints 
however, guidelines on 
corporate branding have 
been approved and 
implemented. 

8.2.6.5 Establish 
               Events Co-
               ordinations 
               function and 
               manage 
               events, 
               including the 
               Annual Theme 
               conference

Events 
Management 
Strategy and Plan 

Accurate Management 
of OPP Events

Appointment 
of Events Co-
coordinator
Events Calendar
Development 
Events 
Management 
Strategy and Plan

A
ch

ieved
-Events Co-ordinator 

• 
appointed
Achieved

• 
-Calendar for all OPP 

• 
events Management 
Strategy and plan 
developed.
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STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVE

OUTPUT
MEASURE

2008/09 TARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.2.6.6  Effective co- 
                 ordination of 
                 International 
                 Visits

Management of 
international visits 
through the Host 
Plan

Implement Host Plan
100%

 success 
(compliance with 
the Host Plan)

A
ch

ieved
The host plan has been 
implemented.

8.2.6.7  Ensure staff 
                 of OPP 
                 adhere to 
                 Protocol 
                 procedures

Protocol 
Procedures / 
Requirements

Compliance to 
protocol procedures 
and requirements

100%
 compliance 

to procedures
A

ch
ieved

Protocol procedures have 
been implemented and 
complied with.

 8.3    P
ro

g
ram

m
e 3: O

u
treach

 P
ro

g
ram

m
e

8.3.1 
O

bjective of the program
m

e: 
  

 
8.3.1.1 To em

pow
er the people through know

ledge, and ensure accessibility of the  
 

 
 

services of the O
P

P.

8.3..2 
O

utcom
e of the program

m
e: 

  
 

8.3.2.1 Im
proved stakeholder perception, co-operation and accessibility of O

P
P services.

8.3.3 
S

trategic objectives for the program
m

e:

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: O
UTREACH P

ROGRAMME
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.3.3.1   Increase accessibility to OPP services
8.3.3.2   Increase public awareness
8.3.3.3   Manage Outreach Activities at National Office
8.3.3.4   Liaise with Civil Society Organisations to facilitate access 
8.3.3.5   Develop Training and Process Manuals  on Outreach
8.3.3.6   Assess the impact of the Outreach Programme 

• Executive Manager
• Outreach
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Program
m

e: O
utreach Program

m
e

S
TRATEGIC 

O
BJECTIVE

O
UTPUT

M
EASURE

2008/9 T
ARGET

A
CHIEVEMENT OF T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.3.3.1 Increase
          accessibility 
          to OPP 
          services

Reviewed 
Outreach strategy

%
  Outreach strategy 

reviewed  and 
implemented

100%
  

implementation 
of the reviewed 
Outreach Strategy

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to capacity 
constraints however, the adopted 
Outreach Strategy is being 
implemented. 

Clinics conducted
Clinics conducted per 
month

6 clinics per 
province 
2 clinics per regional 
office
4 clinics per national 
office

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to budgetary 
constraints and a decision 
was taken by EXCO to reduce 
the number of clinics to be 
conducted.  Out of the 852 
planned 763 clinics were 
conducted.

Review report 
outlining 
sustainability and 
relevance of the 
clinics and input to 
reviewed strategy

Number of clinics 
reviewed per annum

Six clinics per 
province

A
ch

ieved
Six clinics per province were 
reviewed and report compiled.

Mobile Office 
of the Public 
Protector (MOPP) 
established

Number of areas 
covered

Roll out MOPP in 
the 3 additional 
provinces

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to budgetary 
constraints.

MOPP Pilot 
Project Report 

Frequency of Report
Annually before 
Sept 2008

A
ch

ieved
Monthly report on MOPP Pilot 
project compiled.
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S
TRATEGIC 

O
BJECTIVE

O
UTPUT

M
EASURE

2008/9 T
ARGET

A
CHIEVEMENT OF T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.3.3..2   Increase 
            Public 
            Awareness

Information 
sessions and 
Advocacy 
workshops with 
stakeholders

Number of Information 
Sessions and  
Advocacy W

orkshops 
per annum

2 Advocacy 
workshops and
six information 
sessions per 
province

A
ch

ieved
45 Advocacy workshops and
193 Information sessions per 

province conducted.

Road shows on 
theme conducted

Number of road 
shows conducted per 
annum

2 road shows per 
province

A
ch

ieved
22 road shows were conducted 
throughout the country.

Coordination of 
national Outreach 
events

Number of events co- 
ordinated

1 event per province
A

ch
ieved

6 events co-ordinated.

8.3.3.3 Manage 
              Outreach 
              Activities
              at 
              National 
              Office

National Office 
W

ork plans and 
Implementation

%
 completion of 

National Office 
W

ork plans and 
Implementation 
according to Plan

100%
 completion 

of National Office 
W

ork plans and 
Implementation 
according to Plan

A
ch

ieved
National office work plans 
implemented according to plan.

8.3.3.4 Liaise 
              with Civil 
              Society 
              Organi-
               sations to 
              facilitate 
              access

MOU’s and 
Forums developed

Number of MOU’s and 
Forums established

One Forum per 
Province

A
ch

ieved
One forum per province 
developed.

Database of CSOs
%

 of completion of 
database

1 complete and 
accurate database

A
ch

ieved
Accurate database of CSO’s 
completed.
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S
TRATEGIC 

O
BJECTIVE

O
UTPUT

M
EASURE

2008/9 T
ARGET

A
CHIEVEMENT OF T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.3.3.5   Develop 
        Training and 
        Process 
        Manuals on 
        Outreach

Outreach 
Facilitator
Training manual 

%
 of completion of 

manual
100%

 completion of 
manual

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to budgetary 
constraints however, draft 
Outreach facilitator training 
manual submitted to EXCO for 
approval.

Outreach 
Facilitators trained

Number of training 
session per annum

1 training session 
N

o
t A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to capacity 
and budgetary constraints.   
Training deferred to the 2009/10 
financial year. 

Guidelines on 
Outreach events 
and activities

%
 of completion of 

guidelines
100%

 completion
P

artially A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to capacity 
constraints however, Guidelines 
on Outreach Events and Activities 
submitted to EXCO for approval. 

Cooperation 
manual

%
 of completion of 

manual
100%

 completion
P

artially A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to capacity 
constraints. The Co-operation 
Manual is the codification of 
collaboration of the Outreach 
branch with other branches.  
Although the Co-operation 
Manual was not adopted, 
collaboration with other branches 
took place.
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8.4 
P

ro
g

ram
m

e 4: C
o

rp
o

rate S
u

p
p

o
rt S

ervices 
 

8.4.1 
O

bjective of the program
m

e: 
 

 
8.4.1.1 To achieve and sustain an efficient and effective corporate support service that is  

 
 

 
com

pliant  w
ith legislation.

 
8.4.2 

O
utcom

e of the program
m

e: 
 

 
8.4.2.1 Im

proved service delivery.

 
8.4.3 

S
trategic objectives for the program

m
e:

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: H
UMAN R

ESOURCES M
ANAGEMENT AND D

EVELOPMENT
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.4.3.1   Ensure attraction, maintenance and retention of high quality staff for OPP.
8.4.3.2   Continuous monitoring and evaluation of OPP Personnel Performance 
                Management and Development System (PPMDS) to ensure an improved and 
                sustained PPMDS).
8.4.3.3  Training and development of staff according to OPP needs 
8.4.3.4   Implementation and monitoring of EW

P for the OPP.
8.4.3.5   Facilitate and monitor Employment equity and diversity 
8.4.3.6   Define the requirements for Human Resources Management Information 
              System  (HRMIS)
8.4.3.7   To improve, monitor and advise on Labour Relations.

Human Resources Manager

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: F
INANCE AND S

UPPLY C
HAIN M

ANAGEMENT
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.4.4.1   To develop a costing model for investigations 
8.4.4.2   Improve OPP financial management and reporting
8.4.4.3   Ensure compliance of OPP with financial prescripts
8.4.4.4   Develop and implement  cost-effective procurement processes

Accounting Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Supply Chain Manager

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: A
DMINISTRATION S

UPPORT
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.4.5.1 To enable the optimum application and utilisation of resources
8.4.5.2 To promote the effective and efficient functioning of the registry
8.4.5.3 To establish and maintain suitable office accommodation

Accounting Officer
Administration and facilitation 
Manager

S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: K
NOW

LEDGE M
ANAGEMENT

R
ESPONSIBILITY

8.4.6.1 Create Knowledge Management Institution of the OPP
Manager: Knowledge              
Management
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S
UB-P

ROGRAMME: INFORMATION AND C
OMMUNICATIONS T

ECHNOLOGY
R

ESPONSIBILITY

8.4.7.1      Implement Master Systems Plan (MSP).
8.4.7.2      Develop Master Systems Plan (MSP).

ICT Manager

Sub – Program
m

e: H
um

an R
esources M

anagem
ent A

nd D
evelopm

ent

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF 
T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.4.2.1 Ensure Attraction, 
              maintenance and 
              retention of high 
              quality staff for OPP.

Sourcing and 
Retention 
Strategy finalised/ 
approved and 
Implemented

%
 of Strategy 

implemented
(Approved 
Strategy)

50%
 of Strategy 

implemented according 
to approved strategy.

A
ch

ieved
Sourcing and 
Retention Strategy 
has been approved 
implemented.

Approved HR 
Policy Staff 
Manual

%
 of HR Policy 

Manual completed
HR Policy Manual 
completed and 
implemented

A
ch

ieved
HR Policy Manual 
and has been 
completed and 
implemented.

Reward Incentive 
Scheme 
developed

%
 of Incentive 

Scheme 
Developed

Approved Reward 
Incentive Scheme 
Developed

A
ch

ieved
Reward Incentive 
Icheme has been 
developed and 
approved.

Career 
Progression 
Framework 
developed

%
 of Framework 

Developed
Approved Career 
Progression 
Framework Developed.

A
ch

ieved
Career Progression 
Framework has 
been developed and 
approved.

Organisational 
Design and Job 
Evaluation Report

%
 Report 

approved and 
implemented

50%
 implementation of 

approved Report
A

ch
ieved

Organisational 
Design and Job 
Evaluation Report 
has been approved 
and implemented.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF 
T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

  8.4.3.2   Administration, 
                  co-ordination and 
                  continuous 
                  monitoring and 
                  evaluation of 
                  OPP PPMDS to 
                  ensure an improved 
                  and sustained 
                  PPMDS

An improved and 
sustained OPP
Performance 
management 
system.

Moderation 
Committee 
and HR Report 
detailing issues 
that need to be 
dealt with in order 
to improve system

Review and Improve
A

ch
ieved

PPMDS has been 
reviewed, improved 
and has been 
implemented.

All OPP Staff 
Trained on 
Revised PPMDS

%
 of OPP staff 

trained
Review, update and 
training of all OPP staff

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met 
due to budgetary 
constraints and 
training deferred to 
the 2009/10 financial 
year. 

8.4.3.3  Training and 
               development of staff 
               according to OPP 
               needs

Human 
• 

Resources 
Development 
(HRD) Stra-
tegic Plan
Skills Audit 

• 
Report
W

orkplace 
• 

Skills Plan
Training Plan

• 

%
 HRD 

• 
Strategic Plan 
development 
and imple-
mentation
Submission 

• 
of W

SP by 30 
June 2008
%

 Training 
• 

conducted per 
training plan

Implementation of 
• 

the programmes 
according to the 
plan contained in 
the HRD Strategy
Submission of 

• 
W

SP by 30 June 
2008
100%

 training 
• 

according to the 
Training Plan 

A
ch

ieved
Programmes 
contained in the 
HRD Strategy have 
been implemented.
Achieved
W

SP was submitted 
to Department of 
Labour by 30 June 
2008
N

o
t A

ch
ieved

Target not met 
due to budgetary 
constraints.   
Training deferred 
to 2009/10 financial 
year. 
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF 
T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.4.3.4  Implementation and 
               monitoring of EW

P for 
               the OPP

EW
P and 

• 
HIV AIDS 
policies de-
veloped and 
approved
EW

P and 
• 

HIV AIDS 
programme 
implemented

%
 of policies 

• 
developed
%

 of 
• 

programme 
implemented

100%
 of EW

P 
• 

and HIV policies 
implemented
New EW

P Service 
• 

Provider appointed

A
ch

ieved
EW

P and HIV / AIDS 
policies have been 
implemented.
Achieved
The new EW

P 
Service Provider has 
been appointed.

Disease 
management 
programme 
developed and 
approved 

%
 of Disease 

Management 
Programme 
developed

100%
 implementation 

according to Disease 
Management 
programme plan

A
ch

ieved
Disease 
Management 
Programme Plan has 
been implemented.

8.4.3.5  Facilitate and monitor 
               employment equity 
               and diversity 

Approved 
Employment 
Equity Plan

%
 of Employment 

Equity plan 
implemented

100%
 of Employment 

Equity Plan 
Implemented

A
ch

ieved
Employment Equity 
Plan has been 
implemented.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF 
T

ARGETS FOR THE 
YEAR 2008/09

8.4.3.6  Define the 
               requirements for
               Human Resources 
               Management 
               Information System 
               (HRMIS)

Specifications for 
improved HRMIS 
developed 
(Employee 
Self Service, 
automated 
workflow, Crystal 
report W

riter, 
New System)

%
 of 

Specifications 
developed

100%
 of Specifications 

developed
A

ch
ieved

Specifications for 
HRMIS have been 
developed.

8.4.3.7   To improve, monitor 
and advise 
on Labour 
Relations

Approved 
Industrial 
Relations Policy

Managers and 
staff Trained on 
Labour Relations 
policies

%
 Industrial 

Relations Policy 
implemented

%
 of employees 

trained on Labour 
Relations policies

100%
 implementation 

according to Plan

100%
 of employees 

trained

A
ch

ieved
Industrial Relations 
policy has been 
implemented.
Not Achieved
Target not met 
due to budgetary 
constraints.  Labour 
Relations training 
deferred to the 
2009/10 financial 
year. 
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Sub – Program
m

e: Finance A
nd Supply C

hain M
anagem

ent

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR THE YEAR 

2008/09

8.4.4.1  To develop a 
               costing 
               model based 
               on the 
               Specifications 
               from 
               Investigations

Costing model
%

 of costing 
model 
developed and 
implemented

100%
 

implementation as 
per costing model 
plan

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to budgetary 
constraints.  However,  research 
conducted indicated a need for the 
appointment of a cost accountant.  
This project is deferred to the 2009/10 
financial year.

8.4.4.2  Improve 
               financial 
               management  
               and reporting
 

Financial 
management 
policies 
developed and 
implemented

%
 of financial 

policies 
developed and 
implemented

100%
 

implementation 
(training and 
accessibility of 
policy)

A
ch

ieved
Financial management policies have 
been developed and implemented. 

Divisional 
budgets

%
 of divisional 

budget 
implemented

100%
 

implementation 
as per Divisional 
Budget Plan

A
ch

ieved
Divisional Budget Plan has been 
implemented.

8.4.4.3 Ensure
                compliance 
                with 
                financial  
               prescripts

Unqualified 
audit reports

%
 compliance

100%
 compliance

 
A

ch
ieved

Unqualified audit report obtained for the 
2007/08 financial year.

8.4.4.4 Develop and 
                implement  
                cost-effective 
                procurement 
                policies and 
                processes 

Cost-effective 
procurement 
processes 
implemented

%
 implemented 

100%
 

implementation

 A
ch

ieved
Cost effective procurement processes 
have been implemented.

8.4.4.5 Compliance 
                with 
                Legislative 
                requirements

Reporting on 
Compliance to 
Legislation

%
 Compliance

100%
 Compliance

A
ch

ieved
Legislative requirements complied with.

Training on 
Legislative 
requirements

%
 appropriate 

staff trained
100%

 appropriate 
staff trained

A
ch

ieved
Appropriate staff trained.
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Sub – Program
m

e: A
dm

inistration Support

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.4.5.1 To enable 
                 the 
                 optimum 
                 application 
                 and 
                 utilization 
                 resources

Vehicle monitoring 
system

%
 implementation 

of vehicle 
monitoring system

Review and 
Improve

A
ch

ieved
Vehicle monitoring system 
has been reviewed and 
improved.

8.4.5.2  To promote 
             the effective 
             and efficient 
             functioning 
             of the 
             registry

Records management 
system that complies 
with National Archives 
Act and Guidelines

%
 implementation 

of Manual & 
electronic records 
management 
system

100%
 electronic 

Records 
management 
operational

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met due to 
budgetary constraints and 
dependence on the provision 
of share point. However 
manual records management 
system is operational.
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR 

THE YEAR 2008/09

8.4.5.3  To
               establish 
               and 
               maintain 
               suitable 
               office 
              accommo-
              dation

Additional regional office 
established

Number of 
additional regional 
offices established

Limpopo
Eastern Cape
- Graaf Reinnet

P
artially A

ch
ieved

Target not met as it 
was dependant on the 
assistance of the DPW

 
in the identification 
of suitable premises.  
However, establishment 
of regional offices in the 
Eastern Cape (Mthatha), 
Free State (Qwaqwa) and 
KZN (Newcastle) is at an 
advanced stage and will 
be finalised in the 2009/10 
financial year.

Office relocated
Number of offices 
relocated 

Kuruman 
A

ch
ieved

Kuruman office space 
increased and Rustenburg 
relocated.

Establish Facilities 
management function

Facilities 
Management Plan

Develop and 
implement 
Facilities 
Management 
Strategy

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints.

8.4.5.4  Ensure 
               compliance 
               with Health 
               and Safety 
               regulations
 

Compliance with OHSA
Develop Occupational 
Health & Safety Strategy 
and plan

%
 Compliance

Implementation 
of the Strategy 
according to the 
Strategy / Plan

100%
 compliance

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met due to 
capacity constraints.   
However, draft strategy 
completed and consultation 
with the DPW

 underway 
to ensure compliance with 
OHSA.
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Sub-Program
m

e: K
now

ledge M
anagem

ent

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUTS
M

EASURE
2008/9 T

ARGET
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS FOR THE 

YEAR 2008/09

8.4.6.1 Create a 
            knowledge 
            management 
            institution 
            for the OPP

Knowledge 
and Research 
Manager 
appointed

Appointment 
of Knowledge 
and Research 
Manager

Appointment of 
Knowledge and 
Research Manager 

A
ch

ieved
Knowledge and Research 
Manager appointed.

Knowledge audit 
conducted – 
Create a Grid 
(Matrix)

%
 of audit 

conducted
100%

 of audit 
conducted

A
ch

ieved
Knowledge audit conducted.

Knowledge 
management 
strategy 
developed and 
implemented

%
 of KM 

strategy 
developed and 
implemented

100%
 of strategy 

developed
A

ch
ieved

KM strategy developed, 
approved and has been 
implemented.

Research 
conducted

Continuous 
research

Continuous research 
performed

A
ch

ieved
Continuous research performed.

Precedent System 
implemented

%
 Precedent 

System 
developed and 
implemented

100%
 of Precedent 

System developed
N

o
t A

ch
ieved

Target not met as it was 
dependent on the finalisation 
of the case management 
system. However, OPP portal 
was developed and has been 
implemented.

List of documents 
that are available 
for Public Access

Compliance with 
PAIA

100%
 Compliance

A
ch

ieved
The Access to Information 
Manual has been compiled in 
compliance with PAIA.
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Sub-Program
m

e: Inform
ation A

nd C
om

m
unications Technology

S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
T

ARGET 2008/09
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS 

FOR THE YEAR 2008/09

8.4.7.1  Implement 
             Master 
             Systems 
             Plan (MSP).

Projects delivery 
Roadmap. An 
approved Master 
Systems Plan 
detailing projects 
that will be 
undertaken by 
the IT division 
to provide 
automated 
solutions for 
the effective 
operation of the 
OPP business.

Numbers of listed 
projects, delivery 
on time and within 
the allocated 
budget.

100%
 implementa-

• 
tion of the Com-
plaint Management 
System.
Implementation of the 

• 
Share Point technol-
ogy.
Development of the 

• 
Intranet.
2 Rehearsals for the 

• 
Disaster Recovery 
plan.
Feasibility Analysis 

• 
and Assessment 
Report of the Human 
Resources and Fi-
nance Management 
and Procurement 
Integrated System.
Setup an IT Training 

• 
Centre
Automation of Leave 

• 
Application System

A
ch

ieved
The CMS development was 
completed notwithstanding 
teething challenges.

N
o

t A
ch

ieved
Target not met as it was 
dependent on the provision 
of share point and also due 
to budgetary constraints.

A
ch

ieved
A backup and recovery plan 
was documented.

A
ch

ieved
Feasibility analysis 
and assessment 
report completed but 
implementation will be 
deferred to the 2010/11 
financial year due to 
budgetary constraints.

Creation of electronic 
• 

database for Supply 
Chain management
Analysis of Feasibility 

• 
of Video Conferen-
cing

A
ch

ieved
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S
TRATEGIC O

BJECTIVE
O

UTPUT
M

EASURE
T

ARGET 2008/09
A

CHIEVEMENT OF T
ARGETS 

FOR THE YEAR 2008/09

8.4.7.2 Technical 
            support to 
            Staff

Incidents and 
problems 
Management 
system

Reduced 
• 

downtime.
48 hours turn-

• 
around time 
to resolve 
reported 
incidents and 
problems.

Call Centre setup.
• 

Automated Incidents 
• 

and problems man-
agement system.

A
ch

ieved
Call centre has been setup.

A
ch

ieved
Automated incidents and 
problems management 
system in place.

8.4.7.3  Ensure 
             Compliance 
             to IT 
             Governance
 

Access logs and 
log-sheets. 

Reduced 
incidents of 
“logical” security 
violations.

Automated mechanism 
for Management to review 
users’ access logs and 
log-sheets.

A
ch

ieved
Access logs and log sheets 
in place.
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9.1 
M

IN
IS

T
E

R
S

 
9.1.1 

M
in

ister o
f P

u
b

lic S
ervice an

d
 A

d
m

in
istratio

n
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 6 o
f 2008/09

A
llegations of im

propriety against M
inister unfounded but M

inisters m
ust com

ply
w

ith  E
xecutive E

thics C
ode  

9.1.1.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint regarding M

s G
 Fraser-M

oleketi, form
er  M

inister of P
ublic 

S
ervice and A

dm
inistration, in connection w

ith an allegation of im
propriety allegedly m

ade 
against her by the form

er C
hairperson of the M

edia, A
dvertising, P

ublishing, P
rinting and 

P
ackaging S

ector Training A
uthority (M

A
P

P
P

-S
eta) relating to a gift that she received in 

A
ugust 2006.

9.1.1.2 It w
as alleged that the C

hairperson of M
A

P
P

P
-S

eta inform
ed the D

irector-G
eneral of 

the D
epartm

ent of Labour that the form
er C

hief E
xecutive O

fficer (C
E

O
) of M

A
P

P
P

-S
eta 

presented M
s Fraser-M

oleketi w
ith an expensive gift, paid for by M

A
P

P
P

-S
eta, in return 

for the “favour” of M
s Fraser-M

oleketi forw
arding certain docum

ents relating to fraud and 
corruption to the M

inister of Labour.

9.1.1.3 From
 the investigation it appeared that M

s Fraser-M
oleketi received docum

ents relating 
to allegations of im

propriety in connection w
ith the affairs of M

A
P

P
P

-S
eta from

 the form
er 

C
E

O
, w

hom
 she w

orked w
ith previously, on 15 A

ugust 2006.  O
n 24 A

ugust 2006,  
M

s Fraser-M
oleketi received a birthday gift, valued at approxim

ately R
2 500 from

 M
A

P
P

P
-

S
eta, authorised by the form

er C
E

O
.  S

he accepted the gift w
ithout obtaining  perm

ission 
of the P

resident and disclosing it to the S
ecretary of the C

abinet at the tim
e, as required by 

the E
xecutive E

thics C
ode.

9.1.1.4 O
n 12 S

eptem
ber 2006, M

s Fraser-M
oleketi forw

arded the docum
ents that she received 

from
 the form

er C
E

O
 to the N

ational D
irector of P

ublic P
rosecutions and the M

inister of 
Labour.

9.1.1.5 The suggestion that M
s Fraser-M

oleketi had to be prom
pted by m

eans of a gift to m
erely 

refer docum
ents relating to allegations of im

propriety in connection w
ith the affairs of a 

public entity to the responsible m
em

ber of the C
abinet and to the prosecuting authorities, 

appeared to be nonsensical and w
ithout foundation.

9.1.1.6 The key findings m
ade from

 the investigation are that the allegation that the M
inister 

w
as presented w

ith a gift by the form
er C

E
O

 in return for the “favour” of forw
arding docu-

m
ents relating to allegations of im

propriety in connection w
ith the affairs of M

A
P

P
P

-S
eta, 

to the M
inister of Labour, w

as unfounded.  B
y accepting the gift w

ithout the perm
ission of 

the P
resident and only disclosing it to the S

ecretary of the C
abinet a year later,  

9. SPEC
IFIC

 IN
VESTIG

ATIO
N

S

9.1
M

IN
IS

T
E

R
S
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M
s Fraser-M

oleketi violated the provisions of paragraphs 4.2 and 6.3 of the E
xecutive 

E
thics C

ode.

9.1.1.7 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the P
resident attends to the violation of the 

E
xecutive E

thics C
ode by M

s Fraser-M
oleketi in the appropriate m

anner.  Further, the 
S

ecretary of C
abinet takes appropriate steps to ensure that M

em
bers of the C

abinet and 
D

eputy M
inisters are sensitised in respect of the provisions of the C

ode relating to gifts and 
the M

inister of Labour ensures that the gift is appropriately disposed of.

9.2 
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 O
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 (M
E

C
s)

 
9.2.1  

M
E

C
 fo

r H
ealth

 (G
au

ten
g

 P
ro

vin
cial G

o
vern

m
en

t)
 

 
R

ep
o

rt  N
o

 3 o
f 2008/09

M
E

C
 cleared of any w

rong doing

9.2.1.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint lodged by a M

em
ber of the G

auteng P
rovincial Legisla-

ture in term
s of the E

xecutive M
em

bers’ E
thics A

ct, 1998 against the M
em

ber responsible 
for H

ealth of the E
xecutive C

ouncil of the G
auteng P

rovincial G
overnm

ent (M
E

C
), M

r B
 

H
longw

a.

9.2.1.2 It w
as alleged that M

r H
longw

a violated the E
xecutive E

thics C
ode by receiving rem

u-
neration for services rendered to a private com

pany w
hilst he w

as serving as M
E

C
.

9.2.1.3 From
 the investigation it w

as found that M
r H

longw
a received rem

uneration from
 the 

said private com
pany for services that he rendered prior to his appointm

ent as M
E

C
. It w

as 
also found that he does not receive any rem

uneration for the services that he currently 
renders as the non-executive C

hairm
an of the com

pany.

9.2.1.4 The com
plaint of a breach of the E

xecutive E
thics C

ode w
as therefore unfounded.

 
9.2.2 

M
E

C
 fo

r E
d

u
catio

n
 (L

im
p

o
p

o
 P

ro
vin

cial D
ep

artm
en

t)
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 33 o
f 2008/09

A
llegations of im

propriety against M
E

C
 and officials unfounded but departm

ent 
m

ust com
ply w

ith P
FM

A

9.2.2.1 O
P

P investigated allegations of im
proper conduct m

ade against the M
em

ber of the 
E

xecutive C
ouncil (M

E
C

) responsible for E
ducation of the Lim

popo P
rovincial G

overnm
ent 

and officials of the Lim
popo P

rovincial D
epartm

ent of E
ducation.
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9.2.2.2 The anonym
ous com

plaint alleged that D
r P A M

otsoaledi, the M
E

C
, had abused his 

pow
ers and breached the trust com

m
anded by his office, in that he favoured certain suppliers 

of school furniture and m
obile classroom

s that w
ere contracted at his request to supply 

goods to the D
epartm

ent. The allegations stated that the said suppliers w
ere friends of the 

M
E

C
 and that he received an expensive gift in the form

 of a car from
 one of them

.

9.2.2.3 The investigation revealed that the departm
ent does not have a procurem

ent policy in 
place, as is required by the P

FM
A

.

9.2.2.4 It w
as found that the allegations of im

proper conduct m
ade against the M

E
C

 and  
officials of the departm

ent are unfounded and the failure of the departm
ent to develop and 

im
plem

ent an effective and efficient supply chain m
anagem

ent system
, as required by the 

P
FM

A is a m
atter of grave concern.

9.2.2.5 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the H
ead of the D

epartm
ent com

plies w
ith sec-

tion 38(1) (a) (iii) of the P
FM

A by ensuring that the departm
ent develops and m

aintains 
an appropriate procurem

ent and provisioning system
 w

hich is fair, equitable, transparent, 
com

petitive and cost-effective.

 
9.2.3. 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f S

o
cial D

evelo
p

m
en

t (G
au

ten
g

)
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 32 o
f 2008/09

 
D

epartm
ent innocent of alleged party political propaganda

9.2.3.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint lodged by a M

em
ber of P

arliam
ent, in connection w

ith an 
advertisem

ent placed in a new
spaper by the G

auteng D
epartm

ent of S
ocial D

evelopm
ent 

(the D
epartm

ent). The advertisem
ent contained an edited version of the 2008 B

udget Vote 
S

peech of the M
em

ber responsible for S
ocial D

evelopm
ent of the P

rovincial E
xecutive 

C
om

m
ittee (M

E
C

), presented to the G
auteng P

rovincial Legislature.

9.2.3.2. It w
as alleged that a reference to the A

frican N
ational C

ongress (A
N

C
) in the said 

speech, as published in the advertisem
ent, w

as im
proper and unlaw

ful as it am
ounted to 

party political propaganda paid for by public funds.

9.2.3.3 It w
as found that:

9.2.3.3.1 The D
epartm

ent is constitutionally obliged to inform
 the public that it serves, of the 

perform
ance of its functions and how

 the public funds allocated to it w
ould be spent;
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9.2.3.3.2 The expenditure incurred in placing the advertisem
ent in question in a new

spaper 
to inform

 the public of the contents of the M
E

C
’s speech, cannot be regarded as unau-

thorised or irregular;

9.2.3.3.3 It is not unusual or im
proper for political heads of departm

ents to refer to their per-
ceptions of the achievem

ents of the political party that they represent, w
hen they ad-

dress legislatures on m
atters of public interest;

9.2.3.3.4 The expenditure incurred could only be regarded as fruitless and w
asteful in term

s 
of the P

FM
A

, 1999, if it could be found that it w
as m

ade in vain and could have been 
avoided had reasonable care been taken;

9.2.3.3.5 The m
ain context of the speech, as advertised, w

as to inform
 the public of the 

achievem
ents, program

m
es and plans of the D

epartm
ent;

9.2.3.3.6 The tw
o references to the A

N
C

 in the advertisem
ent did not im

pact on the purpose 
of the speech, as the reasonable overall im

pression of the ordinary reader w
ould be of 

inform
ation relating to the operations and core business of the D

epartm
ent, rather than 

of political propaganda;

9.2.3.3.7 The expenditure incurred in respect of the advertisem
ent w

as not m
ade in vain and 

cannot be regarded as fruitless and w
asteful; and

9.2.3.3.8 The allegation of m
isappropriation of public funds by the G

auteng D
epartm

ent of 
S

ocial D
evelopm

ent w
as unfounded.

9.3  
N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

S

 
9.3.1 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f H

ealth
 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 7 o

f 2008/09

 
A

llegations of unauthorised, fruitless expenditure found to be w
ithout  

       substance

9.3.1.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint lodged by a M

em
ber of P

arliam
ent in connection w

ith 
advertisem

ents placed by the D
epartm

ent of H
ealth in several new

spapers, in S
eptem

ber 
2007.  The advert related to the judgm

ent of the H
igh C

ourt in an application brought by the 
M

inister of H
ealth against the S

unday Tim
es.  The application related to  certain provi-

sions of the N
ational H

ealth A
ct, 2003 in respect of the m

edical records of the M
inister, 

w
hich w

ere in the unauthorised possession of the S
unday Tim

es.
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9.2.1.2. It w
as alleged that the placing of the said advertisem

ents could be considered to be 
unauthorised or fruitless and w

asteful expenditure in term
s of the provisions of the P

ublic 
Finance M

anagem
ent A

ct, 1999 (P
FM

A
).

9.3.1.3 From
 the investigation it w

as found that the adm
inistration of the N

ational H
ealth A

ct, 
2003 form

s part of the core business of the D
epartm

ent of H
ealth and it therefore had the 

responsibility to inform
 the public of any incident that m

ight have a significant im
pact on 

their rights and the other m
atters regulated by the A

ct.  The D
irector-G

eneral of the D
epart-

m
ent w

as of the view
 that part of the interpretation afforded to the relevant sections of the 

A
ct by the C

ourt, could be questioned and that the public should be inform
ed accordingly.  

The purpose that the D
epartm

ent sought to achieve w
ith the placing of the advertisem

ents 
w

as w
ithin the authority of the D

irector-G
eneral to approve and his decision w

as rationally 
related to the core business of the D

epartm
ent.

9.3.1.4 The com
plaint of m

isappropriation of public funds by the D
epartm

ent w
as therefore 

held to be w
ithout substance.

9.3.1.5 D
uring the investigation it w

as noted, w
ith concern, that the contents of one of the 

advertisem
ents w

ere severely critical of the judgm
ent of the H

igh C
ourt.  In the C

onstitu-
tional C

ourt decision relating to the crim
e of contem

pt of court in the current constitutional 
dispensation, it can be concluded that:

9.3.1.5.1 O
rgans of state, have a constitutional obligation to protect the courts to ensure its 

effectiveness and to uphold its dignity;

9.3.1.5.2 A
ny conduct by an official of the S

tate that is offensive and likely to dam
age the 

adm
inistration of justice is therefore unlaw

ful;

9.3.1.5.3 S
uch conduct could be found to constitute the com

m
on law

 crim
e of contem

pt of 
court, w

hich is punishable by law
; and

9.3.1.5.4 The publication of statem
ents accusing a Judge of having delivered a judgm

ent that 
poses a threat to the rule of law

 and referring to his reasoning as being incoherent and 
contradictory, m

ight be regarded as having the potential to negatively im
pact on the 

reputation of the C
ourt and the Judge concerned.  It m

ay also affect public confidence 
in the com

pliance of our courts w
ith its constitutional im

peratives relating to the adm
in-

istration of justice.  It is how
ever, a m

atter that should be attended to by the authority 
charged w

ith prosecutions.

9.3.1.5.6 The P
ublic P

rotector therefore notified the A
cting N

ational D
irector of P

ublic 
P

rosecutions that the facts of the m
atter referred to in this report m

ay disclose the 
com

m
ission of the offence of contem

pt of court.
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9.3.2 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f H

o
u

sin
g

 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 42 o
f 2008/09

P
ensioner’s housing subsidy approved after O

P
P intervention 

9.3.2.1 A com
plaint w

as received from
 a 70 year-old pensioner (the C

om
plainant) alleging that 

she had applied for a R
D

P house in A
ugust 1996 in M

am
elodi and ten years later her 

application had not been approved. H
ow

ever, the applications of others w
ho had alle-

gedly applied at the sam
e tim

e as herself had been approved and they had been allocated 
houses. 

9.3.2.2 It w
as found that the C

om
plainant’s application w

as never attended to and her subsidy 
w

as approved after the D
epartm

ent received a letter from
 the O

P
P.

9.3.2.3 It w
as recom

m
ended that the H

ead of the D
epartm

ent, as w
ell as the G

eneral M
anager 

for H
ousing, C

ity of Tshw
ane, should take steps to ensure that officials of the D

epartm
ent 

and of the C
ity of Tshw

ane provide reasons for unsuccessful applications.  In addition, they 
should apologise in w

riting to the C
om

plainant for the discourteous m
anner in w

hich she 
w

as treated.

 
9.3.3 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f Ju

stice an
d

 C
o

n
stitu

tio
n

al D
evelo

p
m

en
t

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 39 o

f 2008/09

C
lerk of court’s conduct w

as unprofessional and grossly im
proper

9.3.3.1 The C
om

plainant alleged, during O
ctober 2006, that the C

ullinan M
agistrates’ court had 

ordered him
 to pay a m

onthly am
ount of R

200 in respect of m
aintenance arrears am

ount-
ing to R

3 250, com
m

encing 31 D
ecem

ber 2006. H
e further alleged that the clerk of the 

C
ullinan M

agistrates’ court unlaw
fully altered the am

ount to R
300 per m

onth and a balance 
of R

8 250 in respect of arrears.

9.3.3.2 The P
ublic P

rotector found that the conduct of im
properly altering the court order w

as 
highly unprofessional and grossly im

proper and the referral of the m
atter to the police w

as 
appropriate.  Furtherm

ore the failure or delay by the O
ffice M

anager of the C
ullinan M

ag-
istrates’ C

ourt to ensure that the m
atter w

as brought to the attention of the D
epartm

ent 
of E

ducation and the correct court order forw
arded, constituted an om

ission and caused 
prejudice to the C

om
plainant and w

as therefore im
proper.

9.3.3.3 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the O
ffice M

anager should urgently ensure that 
the m

atter is referred to the M
agistrate to issue a corrected order and the am

ended order 
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is sent to the G
auteng D

epartm
ent of E

ducation. Further the O
ffice M

anager should take 
urgent steps to ensure that reconciliation is done in order to establish w

hether any overpay-
m

ent occurred and appropriate action be taken to address the irregularity.

 
9.3.4 

S
o

u
th

 A
frican

 N
atio

n
al D

efen
ce F

o
rce 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 40 o

f 2008/09

C
om

plainant should be reim
bursed for im

proper deduction from
 his pension 

benefits

9.3.4.1 The C
om

plainant alleged that an im
proper deduction w

as m
ade from

 his pension 
benefits by the S

outh A
frican N

ational D
efence Force (the D

efence Force).  H
e w

as 
sentenced to be discharged in term

s of a M
ilitary C

ourt order issued on 3 A
pril 2002 and 

appealed against his conviction and discharge.

9.3.4.2 The C
om

plainant w
as instructed by the H

um
an R

esource D
epartm

ent of the D
efence 

Force to report for duty until the outcom
e of the appeal/review

 procedure w
as know

n.  The 
appeal w

as heard by the C
ourt of M

ilitary A
ppeals on 15 July 2005 and he w

as inform
ed 

on 13 S
eptem

ber 2005, w
hilst he w

as on sick leave, that his dism
issal w

as confirm
ed by 

the C
ourt of M

ilitary A
ppeals.  In D

ecem
ber 2006, the C

om
plainant w

as inform
ed by letter 

that due to a salary overpaym
ent, his pension and other benefits w

ere paid to the D
efence 

Force and a further am
ount still ow

ed.

9.3.4.3 It w
as found that the pension benefits of the C

om
plainant w

ere incorrectly claim
ed from

 
the G

overnm
ent E

m
ployees P

ension Fund (G
E

P
F) by the D

efence Force as the alleged 
salary overpaym

ent did not occur, thereby causing him
 to suffer im

proper prejudice.

9.3.4.4 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the S
ecretary for D

efence take steps to ensure 
that a revised w

ithdraw
al form

 be subm
itted to G

E
P

F. Further, the C
om

plainant should be 
repaid the am

ount received from
 G

E
P

F and any leave or other gratuity benefits that he is 
entitled to include interest as prescribed by the P

rescribed R
ate of Interest A

ct.

    
 9.3.5  

 S
o

u
th

 A
frican

 P
o

lice S
ervices

 
 

 R
ep

o
rt N

o
 29 o

f 2008/09

P
olice inform

er should get his rew
ard as prom

ised

9.3.5.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint against the S

outh A
frican P

olice S
ervice (S

A
P

S
) relating to 

the paym
ent of a rew

ard. The C
om

plainant  alleged that S
A

P
S

 failed to pay him
 a R

75 
000 rew

ard, w
hich w

as offered to him
 for successfully assisting S

A
P

S
 and the N

ational 
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P
rosecuting A

uthority (N
PA

) in securing arrest and convictions.  The said R
75 000 w

as 
allegedly paid to S

A
P

S
 by K

hulani S
ecurity, even though the offer w

as m
ade by S

A
P

S
 on 

their behalf.

9.3.5.2 It w
as found that the C

om
plainant’s allegations w

ere justified and the rew
ard should be 

paid.

9.3.5.3 It w
as therefore recom

m
ended that SAPS should desist from

 reneging in its undertaking 
as this conduct brings its im

age into disrepute.

9.4 
P

R
O

V
IN

C
IA

L
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 
9.4.1 

P
rem

ier o
f th

e F
ree S

tate 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 5 o
f 2008/09

P
ublic P

rotector found that P
rem

ier failed to com
ply w

ith Free S
tate Youth C

om
m

is-
sion A

ct provisions 

9.4.1.1 The P
ublic P

rotector investigated allegations of non-com
pliance by the P

rem
ier of the 

Free S
tate P

rovincial G
overnm

ent in the appointm
ent of the C

aretaker C
om

m
issioner w

ith 
the provisions of the Free S

tate Youth C
om

m
ission A

ct, 1996. A R
eport w

as subm
itted to 

the Free S
tate P

rovincial Legislature on 20 June 2006 w
here it w

as found, inter alia, that 
the decisions of the P

rem
ier to appoint a “caretaker C

om
m

issioner” for and the new
 m

em
-

bers of the Free S
tate Youth C

om
m

ission w
ere invalid and therefore im

proper. 

9.4.1.2 In this regard, the P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the P
rem

ier should obtain legal 
advice regarding the appropriate legal rem

edy to rectify the invalidity of her decision to 
appoint the new

 m
em

bers of the Youth C
om

m
ission.

9.4.1.3 The P
rem

ier’s legal counsel advised her of their view
 that the interpretation of the rel-

evant provisions of the Free S
tate Youth C

om
m

ission A
ct, 1996, as relied upon in the Youth 

C
om

m
ission R

eport, w
as incorrect. 

 
 

S
he w

as further advised to resolve the difference of opinion in respect of her appointm
ent  

 
 

of the Youth C
om

m
issioners by interacting w

ith the P
ublic P

rotector, the S
peaker of the  

 
 

 
Legislature, the C

om
m

ittee concerned, the Youth C
om

m
ission and the E

xecutive C
ouncil.

9.4.1.4 In the event of a com
m

on understanding on the m
atter not being reached, the P

rem
ier 

w
as advised to consider seeking a declaratory order from

 the H
igh C

ourt. 
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9.4.1.5 A
fter having been inform

ed that the P
ublic P

rotector stands by the findings and recom
-

m
endations contained in the Youth C

om
m

ission R
eport, the P

rem
ier decided not to take 

any further steps.  The im
pact of the decision of the P

rem
ier is that neither the said recom

-
m

endation of the P
ublic P

rotector, nor the legal advice given to her in relation thereto, has 
been properly im

plem
ented.

9.4.1.6 The P
rem

ier is accountable to the Legislature for the im
plem

entation of the recom
m

en-
dations m

ade in the Youth C
om

m
ission R

eport and the advice provided to her by her legal 
advisors, at state expense.

9.4.1.7 A
s the C

om
m

issioners of the Youth C
om

m
ission have been in office for m

ore than 2 
years, it w

ould probably not be in the interest of the C
om

m
ission and the public that it 

serves, to approach a court of law
 in regard to the difference of opinion betw

een the 
P

rem
ier and the P

ublic P
rotector at this stage, as it m

ight lead to their appointm
ents being 

declared invalid on the basis of procedural deficiency. It w
ould also lead to substantial legal 

costs, w
hich w

ill have to be paid form
 m

uch needed public funds.

9.4.1.8 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the Free S
tate P

rovincial Legislature:

9.4.1.8.1 C
onsider ratifying the appointm

ent of the Youth C
om

m
issioners referred to in the 

Youth C
om

m
ission R

eport for as far as it did not com
ply w

ith the provisions of the Free 
S

tate Youth C
om

m
ission A

ct, 1996; alternatively;

9.4.1.8.2 E
nsure that the relevant recom

m
endations m

ade in the Youth C
om

m
ission R

eport 
or the legal advice provided to the Prem

ier in relation thereto, are properly im
plem

ented; 

 
9.4.2  

P
u

b
lic Tran

sp
o

rt, R
o

ad
s an

d
 W

o
rks (G

au
ten

g
)

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 15 o

f 2008/09
 

Learner driver finally gets her driver’s licence 

9.4.2.1 The com
plainant alleged that her learner driver’s licence expired on 20 M

ay 2007, w
hich 

w
as a S

unday.  S
he approached the R

andburg Licensing C
entre and obtained an appoint-

m
ent for M

onday 21 M
ay 2007 to undergo her driver’s licence test, w

hich she duly passed.  
H

ow
ever, w

hen she applied for her tem
porary driver’s licence she w

as inform
ed that she 

w
as not entitled to the license as her learner’s licence had expired the day before she took 

the test.

9.4.2.2. The N
ational R

oad Traffic A
ct, 1996 and R

oad Traffic R
egulations w

ere perused and no 
prescripts on the calculations of tim

e-lim
its could be found. The general rule in the interpre-

tation of statutes is that the dies ad quem
 (day of conclusion) is to be taken into account 
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and not the dies a quo (day of com
m

encem
ent). W

here the dies ad quem
 is a S

aturday, a 
S

unday or a public holiday the tim
e lim

it is extended to include the first w
orking day there-

after.  H
er learner driver’s licence therefore only expired on M

onday 21 M
ay 2007, and 

her driving test on that day w
as found to have been valid.

9.4.2.3 S
ubsequent to the O

P
P

’s intervention in the m
atter, the C

om
plainant w

as issued w
ith 

a tem
porary driver’s licence and her application for a perm

anent driver’s licence w
as 

accepted.

 
9.4.3 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f E

d
u

catio
n

 (K
Z

N
)

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 18 o

f 2008/09

D
epartm

ent m
ust pay salary arrears including interest to form

er em
ployee 

9.4.3.1 O
P

P investigated to allegations of undue delay by the K
w

aZulu-N
atal P

rovincial D
epart-

m
ent of E

ducation (the D
epartm

ent) in the paym
ent of salary arrears to a form

er em
ployee, 

(the C
om

plainant).  A
llegations of undue delay by the O

ffice of the M
em

ber of the E
xecutive 

C
ouncil responsible for E

ducation (O
ffice of the M

E
C

) to attend to a subsequent com
plaint 

raised by the C
om

plainant w
ere also investigated.

9.4.3.2 It w
as found that both the O

ffice of the M
E

C
 and the D

epartm
ent w

ere responsible for the 
delay in processing the paym

ent of salary arrears of the C
om

plainant.  The C
om

plainant 
w

as prejudiced by the delay in attending to the m
atter and w

as entitled to interest on the 
salary arrears paid to her.

9.4.3.3 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the D
epartm

ent, pay interest on the am
ount  

w
ithin a period of three m

onths from
 the date of this report.

 
9.4.4 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f L

o
cal G

o
vern

m
en

t an
d

 H
o

u
sin

g
 (M

p
u

m
alan

g
a)

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 25 o

f 2008/09

D
epartm

ent prioritises reconstruction of com
plainant’s R

D
P house after O

P
P 

intervention

9.4.4.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint against the M

pum
alanga P

rovincial D
epartm

ent of Local 
G

overnm
ent and H

ousing (the D
epartm

ent) regarding the alleged failure by the D
epart-

m
ent to com

plete her R
D

P house.

9.4.4.2 The investigation revealed that the C
om

plainant’s house w
as partially built  in 2002 and 

abandoned unfinished at w
indow

 level.  The structure w
as unstable.
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9.4.4.3 D
uring the investigation of this and other com

plaints of the sam
e nature, it w

as found that 
the problem

 w
ith low

 cost housing projects abandoned by developers before com
pletion 

w
as prevalent in the M

pum
alanga P

rovince.  The D
epartm

ent reported that m
easures w

ere 
taken to prevent recurrence of sim

ilar incidents.

9.4.4.4. The intervention by the O
P

P resulted in the D
epartm

ent prioritising the reconstruction 
of the C

om
plainant’s house. H

ow
ever, a system

ic investigation is being conducted to esta-
blish the extent of the problem

 and w
hether there are system

ic deficiencies in the D
epart-

m
ent’s procedures regarding the provision of low

 cost housing.

 
9.4.5 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f L

o
cal G

o
vern

m
en

t an
d

 H
o

u
sin

g
 (L

im
p

o
p

o
)

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 28 o

f 2008/09

D
epartm

ent should build R
D

P houses for Lebow
akgom

o residents

9.4.5.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint by C

ouncilor F J Letw
aba, acting on behalf of the residents 

of U
nits R

 and S
 Lebow

akgom
o (the C

om
plainants), in connection w

ith their applications 
for R

econstruction and D
evelopm

ent P
rogram

m
e (R

D
P

) housing subsidies.

9.4.5.2 The C
om

plainants applied for housing subsidies during 1996 to 2006. Their applications 
w

ere approved by the D
epartm

ent of Local G
overnm

ent and H
ousing (the D

epartm
ent) at 

am
ounts ranging betw

een R
9 500 and R

16 000. The subsidy program
m

e under w
hich 

the applications w
ere approved w

as called P
roject Linked S

ubsidy.

9.4.5.3 The D
epartm

ent allegedly failed to build the houses or to supply building m
aterial to the 

C
om

plainants so that they could build their houses.

9.4.5.4 It w
as found that:

9.4.5.4.1 The C
om

plainants’ applications for housing subsidies w
ere approved from

 1997 to   
2006 in the subsidy program

m
e called P

roject Linked S
ubsidy and the project w

as 
allocated to a com

pany called C
O

M
D

EV, w
hich failed to build houses or provide building 

m
aterial to C

om
plainants;

9.4.5.4.2 S
om

e houses w
ere partially built and only half the building m

aterial w
as delivered 

to som
e beneficiaries;

9.4.5.4.3 S
om

e C
om

plainants decided to put up shelters at their ow
n expense, w

hereas 
others com

pleted the partially built  houses using their ow
n resources;
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9.4.5.4.4 S
om

e of the C
om

plainants’ houses are still incom
plete or not built at all; and

9.4.5.4.5 O
ne com

plainant is now
 em

ployed and has built a house.

9.4.5.5 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the D
epartm

ent should:

9.4.5.5.1 B
uild houses for all beneficiaries of U

nit R
and S

 in Lebow
akgom

o w
hose applica-

tions w
ere approved on or  before 2006;

9.4.5.5.2 C
om

plete the houses w
hich w

ere abandoned;

9.4.5.5.3 S
upply building m

aterial to all approved beneficiaries;

9.4.5.5.4 A
ssist the C

om
plainants in the com

pletion of partially built houses;

9.4.5.5.5  U
se the current applicable subsidy am

ounts  to assist C
om

plainants;  and

9.4.5.5.6 C
om

pensate C
om

plainants w
ho w

ere approved as beneficiaries but have built 
their houses w

ithout the assistance of the departm
ent.  

9.5 
O

th
er O

rg
an

s o
f S

tate 

 
9.5.1 

O
ffi

ce o
f th

e C
o

m
p

en
satio

n
 C

o
m

m
issio

n
er

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 1 o

f 2008/09

C
om

pensation C
om

m
issioner should accept claim

ants’ affidavits 

9.5.1.1 P
rof J C

 A D
avies (the C

om
plainant) approached O

P
P alleging that the C

om
pensation 

C
om

m
issioner for O

ccupational D
iseases at the D

epartm
ent of H

ealth (the C
om

pensation 
C

om
m

issioner) im
properly insisted on docum

entary proof of service in the m
ines, notw

ith-
standing m

any claim
ants w

ere unable to furnish said docum
entary proof.

9.5.1.2 The C
om

plainant believed that the C
om

pensation C
om

m
issioner’s insistence on docu-

m
entary proof of service w

as not legally tenable, in light of the fact that in civil m
atters, the 

onus rested upon a claim
ant to prove his/her claim

 on a balance of probabilities.

9.5.1.3 It w
as found that the C

om
pensation C

om
m

issioner is entitled to stipulate the type of 
inform

ation and docum
ents required in order to consider an application for benefits based 

on the discretion afforded in term
s of section 78(2) of the M

ines and W
orks A

ct.  H
ow

ever, 
the C

om
plainant’s argum

ent w
as found to be valid and the C

om
pensation C

om
m

issioner’s 
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insistence on docum
entary proof of service in the m

ines is im
proper w

here this inform
ation 

is unavailable.

9.5.1.4 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the C
om

pensation C
om

m
issioner should 

accept the claim
ants’ affidavits/affirm

ations together w
ith corroborating affidavits/ affirm

a-
tions from

 other sources, to include corroborating affidavits/affirm
ations from

 previous 
co-w

orkers, shift supervisors or m
ine m

anagers, m
ine doctors, other doctors and hospitals 

w
ho exam

ined or treated claim
ants for occupational diseases and respected m

em
bers of 

the com
m

unity.

9.5.1.5 Further, the D
epartm

ent of H
ealth should establish an A

djudicating P
anel to resolve 

disputes regarding claim
s for benefits (including any outstanding claim

s) w
here no m

ining 
service histories are available.  A

lternatively the D
epartm

ent should utilise the A
dvisory 

C
om

m
ittee established in term

s of section 59 of the M
ines and W

orks A
ct.

 
9.5.2 

G
o

vern
m

en
t E

m
p

lo
yee P

en
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 45 o
f 2008/09

C
om

plainant im
properly prejudiced by G

E
P

F decisions

9.5.2.1 The C
om

plainant alleged that G
E

P
F stopped paying her spouse’ pension after they 

received a com
peting claim

 for paym
ent.  G

E
P

F’s investigations into the m
atter revealed 

that the C
om

plainant’s late husband had been m
arried tw

ice by w
ay of civil rites to dif-

ferent spouses, on 24 M
ay 1968 and 10 February 1989 respectively. They could not find 

proof that the first spouse w
as divorced from

 the D
eceased.  The m

arriage w
as therefore 

regarded as valid and G
EPF w

as therefore unable to accede to the C
om

plainant’s request to 
have her spouse’s pension reinstated.

9.5.2.2 O
P

P found that the C
om

plainant w
as legally m

arried to the D
eceased after the parties 

entered into a civil m
arriage on 10 February 1989. A

t the tim
e of the D

eceased’s m
arriage 

to the C
om

plainant, he w
as divorced from

 his first w
ife.

9.5.2.3 The C
om

plainant w
as im

properly prejudiced by the decision taken by G
E

P
F to suspend 

and subsequently stop paym
ent of the spouse’s pension in favour of the first w

ife w
ithout 

giving the C
om

plainant prior notice.  This action w
as unfair and did not com

ply w
ith the 

constitutional im
perative of just adm

inistrative action.
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9.5.2.4 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended the follow
ing:

9.5.2.4.1 G
E

P
F should ensure that in future, it conducts extensive investigations relating 

 
to the paym

ent of pension benefits, including the spouse’s pension, w
ith due care and 

diligence, in order to ensure that correct beneficiaries receive paym
ent and in order to 

prevent the G
E

P
F from

 sustaining losses arising as a result of incorrect paym
ents;

9.5.2.4.2 G
E

P
F should obtain legal opinion on the m

eans of recovering the paym
ents that 

w
ere m

ade to the first w
ife;

9.5.2.4.3 G
E

P
F should in future ensure that it com

plies w
ith the provisions of the P

rom
otion 

of A
dm

inistrative Justice A
ct, 2000, by allow

ing m
em

bers, pensioners and beneficiaries 
to m

ake representations before taking adverse decisions against them
;

9.5.2.4.4 G
E

P
F should am

end the G
overnm

ent E
m

ployees P
ension Law

 and the R
ules to 

provide for the granting of a right of appeal or review
 to aggrieved persons w

hen 
adverse decisions are taken regarding the paym

ent of benefits; and

9.5.2.4.5 G
E

P
F should am

end R
ule 14.6.2 to m

ake provision for the procedure and m
ethod 

of paym
ents in custom

ary and certain religious m
arriages.

 
9.5.3 

S
o

u
th

 A
frican

 S
o

cial S
ecu

rity A
g

en
cy 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 22 o

f 2008/09

P
ensioner’s grant reinstated, tw

o-year arrears also paid

9.5.3.1 O
P

P w
as alerted by a neighbour of the B

eneficiary that the pensioner’s old age grant 
w

as term
inated by the S

outh A
frican S

ocial S
ecurity A

gency (S
A

S
S

A
) for over tw

o years 
w

ithout any explanation.  H
e further indicated that the B

eneficiary and his fam
ily w

ere 
suffering as there w

as no other m
eans of incom

e to sustain them
.

9.5.3.2 O
P

P investigated the m
atter and found that the B

eneficiary’s old age grant w
as sus-

pended because he w
as said to be sharing his identity num

ber w
ith a certain M

thim
unye 

of G
auteng P

rovince. The B
eneficiary w

as not inform
ed of the suspension of his social 

security grant.

9.5.3.3 It w
as further found that there w

as no basis for the suspension of the beneficiary’s grant, 
and therefore the conduct by S

A
S

S
A w

as irregular. It took S
A

S
S

A m
ore than tw

o years to 
reinstate the grant, and no alternative m

eans of subsistence w
as put in place to sustain the 

B
eneficiary and his fam

ily w
hile the grant w

as suspended.
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9.5.3.4 The B
eneficiary’s grant w

as reinstated in M
arch 2008 after the intervention by O

P
P and 

he received arrear paym
ent.  

9.5.3.5 A
s a result of the above findings, the follow

ing recom
m

endations w
ere m

ade:

9.5.3.5.1 In future S
A

S
S

A should inform
 all recipients of social security grants of the suspen-

sion of such grants and the reasons for such adverse adm
inistrative action;

9.5.3.5.2 W
hen a grant is suspended, S

A
S

S
A should arrange w

ith the Lim
popo D

epartm
ent 

of H
ealth and S

ocial D
evelopm

ent to provide the recipient w
ith food parcels in order to 

sustain his/her w
hile it resolves the problem

 that led to the suspension of the grant;

9.5.3.5.3 S
A

S
S

A should devise m
eans to finalise its investigations w

ithin three m
onths after 

the suspension of a grant; and

9.5.3.5.4 S
A

S
S

A should pay interest on the arrear am
ount, using applicable rates. 

 
9.5.4 

S
o

u
th

 A
frican

 S
o

cial S
ecu

rity A
g

en
cy 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 23 o

f 2008/09

S
A

S
S

A failed to act against grant-abusing foster parent

9.5.4.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint that the S

outh A
frican S

ocial S
ecurity A

gency (S
A

S
S

A
) in 

Lim
popo failed to take the necessary steps to address the plight of m

inor children, w
hose 

foster parent, w
as m

isusing their foster child grants.

9.5.4.2 It w
as found that the foster parent of the m

inor children w
as m

isusing their foster care 
grant and S

A
S

S
A w

as aw
are of the abuse of the grant, as is contained in its report and 

failed to act against the foster parent for m
ore than a year after its investigation into the 

m
atter w

as com
pleted.

9.5.4.3 It w
as recom

m
ended that S

A
S

S
A take urgent steps to address the plight of the m

inor 
children occasioned by the abuse of the foster care grant by their foster parent.
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9.5.4  L
O

C
A

L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T

 
9.6.1 

K
u

n
g

w
in

i L
o

cal M
u

n
icip

ality 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 12 o
f 2008/09

M
unicipality donation to A

N
C

 P
arliam

entary C
onstituency O

ffice im
proper and 

unlaw
ful

9.6.1.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint lodged by a M

em
ber of P

arliam
ent relating to a donation 

of funds m
ade by the K

ungw
ini Local M

unicipality (the M
unicipality) in M

ay 2006 for the 
launching by the A

frican N
ational C

ongress (A
N

C
) of a P

arliam
entary C

onstituency O
ffice 

(P
C

O
). It w

as not disputed that the donation w
as requested from

 the M
unicipality by a 

M
em

ber of P
arliam

ent, w
as approved by the E

xecutive M
ayor and A

cting M
unicipal M

an-
ager of the M

unicipality, that it am
ounted to R

25 856, w
hich w

as paid into the bank account 
of the A

N
C

 P
arliam

entary C
onstituency O

ffice.

9.6.1.2 From
 the evidence, applicable legislation and legal prescripts considered during the 

investigation it appeared that:

9.6.1.2.1 P
arliam

entary C
onstituency O

ffices are established by political parties w
ith the 

assistance of funds allocated to them
 by P

arliam
ent;

9.6.1.2.2 The location, structure, functions and operations of a P
C

O
 are determ

ined only by 
the political party involved;

9.6.1.2.3 P
olitical parties are accountable to the E

lectoral C
om

m
ission and P

arliam
ent for 

the expenditure of funds allocated to enable them
 to perform

 their political functions 
effectively;

9.6.1.2.4 A P
C

O
 is a political party structure. E

ven though it m
ight be perform

ing a public 
function to a certain extent, it does not do so in term

s of “any legislation” but in term
s of 

the decisions, policies and prescripts of the political party by w
hich it w

as established. 
C

onstituency offices are therefore not organs of state or part of any sphere of govern-
m

ent. The fact that P
arliam

ent provides financial assistance for the establishm
ent of 

P
C

O
’s does not change its character and status to that of being a political structure;

9.6.1.2.5 The m
ere fact that m

em
bers of a com

m
unity can approach a P

C
O

 for assistance 
relating to service delivery issues, does not change its status from

 being a structure 
established by a political party and not by P

arliam
ent;
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9.6.1.2.6 A P
C

O
 therefore, cannot be regarded as an extension of P

arliam
ent;

9.6.1.2.7 There is no obligation on any sphere of governm
ent or any organ of state, except 

the N
ational A

ssem
bly, to assist political parties in the establishm

ent and m
aintaining 

of P
C

O
’s;

9.6.1.2.8 The establishm
ent and launching of a P

C
O

 is not a m
atter that falls w

ithin the 
objectives of local governm

ent. The fact that som
e of the objectives of a P

C
O

, in term
s 

of the m
onitoring of public service delivery, m

ight overlap w
ith that of a m

unicipality, 
does not change the position;

9.6.1.2.9 N
either the C

onstitution nor the M
unicipal Finance M

anagem
ent A

ct perm
its a 

m
unicipality to donate public funds to political parties for any purpose. S

uch a donation 
w

ould therefore constitute irregular expenditure;

9.6.1.2.10 It w
ould also am

ount to fruitless and w
asteful expenditure as it w

as m
ade in vain 

and could have been avoided if the m
unicipal m

anager properly applied his/her m
ind to 

the m
atter;

9.6.1.2.11 The fact that the M
ayor has approved certain expenditure does not oblige the 

accounting officer to approve it as w
ell. H

e/she has to apply his/her m
ind to the m

atter 
concerned and take an inform

ed decision as to w
hether the expenditure com

plies w
ith 

the law
. S

hould a request by a M
ayor for expenditure not com

ply, the accounting 
officer is obliged to advise him

/her accordingly;

9.6.1.2.12 It is expected of a M
ayor to act in the best interests of the m

unicipality and to 
ensure that its integrity and reputation is m

aintained;

9.6.1.2.13 A decision to donate public funds to a political party, apart from
 being unlaw

ful, 
creates a perception of bias and political favouritism

 on the part of the m
unicipality. It 

also disadvantages other political parties that have to cope w
ith the allow

ances allocated 
to them

 by P
arliam

ent;

9.6.1.2.14 A M
ayor and a m

unicipal m
anager, w

ho are responsible for irregular, unauthorised 
and fruitless and w

asteful expenditure, have to be held liable for the expense. D
iscipli-

nary steps could also be taken against them
; and 

9.6.1.2.15 It is expected of M
em

bers of P
arliam

ent to act and to be seen to be acting re-
sponsibly in respect of the expenditure of public m

oney. M
em

bers are also expected to 
com

ply w
ith the law

s regulating the m
anagem

ent of public funds and to set an exam
ple 

for others to follow
 in this regard. Failure to do so w

ould be im
proper and inconsistent 
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w
ith the responsibilities and integrity of a M

em
ber of P

arliam
ent.

9.6.1.3 The follow
ing key findings w

ere m
ade from

 the investigation:

9.6.1.3.1 The request by M
r S

ibanyoni M
P to the E

xecutive M
ayor of the M

unicipality for  
 

the donation of public funds for the launching of a P
C

O
 w

as im
proper;  

9.6.1.3.2 The donation by the M
unicipality on 22 M

ay 2006 of R
25 856 to the AN

C
 Parliam

en-
tary C

onstituency O
ffice w

as im
proper and unlaw

ful. 

9.6.1.3.3 It resulted in irregular and fruitless and w
asteful expenditure, and could be regarded 

as financial m
isconduct by the then A

ccounting O
fficer, M

r M
atjila, in term

s of the 
M

unicipal Finance M
anagem

ent A
ct; and

9.6.1.4 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that:

9.6.1.4.1  The S
peaker of the N

ational A
ssem

bly take the appropriate steps to deal w
ith the 

im
proper conduct of M

r S
ibanyoni, and ensure that it is brought to the attention of all 

M
em

bers of  P
arliam

ent that no reliance can be placed on public funds, other   than that 
allocated by P

arliam
ent, for the establishm

ent, launching and m
aintaining of P

arliam
en-

tary C
onstituency O

ffices.

9.6.6.1.4.2 The M
unicipal C

ouncil of the K
ungw

ini Local M
unicipality establish a special 

com
m

ittee to investigate and report to the C
ouncil on:

The accountability of M
r M

aila (the E
xecutive M

ayor) and M
r M

atjila (the A
cting 

a. 
M

unicipal M
anager at the tim

e w
hen the donation w

as approved) for the irregular 
and fruitless and w

asteful expenditure of the am
ount of R

25 856, referred to in    
this report and the taking of disciplinary steps in relation to the said expenditure 
against M

r M
atjila;

W
hether the approval of the donation by M

r M
aila constituted a  breach of the 

b. 
C

ode of C
onduct for C

ouncilors, and if so, w
hat steps should be taken against 

him
;  and

The recovery by the M
unicipality of the am

ount of R
25 856 in term

s of the M
unicipal 

c. 
Finance M

anagem
ent A

ct.

9.6.1.4.3 The M
unicipal M

anager :

Inform
 the M

em
ber responsible for Local G

overnm
ent of the G

auteng P
rovincial 

a. 
G

overnm
ent and the A

uditor G
eneral of the irregular and fruitless and w

asteful 
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expenditure the investigation that w
ill be conducted and the steps that w

ill be taken 
to recover the am

ount concerned;  and

Take steps to ensure that the docum
entation recording the authorisation of  the 

b. 
donation is properly filed in the financial records of the M

unicipality.

 
9.6.2  

T
h

ab
a C

h
w

eu
 M

u
n

icip
ality 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 21 o

f 2008/09

‘Im
proper’ levying of m

unicipal rates unfounded

9.6.2.1 O
P

P
 investigated an allegation of im

proper levying of rates by the Thaba C
hw

eu 
M

unicipality (the M
unicipality) in the M

pum
alanga P

rovince. The C
om

plainant objected to 
the rates levied as he w

as of the view
 that they w

ere excessive.

9.6.2.2 From
 the investigation it w

as found that the allegation of im
proper  levying of rates by the 

M
unicipality for the S

abie A
rea during the 2004/05 financial year w

as unfounded.

9.6.2.3 It w
as recom

m
ended that the M

unicipal M
anager take urgent steps to ensure that:

9.6.2.3.1 The C
hief Financial O

fficer and the staff of the M
unicipality dealing w

ith rates and 
taxes are trained on the provisions of the O

rdinance and m
atters incidental to the 

calculation of rates and taxes to avoid m
isinterpretations and m

isunderstandings in the 
future;

9.6.2.3.2 N
otices issued by the M

unicipality relating to rates are properly studied and edited 
before they are published;  and

9.6.2.3.3 C
opies of all the notices issued by the M

unicipality are properly filed and indexed.

 
9.6.3 

M
akh

ad
o

 M
u

n
icip

ality
 

            R
ep

o
rt N

o
 24 o

f 2008/09

Zim
babw

ean national finally laid to rest

9.6.3.1 O
P

P received a com
plaint from

 the ow
ner of LTT Funeral S

upplies (the C
om

plainant), 
against M

akhado M
unicipality (the M

unicipality).

9.6.3.2 The com
plaint w

as that the M
unicipality refused the com

plainant perm
ission to conduct 

a pauper’s burial for a Zim
babw

ean national w
ho passed aw

ay in the area during February 
2007. 
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9.6.3.3 The M
unicipality, contended that allow

ing such a burial w
ould be contrary to their policy, 

w
hich stipulated that such services could only be accorded to deceased persons w

hose 
fam

ilies or next of kin could not be traced.  It argued that although the deceased w
as a 

foreign national, his fam
ily could be traced to Zim

babw
e, and it w

as alleged that they could 
not collect the corpse due to financial constraints.

9.6.3.4 The O
P

P decided to bring the tw
o parties together in order to facilitate a m

utually accep-
table settlem

ent.
9.6.3.5 A m

eeting w
as held w

ith the parties, and it w
as agreed that once the S

A
P

S
 could 

confirm
 that the deceased fam

ily or the next of kin could not be traced, the M
unicipality 

w
ould reconsider the C

om
plainant’s application.

9.6.3.6 The O
P

P also facilitated the subm
ission of a statem

ent by the S
A

P
S

 confirm
ing that they 

tried to trace the fam
ily of the deceased in Zim

babw
e w

ithout success.

9.6.3.7 U
pon receipt of the statem

ent from
 the SAPS, the M

unicipality approved the C
om

plainant’s 
application, and the deceased w

as buried on 08 February 2008.
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10.1 

O
W

N
 IN

IT
IA

T
IV

E
 IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

 
 

10.1.1 
E

sko
m

 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 30 o
f 2008/09

C
onflict of interest in aw

arding E
skom

 tender

10.1.1.1 O
P

P conducted an ow
n initiative investigation into an allegation m

ade by a new
spaper 

of im
proper conduct by the form

er C
hairperson of the E

skom
 H

oldings Lim
ited (E

skom
) 

B
oard of D

irectors, relating to the aw
arding of a contract.

10.1.1.2 It w
as alleged that a contract for the construction of boiler w

orks for a new
 coal fired 

pow
er station to be built in the Lephalale area, know

n as the M
edupi P

ow
er S

tation, w
as 

aw
arded by E

skom
 to a com

pany in w
hich the A

frican N
ational C

ongress (A
N

C
) has an 

interest.  A
t the tim

e of aw
arding of the contract, M

r M
oosa w

as the C
hairperson of the 

E
skom

 B
oard of D

irectors, and as a m
em

ber of the N
ational E

xecutive C
om

m
ittee of the 

A
N

C
, therefore, it w

as alleged there w
as a  a conflict of interest.

10.1.1.3 M
s H

 Zille of the D
em

ocratic A
lliance also lodged a com

plaint, based solely on a new
s-

paper report, in connection w
ith the said m

atter. S
he further requested an investigation of 

several other allegations relating to private business dealings and the affairs of the A
N

C
.

10.1.1.4 E
skom

 is a public entity that falls under the jurisdiction of the P
ublic P

rotector. S
ince, 

the P
ublic P

rotector does not have the pow
ers to investigate the affairs and relationships 

of private entities, such as political parties, private institutions and businesses, the other 
allegations referred to by M

s Zille could not be investigated.

10.1.1.5 From
 the investigation it w

as found that:
10.1.1.5.1 There w

as a conflict betw
een the personal interest of M

r M
oosa in the A

N
C

 
 

and his duty tow
ards E

skom
 at the tim

e w
hen the B

oard resolved to aw
ard the M

edupi 
B

oiler C
ontract to the H

itachi C
onsortium

, in w
hich the A

N
C

 has an interest;

10.1.1.5.2 M
r M

oosa failed to m
anage his said conflict of interests in com

pliance w
ith the 

C
onflict of Interest P

olicy of E
skom

 and therefore acted im
properly;

10.1.1.5.3 The contract that w
as aw

arded to the H
itachi C

onsortium
 w

as not in any w
ay 

affected by M
r M

oosa’s im
proper conduct;

10.1.1.5.4 The aw
arding of the contract by E

skom
 to an entity in w

hich the ruling party has an 
interest w

as not unlaw
ful; and

10. SYSTEM
IC

 A
N

D
 O

W
N

 IN
ITIATIVE IN

VESTIG
ATIO

N
S
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10.1.1.5.5 It is desirable that the conducting of business betw
een governm

ent institutions or 
public entities and political parties should be regulated by legislation.

10.1.1.6 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that:
10.1.1.6.1   E

skom
’s C

om
pany S

ecretary take urgent steps to ensure that all the m
em

bers 
 

of the B
oard of D

irectors are provided w
ith a copy of E

skom
’s C

onflict of Interest P
olicy 

and the G
uidelines for D

irectors, and are briefed on its application and on the law
 

applicable to conflict of interests;  and

10.1.1.6.2 The M
inister of P

ublic E
nterprises consider developing legislation for subm

ission 
to P

arliam
ent to regulate the conducting of business betw

een governm
ent entities and 

political parties.

 
10.1.2 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f S

o
cial D

evelo
p

m
en

t &
 K

Z
N

 P
ro

vin
cial D

ep
artm

en
t o

f S
o

cial S
ervices  

 
 

an
d

 P
o

p
u

latio
n

 D
evelo

p
m

en
t 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 4 o

f 2008/09

D
ispute over re-advertising of tender for distribution of food parcels did not cause ‘hard-

ship to thousands of people ’

10.1.2.1 O
P

P conducted an ow
n initiative investigation into an allegation published by a new

s-
paper that a dispute betw

een the national D
epartm

ent of S
ocial D

evelopm
ent and the 

K
w

aZulu-N
atal P

rovincial D
epartm

ent of S
ocial S

ervices and P
opulation D

evelopm
ent in 

connection w
ith the re-advertising of a tender for the distribution of food parcels, w

as causing 
further hardship to thousands of im

poverished people in K
w

aZulu-N
atal.

10.1.2.2 From
 the investigation it appeared that the decision of the D

epartm
ent of 

 
S

ocial D
evelopm

ent to aw
ard the said tender w

as set aside by the H
igh C

ourt and  
readvertising of the tender w

as ordered.

10.1.2.3 The court application and subsequent appeal by the D
epartm

ent caused substantial 
delay in the delivery of m

uch needed assistance to a large group of im
poverished people 

in the K
w

aZulu-N
atal province.

10.1.2.4 From
 the judgm

ents of the court a quo and the S
uprem

e C
ourt of A

ppeal it  is clear that 
the delay could have been avoided had the D

epartm
ent taken reasonable care to com

ply 
w

ith the relevant provisions of the C
onstitution and the legislation regulating the tender 

process in the public service.
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10.1.2.5 S
ubsequent to the court judgm

ent, the N
ational Food E

m
ergency P

rogram
m

e to w
hich 

the tender w
as related w

as term
inated by the C

abinet and its funding redirected to broader 
w

elfare objectives.

10.1.2.6 C
urrently, the D

epartm
ent of S

ocial D
evelopm

ent is running a social relief  program
m

e 
in term

s of w
hich it provides tem

porary relief to those in need,  in the form
 of food parcels, 

vouchers or cash paym
ents to buy food. This program

m
e form

s part of the G
overnm

ent’s 
com

m
itm

ent tow
ards poverty relief.

10.1.2.7 There w
as no dispute about re-advertising the tender betw

een the N
ational D

epartm
ent 

of S
ocial D

evelopm
ent and the K

w
aZulu-N

atal provincial D
epartm

ent of S
ocial S

ervices 
and P

opulation D
evelopm

ent after judgm
ent in regard to the review

 application w
as deliv-

ered.

10.1.2.8 It w
as consequently found that the allegation that a dispute betw

een the  D
epartm

ent 
of S

ocial D
evelopm

ent and the K
w

azulu-N
atal D

epartm
ent of S

ocial S
ervices and P

opula-
tion D

evelopm
ent in connection w

ith re-advertising a tender relating to the N
ational Food 

E
m

ergency P
rogram

m
e caused hardship to thousands of people in the province, w

as 
unfounded.

10.1.2.9 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the D
irector-G

eneral of the D
epartm

ent of 
S

ocial D
evelopm

ent take urgent steps to ensure that the shortcom
ings in the D

epartm
ent’s 

tender referred to by the S
uprem

e C
ourt of A

ppeal have been adequately addressed to 
prevent a recurrence of sim

ilar deficiencies.

 
10.1.3  M

o
ses K

o
tan

e M
u

n
icip

ality 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 13 o
f 2008/09

C
onduct of m

unicipality in advertising position of chef for m
ayoral house not 

im
proper 

10.1.3.1 O
P

P, on ow
n initiative, decided to investigate the propriety of an advertisem

ent for a 
perm

anent position of a chef for the m
ayoral house, placed by the M

oses K
otane  

Local M
unicipality (M

unicipality). The advert, w
hich appeared in the S

ow
etan new

spaper 
of 29 O

ctober 2007, raised public concerns.

10.1.3.2 From
 the investigation into the m

atter, it appeared that the council of the M
unicipality took 

a resolution in A
ugust 2007 to appoint  a chef for the m

ayoral house at a salary of R
65 561 

per annum
, and to appoint other staff for cleaning, gardening and security services.  
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10.1.3.3 It further appeared that the M
unicipality at a later stage decided not to proceed w

ith the 
said appointm

ent, as the m
unicipal canteen w

as under construction and the idea w
as to 

rather appoint a chef in the canteen.

10.1.3.4 The  P
ublic P

rotector found that:
10.1.3.4.1  The advert for the position of chef in the m

ayoral residence w
as open to an 

interpretation that the position w
as created for the m

ayor’s personal benefit - this w
ould 

have been im
proper;

10.1.3.4.2  The supporting inform
ation indicated that the creation of the position w

as intended 
to save on expenditure relating to catering services for the m

ayor’s official functions and 
w

as not intended for the M
ayor’s personal benefit;

10.1.3.4.3    A
s the M

unicipality did not appoint a chef in term
s of the advert, any potential 

m
isunderstanding about the intention w

ith the post, becom
es academ

ic;

10.1.3.4.4   E
xcept for the w

ording of the advert, no evidence could be found to justify the 
conclusion that the position w

as a personal benefit to the M
ayor. 

10.1.3.4.5   H
ow

ever, to appoint a chef in the m
ayoral residence w

ould alw
ays lead to the 

perception that it is for the private benefit of the M
ayor, unless explicitly stated otherw

ise 
in the job description;

10.1.3.4.6 The new
 developm

ent, nam
ely to appoint a chef in the m

unicipal canteen, w
ho 

w
ould also cater for official functions of the m

ayor, rem
oved any m

isunderstanding of 
the intention w

ith the post.  In view
 thereof, the conduct of the M

unicipality could not be 
found to be im

proper or to result in an im
propriety.

 
10.1.4  D

ep
artm

en
t o

f E
d

u
catio

n
 (M

p
u

m
alan

g
a)

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 16 o

f 2008/09

Tem
porary E

ducator im
properly prejudiced by non-paym

ent of salaries  

10.1.4.1 O
P

P conducted an ow
n initiative investigation into an allegation of undue delay in the 

paym
ent of salary benefits by the M

pum
alanga P

rovincial D
epartm

ent of E
ducation.

10.1.4.2 In June 2007, it cam
e to the attention of O

PP through m
edia reports that the com

plainant, 
an educator em

ployed by the M
pum

alanga P
rovincial D

epartm
ent of E

ducation, had not 
received salary benefits since A

pril 2007. The com
plainant w

as a tem
porary em

ployee at a 
school in M

iddelburg, M
pum

alanga P
rovince.  
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10.1.4.3 The follow
ing key findings w

ere m
ade:

7.1.4.3.1 The com
plainant w

as im
properly prejudiced as a result of the undue delay in the 

processing of her salary benefits;

10.1.4.3.2  The prim
ary cause of the undue delay can be attributed to the failure 

 
by the P

rovincial D
epartm

ent to activate the salary paym
ent on the P

ersal system
 in 

tim
e.

10.1.4.3.3  A
ll tem

porary educators have since been paid in full. 

10.1.4.3.4  The delay only occurs w
hen a tem

porary educator is appointed for the first tim
e. 

The tem
porary educator, for all subsequent appointm

ents, keeps the P
ersal num

ber 
aw

arded and the D
epartm

ent only activates the P
ersal num

ber on subsequent ap-
pointm

ents. The school P
rincipal is aw

are of the difficulties w
ith first tim

e tem
porary 

appointees, and w
ill attem

pt to prevent such future recurrence

 
10.1.5  S

o
u

th
 A

frican
 S

o
cial S

ecu
rity A

g
en

cy
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 27 o
f 2008/09

P
ensioner’s grant reinstated, three-year arrears also paid

10.1.5.1 O
P

P investigated on an ow
n initiative the plight of the B

eneficiary, w
hose old age grant 

w
as suspended by the S

outh A
frican S

ocial S
ecurity A

gency (S
A

S
S

A
) for alm

ost three 
years because she allegedly shared an identity num

ber w
ith som

eone in the Free S
tate 

P
rovince.  The B

eneficiary’s plight w
as reported by the C

apricorn Voice new
spaper.

10.1.5.2 It w
as found that the B

eneficiary’s old age grant w
as suspended because it w

as alleged 
that she shared an identity num

ber w
ith som

eone in the Free S
tate P

rovince. S
he w

as 
provided w

ith food parcels for three m
onths w

hen S
A

S
S

A indicated that it w
as sorting out 

the problem
.

10.1.5.3 The B
eneficiary w

as re-issued a new
 identity docum

ent, bearing the sam
e identity 

num
ber and there w

as no valid reason for the suspension of the B
eneficiary’s grant there-

fore the conduct by S
A

S
S

A w
as irregular.

10.1.5.4 It took S
A

S
S

A alm
ost three years to reinstate the grant, and no alternative m

eans of 
subsistence w

as put in place to sustain the B
eneficiary and her fam

ily w
hile the grant w

as 
suspended as is the practice in cases of this nature.

10.1.5.5 The B
eneficiary’s grant w

as reinstated in S
eptem

ber 2008, after the intervention by the 
O

P
P and she received the arrears for a period of three years.

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   67
2009/08/31   02:40:45 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

68

10.1.5.6 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the R
egional E

xecutive M
anager of S

A
S

S
A 

Lim
popo m

ust appoint a task team
, as undertaken, to investigate the issue of suspended 

grants due to the sharing of identity num
bers, w

ith im
m

ediate effect. Further w
hen a grant 

is suspended, S
A

S
S

A should provide the recipient w
ith food parcels for the entire period 

of the investigation in order to sustain him
/her w

hile it resolves the problem
 that led to the 

suspension of the grant. It w
as also recom

m
ended that S

A
S

S
A should pay interest on the 

arrear am
ount at the prescribed rates.

 
10.1.6  D

ep
artm

en
t o

f H
o

m
e A

ffairs
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 34 o
f 2008/09

E
xpenditure on flow

ers for D
eputy M

inister’s w
ife w

as irregular, fruitless and 
w

asteful

10.1.6.1 O
P

P
 conducted an investigation on ow

n initiative into allegations that the D
eputy 

M
inister of H

om
e A

ffairs, M
r M

 K
 N

 G
igaba M

P, m
isappropriated public funds. It w

as  
alleged that M

r G
igaba sent flow

ers to his w
ife at the expense of the D

epartm
ent of H

om
e 

A
ffairs (the D

epartm
ent),  and that the O

ffice  of the D
eputy M

inister paid for flight tickets 
and car rental for several private individuals, on num

erous occasions.

10.1.6.2 The investigation revealed that the allegations of m
isappropriation of public funds by  

M
r G

igaba w
ere investigated by the A

ccounting O
fficer of the D

epartm
ent, as he w

as  
required to do in term

s of the P
FM

A
, 1999. It w

as noted that the error in respect of the 
flow

ers sent to his w
ife w

as adm
itted and that the expenditure concerned had been reim

-
bursed by M

r G
igaba.

10.1.6.3 From
 the investigations and deliberations of the P

ortfolio C
om

m
ittee, it appeared that the 

financial control m
echanism

s of the O
ffice of the D

eputy M
inister need to be im

proved.

10.1.6.4 N
o further evidence of irregular, unauthorised or fruitless and w

asteful expenditure 
by the O

ffice of the D
eputy M

inister could be found. M
r G

igaba’s failure, w
ithout any just 

cause, to cooperate properly, diligently and w
ithout delay w

ith the investigation w
as im

-
proper and unnecessarily delayed the conclusion thereof, w

hich w
as in the public interest.

10.1.6.5 The key findings m
ade from

 the investigation w
ere that:

10.1.6.5.1  The expenditure incurred by the O
ffice  of the D

eputy M
inister in respect of flow

ers 
sent to M

r G
igaba’s w

ife w
as irregular and fruitless and w

asteful;  and

10.1.6.5.2  The allegations relating to travelling expenses incurred by the O
ffice of the  

                D
eputy M

inister w
ere unfounded.
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10.1.6.6 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that:
10.1.6.6.1  The S

peaker of the N
ational A

ssem
bly take appropriate steps to ensure that 

         M
r G

igaba’s failure to com
ply w

ith his constitutional obligation to co-operate  
         properly w

ith O
P

P is addressed;  and

10.1.6.6.2 The D
irector-G

eneral of the D
epartm

ent im
proves the financial control m

echanism
s 

of the O
ffice of the D

eputy M
inister of H

om
e A

ffairs.

 
10.1.7  G

o
vern

m
en

t E
m

p
lo

yee P
en

sio
n

 F
u

n
d

 an
d

 C
o

m
p

en
satio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 35 o
f 2008/09

D
elay in paym

ent of benefits as D
eceased w

as not a registered taxpayer

10.1.7.1 O
P

P conducted an investigation, on ow
n initiative, into an allegation of undue delay in 

the paym
ent of pension and other benefits to the w

idow
 and children of a D

eceased public 
servant.

10.1.7.2 It cam
e to the attention of the O

P
P that the C

om
plainant had not received any pension 

benefits due to her. The C
om

plainant indicated that she had com
pleted and subm

itted all 
the required docum

ents and copies of docum
ents as prescribed by the G

overnm
ent 

E
m

ployees P
ension Law

 and R
ules.

10.1.7.3 S
he indicated that the H

um
an R

esource D
epartm

ent at the C
om

pensation Fund in-
form

ed her that the necessary docum
ents w

ere subm
itted to the D

epartm
ent of Labour (the 

D
epartm

ent). H
ow

ever w
hen she enquired, the D

epartm
ent denied receipt of docum

ents. 
W

hen contacted by the O
P

P, the C
om

plainant had not received the funeral benefit or other 
benefits payable to her by the G

overnm
ent E

m
ployees P

ension Fund (G
E

P
F) and the 

D
epartm

ent.

10.1.7.4 It w
as found that the delay in the paym

ent of benefits to the C
om

plainant w
as as a result 

of the fact that the deceased w
as not registered as a taxpayer as required by the Incom

e 
Tax A

ct, 1962. Further the D
epartm

ent did not follow
 the prescripts of the P

ublic S
ervice 

C
oordinating B

argaining C
ouncil (P

S
C

B
C

) R
esolution 7 of  2000 by not paying the leave 

gratuity to the w
idow

 of the deceased but dem
anding a letter of executorship and m

aking 
paym

ent to the estate late account.

10.1.7.5 The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the D
epartm

ent of Labour m
ust ensure that the 

prescripts of PSC
BC

 R
esolution 7 of 2000 in respect of the paym

ent of the leave gratuity of a 
deceased em

ployee be adhered to. W
here tax directives are declined by S

outh  A
frica

n 
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R
evenue S

ervice (S
A

R
S

), G
E

P
F m

ust ensure that the beneficiaries are im
m

ediately in-
form

ed to enable them
 to contact S

A
R

S
 to rectify any problem

s.

10.2 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
IC

 IN
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

S

 
10.2.1     G

o
vern

m
en

t E
m

p
lo

yees P
en

sio
n

 F
u

n
d

 
 

 
R

ep
o

rt N
o

 20 o
f 2008/09

 G
E

P
F m

ust pay, w
ith interest, the am

ount deducted from
 C

om
plainant’s pension benefits 

10.2.1.1 O
P

P investigated a com
plaint relating to the alleged im

proper deduction of pension 
benefits of a form

er m
em

ber of the S
outh A

frican P
olice S

ervice (S
A

P
S

);

10.2.1.2 It w
as found that the procedure prescribed by G

overnm
ent E

m
ployees P

ension Fund 
(G

E
P

F) in its P
rocedure M

anual for the recovery of a departm
ental debt in term

s of section 
21(3) of the G

overnm
ent E

m
ployees P

ension Law
, 1996 (G

E
P Law

) from
 the pension 

benefits of the C
om

plainant w
as not com

plied w
ith, as the follow

ing m
andatory docum

enta-
tion w

as not received by G
E

P
F;

10.2.1.2.1 P
roof that the C

om
plainant had been inform

ed of the total financial liabilities and 
debt that w

as claim
ed against her pension benefits;  and

10.2.1.2.2 A
n unequivocal adm

ission of liability for the purposes of paragraphs 3.4.3.2 and 
3.4.4.3 of the P

rocedure M
anual;  or

10.2.1.2.3 A copy of a C
ourt order or the m

em
ber’s approval in w

riting.

10.2.1.3 It w
as furtherm

ore found that the decision to recover the departm
ental debt from

 the 
C

om
plainant’s pension benefits did not com

ply w
ith the requirem

ents of section 3 of the 
P

rom
otion of A

dm
inistrative Justice A

ct, 2000 (PA
JA

) and w
as therefore procedurally 

unfair.

10.2.1.4 The P
ublic P

rotector therefore recom
m

ended that G
E

P
F take urgent steps to ensure 

that the am
ount deducted from

 the pension benefit of the C
om

plainant, is paid to her, 
together w

ith interest thereon at the rate prescribed in the G
E

P Law
, calculated from

 the 
date of the deduction to date of paym

ent.

10.2.1.5 O
P

P received a num
ber of sim

ilar com
plaints from

 other ex-public servants.  Further 
enquiries revealed that w

hile G
E

P
F rely on em

ployer departm
ents to com

ply w
ith the 

required prescripts w
hen subm

itting claim
s to G

E
P

F for outstanding departm
ental debt 

from
 pension benefits, the em

ployer departm
ents generally fail to advise the m

em
bers 
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in advance of their financial liabilities tow
ards the em

ployer and the intention to claim
 the 

departm
ental debt from

 the em
ployee’s pension benefits.  In m

any instances the deduction 
of the debt occurred w

ithout the know
ledge or consent of the em

ployee or w
ithout an order 

of a court of law
, depending on the applicable provision of the G

E
P Law

.  The G
E

P
F further 

confirm
ed that em

ployer departm
ents have in the past been allow

ed to claim
 deduction of 

any debt, including contractual debt, such as overpaid salaries.

10.2.1.6 It is w
idely acknow

ledged that “the legislature regards pension assets as special assets 
deserving of enhanced protection.”  It is therefore a source of concern that the conduct 
of the governm

ent agencies involved m
ight adversely affect the pension interest of other 

m
em

bers of the G
E

P
F (about 1, 1 m

illion em
ployees) w

hen they exit the G
E

P
F in future.  

10.2.1.7 It w
as found that em

ployer departm
ents generally fail to furnish the G

E
P

F w
ith sufficient 

inform
ation and docum

entation to enable it to exercise its discretion properly and inde-
pendently, to determ

ine the m
em

bers’ liability either in term
s of the relevant provisions of 

the G
E

P Law
 in respect of the am

ount claim
ed from

 the pension benefits by the em
ployer 

departm
ent.  It w

as how
ever, reiterated that it rem

ained the G
E

P
F’s responsibility to ensure 

that the decision is taken in com
pliance w

ith the requirem
ents of the G

E
P Law

, the G
E

P
F 

R
ules, the P

rocedure M
anual, and PA

JA in particular.

10.2.1.8 The current internal procedures and practices of the G
E

P
F are falling short of som

e of 
the m

andatory requirem
ents for good adm

inistrative practice (including recognition of the 
right of em

ployees to m
ake representations directly to the G

E
P

F before a decision is m
ade 

on the deduction of the debt from
 their pension benefits), and that these shortcom

ings m
ay 

am
ount to system

-w
ide procedural deficiencies in the decision-m

aking process by G
E

P
F 

in respect of claim
s in term

s of the relevant provisions of the G
E

P Law
.

10.2.1.9 The view
 is held that the policy of G

E
P

F as recorded in the P
rocedure M

anual or other 
com

m
unications to em

ployer departm
ents in term

s of section 7 of the G
E

P Law
, do not 

provide sufficient protection of the pension interests of m
em

bers of the G
E

P
F in term

s of 
the set-off of debt claim

ed by em
ployer departm

ents.

10.2.1.10 It is recom
m

ended that:
10.2.1.10.1 The G

E
P

F take urgent steps to ensure that the am
ount deducted from

 the 
pension benefits of the C

om
plainant, is paid to her w

ith interest;

10.2.1.10.2 M
easures are im

plem
ented to ensure com

pliance by G
EPF as w

ell as contributing 
em

ployer departm
ents w

ith the relevant provisions of the G
E

P Law
 and the m

andatory 
requirem

ents for the recovery of departm
ental debt in term

s of the P
rocedure M

anual;
10.2.1.10.3 The G

E
P

F review
 the policy docum

ents, including the P
rocedure M

anual and 
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the G
E

P
F R

ules that determ
ine the nature, form

 and m
anner in w

hich the em
ployer 

departm
ents are entitled to claim

 departm
ental debt from

 pension benefits to ensure 
that it m

eets the m
andatory requirem

ents and legal guidelines for the protection of the 
pension interests of m

em
bers of G

E
P

F and the set-off of debt payable to em
ployer 

departm
ents; and

10.2.10.4 The G
E

P
F form

ally and adequately record its decisions in term
s of the relevant pro-

visions of G
E

P Law
 and the reasons for allow

ing or refusing a claim
 to indicate diligent 

com
pliance w

ith its legal obligations.

10.2.10.5 The G
EPF has already indicated that it w

ould urgently review
 its policy and practices 

in respect of the deduction of departm
ental debt.

 
10.2.2 

D
ep

artm
en

t o
f Ju

stice an
d

 C
o

n
stitu

tio
n

al D
evelo

p
m

en
t

 
             R

ep
o

rt N
o

 10 o
f 2008/09

U
ndue delays in the processing of crim

inal appeals involving prisoners
 10.2.2.1 O

P
P receives num

erous com
plaints on a regular basis from

 prisoners around the 
country regarding crim

inal appeals.  These com
plaints m

ainly relate to alleged:
10.2.2.1.1 Lack of com

m
unication from

 the courts;

10.2.2.1.2 Long and undue delays in determ
ining hearing dates;  and

10.2.2.1.3 Insufficient support to prisoners w
ith the prosecution of their appeals.

10.2.2.2 A
s com

plaints from
 prisoners regarding their appeals account for a significant num

ber 
of m

atters dealt w
ith by the O

P
P, it w

as resolved to conduct a system
ic investigation into 

the m
atter in term

s of section 6 of the P
ublic P

rotector A
ct, 1994.  The aim

 w
as to determ

ine 
w

hether the com
plaints relating to appeals could be attributed to system

ic deficiencies in 
the appeal process.

10.2.2.3 The investigation team
 from

 the O
P

P consulted w
ith various stakeholders in this proc-

ess, including prisoners, court officials, officials of the Legal A
id B

oard and Justice C
entres, 

officials from
 the D

epartm
ent of C

orrectional S
ervices, the N

ational and D
eputy N

ational 
D

irectors of the N
ational P

rosecuting A
uthority, and senior officials of the D

epartm
ent of 

Justice and C
onstitutional D

evelopm
ent.

10.2.2.4 In the process it w
as noted that the N

ational P
rosecuting A

uthority and O
ffices of the 

D
irectors of P

ublic P
rosecution (D

P
P

) have initiated a num
ber of strategies, together w

ith 
other stakeholders, to address the backlog of appeals in their offices and to reduce the 
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turnaround tim
e for the finalisation of appeals.

10.2.2.5 The m
ain findings from

 the investigation w
ere that:

10.2.2.5.1 There w
ere inordinate delays of up to several years in the processing of crim

inal 
appeals involving prisoners;

10.2.2.5.2 These delays constitute a serious infringem
ent of the rights of the appellants to 

speedy and fair adm
inistration of justice as contem

plated in section 35(3) of the C
onsti-

tution; place an unnecessary burden on the adm
inistration of the correctional facilities 

by the D
epartm

ent of C
orrectional S

ervices, as w
ell as the capacity of these facilities, 

and im
pact negatively on the adm

inistration of justice in the courts;

10.2.2.5.3 This situation is not com
patible w

ith the C
onstitutional dispensation of this coun-

try and it is indeed of grave concern that the concerns raised by different Judges and 
C

ourts of A
ppeal have not been taken seriously by the D

epartm
ent of Justice and 

C
onstitutional D

evelopm
ent and the officials concerned;

10.2.2.5.4 The com
m

unication betw
een officials of the courts and the D

P
P offices on the one 

hand and the D
epartm

ent of C
orrectional S

ervices and the prisoners on the other hand, 
is appalling to say the least.  It is unacceptable that the appellants (and the D

epartm
ent 

of C
orrectional S

ervices as go-betw
een) are expected to w

ait for the years that it som
e-

tim
es takes for the applications and appeals to be processed, w

ithout any inform
ation 

on the status, process, or outcom
e of their appeals; and.

10.2.2.5.4    There are various areas of adm
inistration of appeals in the low

er courts that    
                  are defective and are contributing to the undue delays.  These areas  
                  include: 

Logistical problem
s and the insufficient level of perform

ance by som
e of the 

a. 
service providers responsible for the transcription of the recordings;
The need to reconstruct records because of lost and dam

aged recordings as a 
b. 

result of inadequate record keeping and security arrangem
ents;

10.2.2.5.5  A lack of - and outdated - task directives and rules on the duties and obligations 
of the different court officials involved in the adm

inistration of appeals, including the 
presiding officer, the P

ublic P
rosecutor and the C

lerk of the C
ourt;

10.2.2.5.6  The lack of capacity to deal w
ith the assigned w

orkload;

10.2.2.5.7 The ineffective m
anagem

ent and supervision of the leave-to-appeal process and 
the subsequent preparation and subm

ission of the court records to the D
P

P
/ R

egistrar; 
and

10.2.2.5.8 The failure by the D
epartm

ent of C
orrectional S

ervices to keep the clerks 
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                inform
ed of the transfer and m

ovem
ent of prisoners,

10.2.2.6    In the D
ivisions of the H

igh C
ourt the allocation of hearing dates is affected by:–

D
elays in the subm

ission of the court records by the court officials of the trial 
a. 

courts;

Incorrect or incom
plete court records;

b. 

The failure by the appellant or Legal A
id B

oard representative to tim
eously file 

c. 
proper heads of argum

ent and/ or pow
er of attorney;

A lack of judicial capacity to deal w
ith the num

ber of pending appeals;
d. 

10.2.2.7 D
elays w

ere also caused by the tim
e that it took the Legal A

id B
oard and Justice C

en-
tres to trace unrepresented appellants for the purposes of legal representation;

10.2.2.8 The situation is aggravated by the fact that neither the P
rosecuting  A

uthority w
ho is 

tasked w
ith the set dow

n of the m
atters, nor the trial court officials, w

ho are responsible for 
the preparation of the court records, is taking responsibility for the m

onitoring and expedi-
tious adm

inistration of the appeals process subsequent to the granting of leave to appeal;  
and

10.2.2.9 The available resources and structures w
ithin the prisons to assist prisoners w

ith 
appeals w

ere insufficient.  A lack of know
ledge and inform

ation on the part of prisoner 
appellants, w

ho represent them
selves, is resulting in deficient, incom

plete or m
isdirected 

applications or petitions that do not reach the correct forum
, or cannot be registered or 

enrolled for adjudication.

10.2.2.9 
The P

ublic P
rotector recom

m
ended that:

10.2.2.9.1 The D
epartm

ent of Justice and C
onstitutional D

evelopm
ent m

ust:
C

onsider extending the current initiative by the N
PA to determ

ine and deal w
ith the 

a. 
backlog of appeals, to the M

agistrates O
ffices. It is im

perative that this exercise 
include an audit of low

er court appeals that have not yet reached the O
ffices  of 

the D
P

P

P
rioritise the adm

inistration of crim
inal appeals in the low

er and the H
igh C

ourts in 
b. 

the strategic and operational plans of the D
epartm

ent;

D
evelop a clear strategy to deal w

ith the current situation to address the causes for 
c. 

delays identified in this report and in term
s of the D

epartm
ent’s ow

n assessm
ent;

R
eview

 the R
ules of C

ourt to ensure that the duties of the C
lerks and the R

egi-
d. 
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strars in respect of the adm
inistration of crim

inal appeals are aligned to the current 
law

;

C
onsider a policy or directive or m

anual to guide, inform
 and supplem

ent the duties 
e. 

of the relevant court officials w
ith regard to the processing of appeals;

A
ddress capacity lim

itations and hum
an resource problem

s in the courts;
f. 

Take steps to ensure com
pliance w

ith the constitutional requirem
ents of fair adm

in-
g. 

istration and the principles of B
atho P

ele in the processing of appeals, in particular 
com

m
unicating the progress, status and outcom

e of appeals to the relevant par-
ties;

E
nsure com

pliance w
ith the agreed standards and tim

efram
es by external service 

h. 
providers responsible for the transcription of court records and investigate the 
appointm

ent of specific and dedicated transcribers to deal exclusively w
ith appeals 

from
 prisoners, in particular those w

ho are not represented;

Im
prove control over the storage, m

ovem
ent and safekeeping of the recordings 

i. 
and records of crim

inal trials;

A
ddress the lack of filing and storage system

s and facilities at som
e courts;

j. 

E
xtend the current initiatives for the electronic tracking and m

anagem
ent of cases 

k. 
in the courts to include post- trial proceedings, to enable the appeals process to be 
m

anaged and m
onitored electronically;

C
onsult w

ith the N
ational P

rosecuting A
uthority on its role in the m

onitoring of the 
l. 

appeal process in the M
agistrates’ and H

igh C
ourts from

 the tim
e that leave to 

appeal w
as granted;

E
stablish and im

plem
ent a proper com

plaints m
anagem

ent system
 and procedure  

m
. 

to deal w
ith prisoner com

plaints in respect of the adm
inistration of their appeals;  

and

C
onsider the establishm

ent of a forum
 consisting of representatives (including 

n. 
judicial officers) from

 the low
er courts, H

igh C
ourts, the O

ffices P
P

s of the D
irec-

tors of P
ublic P

rosecutions, as w
ell as representatives from

 the D
epartm

ent of 
C

orrectional S
ervices and Legal A

id B
oard, to deal w

ith the issue of delays in the 
processing of crim

inal appeals.
 

10.2.2.9.2 The D
epartm

ent of C
orrectional S

ervices m
ust:
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7.2.2.9.1 D

eterm
ine w

hat is required to provide prisoners adequate, effective and 
 

 
m

eaningful assistance in all m
atters dealing w

ith access to the courts, including:

A
ssigning specific duties in this regard to designated officials in the  

 
a. 

records or adm
inistration offices;

E
nsuring that such designated officials have the necessary skills and training to 

b. 
provide prisoners w

ith inform
ation and assistance to facilitate proper access to the 

courts (excluding the providing of legal advice);  and

D
eveloping m

inim
um

 operational and perform
ance standards in respect of these 

c. 
duties in line w

ith international standards and best practice to ensure:
A

ccess to his/her law
yer or the Legal A

id B
oard if required by the prisoner;

i. 
A

ccess to any prescribed form
s and legal docum

ents necessary to lodge an 
ii. 

application for leave to appeal; and
The assistance of a trained and dedicated person w

ithin the prison to 
iii. 

provide the prisoners w
ith legal, procedural inform

ation (not legal advice) 
required to lodge an application for leave to appeal to the correct forum

.
 P

rovide prisoners w
ith an education brochure or booklet on the appeal 

iv. 
process and the adm

inistrative procedures and steps that are taken to pro-
secute an appeal;  and
S

et up a com
plaints m

echanism
 together w

ith the D
epartm

ent of Justice 
v. 

and C
onstitutional D

evelopm
ent at regional level w

here com
plaints from

 
prisoners about inaction, delays or lack of response from

 the C
lerks of the 

C
ourt and/ or R

egistrars of the H
igh C

ourt could be referred.

 
10.2.3  G

o
vern

m
en

t E
m

p
lo

yees P
en

sio
n

 F
u

n
d

 
 

R
ep

o
rt  N

o
 11 o

f 2008/09

D
elay  in the processing and paym

ent of pension benefits by the G
E

P
F

10.2.3.1 O
P

P had been inundated w
ith com

plaints about governm
ent em

ployee pension ben-
efits. These com

plaints account for a significant num
ber of the com

plaints dealt w
ith by the 

O
P

P, and relate m
ainly to undue delays w

ith the paym
ent of pension benefits, or to pension 

benefits that w
ere allegedly calculated incorrectly.

10.2.3.2 O
P

P had been dealing w
ith the com

plaints on a case-by-case basis and usually 
resolved com

plaints to the satisfaction of the com
plainants. D

ue to the fact that such inter-
ventions by the O

P
P did not reduce the inflow

 of com
plaints, O

P
P em

barked on a system
ic 

investigation into the deficiencies w
ith the processing of pension benefits payable to form

er 
governm

ent em
ployees and their dependants. The purpose w

as to identify patterns or sys-
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tem
ic deficiencies that contributed to the large num

ber of com
plaints received by the O

P
P, 

and to address these deficiencies.

10.2.3.3 The com
plaints received w

ere:
10.2.3.3.1 The delay in the paym

ent of benefits caused by both the G
overnm

ent E
m

ployees 
P

ension Fund (G
E

P
F) and the em

ployer departm
ents;

10.2.3.3.2 The failure of G
E

P
F and the em

ployer departm
ents to advise the com

plainants 
of the status or progress w

ith the processing of their pensions, and to provide reasons 
for delays;

10.2.3.3.3 The failure of G
E

P
F and em

ployer departm
ents to respond to queries of the 

com
plainants;

10.2.3.3.4 A
llegations that pension calculations w

ere incorrect; 

10.2.3.3.5 A
llegations that G

E
P

F refused to recalculate pension benefits;

10.2.3.3.6 A
llegations that the period of em

ploym
ent or m

em
bership w

as not correctly cap-
tured; and

10.2.3.3.7 A
llegations that pensionable service that had been bought back had not been 

properly calculated.

10.2.3.4 The follow
ing key findings w

ere m
ade:

10.2.3.4.1 There is a general delay in the processing and paym
ent of pension benefits to 

governm
ent em

ployees.

10.2.3.4.2 G
overnm

ent em
ployees, w

ho exited the system
, w

ere im
properly prejudiced as a 

result of the undue delays in the processing of their pension benefits.

10.2.3.4.3 The prim
ary source of undue delays could be attributed to the failure by em

ployer 
departm

ents to:
S

ubm
it the relevant exit docum

ents to P
ensions A

dm
inistration for m

em
bers w

ho 
a. 

have exited the Fund;
S

ubm
it correctly com

pleted docum
entation in accordance w

ith the P
rocedure  

b. 
M

anual com
piled by P

ensions A
dm

inistration; and
R

espond tim
eously to enquiries and requests for additional inform

ation w
hich in 

c. 
turn flow

ed from
 the lack of com

pliance w
ith the prescribed rules and procedures 

of the Fund, as w
ell as the lack of efficient and effective com

m
unication betw

een 
G

E
P

F and the em
ployer departm

ents. 
10.2.3.5 The P

ublic P
rotector m

ade the follow
ing recom

m
endations:
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10.2.3.5.1 Training by the D
epartm

ent of P
ublic S

ervice and A
dm

inistration (D
P

S
A

) and 
G

E
P

F of all relevant personnel, m
ust be provided in respect of the com

pletion of pen-
sion exit docum

ents and the payroll adm
inistration system

 that is applicable;

10.2.3.5.2 Em
ployer departm

ents and G
EPF should ensure proper com

pliance by em
ployees 

w
ith the provisions of the B

atho P
ele (P

eople First) principles for service delivery, as 
w

ell as the C
ode of C

onduct for P
ublic S

ervants;

10.2.3.5.3 The inform
ation on the applicable payroll system

s should be continuously updated 
and corrected by em

ployer departm
ents.  The payroll system

s w
ould then be able to 

generate updated exit docum
ents;.

10.2.3.5.4 A
n effective com

plaints handling m
echanism

 should be introduced at the em
ployer 

departm
ents and G

E
P

F, to identify problem
 areas im

m
ediately. A

n internal com
plaints 

process is an inform
al and flexible process and w

ill also provide an early opportunity for 
the em

ployer departm
ents and G

E
P

F to detect problem
s that are arising in the adm

in-
istration process;. 

10.2.3.5.5 The quality of inform
ation at the C

all C
entre of G

E
P

F should be im
proved; 

10.2.3.5.6  P
ersonnel at the C

all C
entre should be properly trained on the process of the 

paym
ent of exit benefits, and m

ust have access to inform
ation in respect of  m

em
bers 

exiting the system
;

10.2.3.5.7 The em
ployer departm

ents and G
E

P
F should publish service standards to ensure 

that pension benefits are paid w
ithin specified tim

efram
es. This w

ill foster good public 
adm

inistration that is acceptable, law
ful, fair, transparent and responsive;

10.2.3.5.8 G
E

P
F should introduce m

easures to ensure that all deficiencies are identified 
after the first subm

ission of exit docum
ents by the em

ployer departm
ents.  This w

ould 
prevent the continuous requests for updated and am

ended inform
ation by G

E
P

F from
 

em
ployer departm

ents;

10.2.3.5.9 G
E

P
F should take urgent steps to:

Im
prove the channels of com

m
unication w

ith governm
ent departm

ents at both 
a. 

national and provincial levels;
D

evelop its inform
ation technology infrastructure to com

prise m
ethods of com

m
u-

b. 
nication that w

ill allow
 for the facilitation of internal and external inform

ation to the 
em

ployer departm
ents to ensure quick and efficient response to all enquiries;

E
stablish provincial offices of G

E
P

F in all provinces and consider establishing 
c. 

district offices w
ithin the provinces w

here the need is identified;
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A
ppoint client m

anagers for the different national and provincial departm
ents;   

d. 
and

Issue clear instructions in respect of the requirem
ents w

here previous periods        
e. 

of service of em
ployees fell under other funds such as the previous Transkei,  

B
ophuthatsw

ana, Venda and C
iskei funds.

E
very departm

ent at national and provincial levels m
ust at regular intervals inform

             
f. 

em
ployees of the rules of G

E
P

F and the different options available to them
 w

hen            
exiting the Fund;

D
P

S
A should assist in the form

ation of a “P
ensions Forum

” at national and provin-
g. 

cial levels; and

G
E

P
F should urgently continue w

ith the project launched at the end of 2004 to 
h. 

identify and address all unprocessed exits w
ith the aim

 of ensuring that the w
ith-

draw
al docum

ents are received from
 all m

em
bers w

ho have term
inated their 

m
em

bership.

 
10.2.4 

G
o

vern
m

en
t E

m
p

lo
yeesP

en
sio

n
 F

u
n

d
 

 
 

R
ep

o
rt N

o
 36 o

f 2008/09

G
E

P
F and D

epartm
ents should act in the best interest of ex-em

ployees of form
er 

hom
elands 

10.2.4.1 O
P

P conducted a system
ic investigation in connection w

ith the unreasonable delays 
experienced by form

er em
ployees of the form

er self-governing territories and independent 
states (the H

om
elands) pertaining to the transfer of their pension benefits from

 the G
overn-

m
ent E

m
ployees P

ension Fund (G
E

P
F) to other pension funds, in term

s of the Transfer of 
S

taff to M
unicipalities A

ct, 1998.  The transfer of their pension benefits w
as linked to their 

transfer to m
unicipalities.

10.2.4.2 From
 the investigation it appeared that the process of the transfer of pension benefits 

com
m

enced in 2000. P
rogress w

as stalled by the lack of co-operation betw
een the stake-

holders and various other problem
s.  O

P
P intervened in 2006 and the process got back on 

track.  B
y January 2009, the transfer of pension m

em
bership and the associated funds of 

alm
ost all of the m

ore than 8000 em
ployees involved had been com

pleted and the G
E

P
F 

w
as com

m
itted to finalise the process by the end of M

arch 2009.

10.2.4.3 It w
as concluded that;:
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The G
E

P
F w

as unable to transfer the associated funds of affected m
em

bers, due 
a. 

to the fact that the prescribed legal requirem
ents regulating the transfer of benefits 

to the elected pension funds w
ere not adhered to;.

The transfer of the pension benefits w
as linked to the transfer of form

er em
ployees 

b. 
of the H

om
elands to m

unicipalities and w
as a cum

bersom
e process.  Initially the 

M
inister of P

rovincial and Local G
overnm

ent and the D
irector-G

eneral of the 
D

epartm
ent issued directives and guidance in respect of the process, w

hich w
ere 

not adhered to by the m
unicipalities involved.  The process w

as subsequently un-
duly delayed due to system

ic deficiencies in the adm
inistration of the D

epartm
ent 

and the m
unicipalities;.

The delay in the transfer process caused severe prejudice, traum
a and suffering 

c. 
to m

any form
er em

ployees, som
e of w

hom
 had to w

ait years after they retired, for 
the benefits that they w

ere entitled to; and .

It should serve as an exam
ple of the kind of irreversible prejudice that can be 

d. 
caused by a lack of tim

eous intervention and co-ordination by governm
ent institu-

tions responsible for assisting its em
ployees w

ith the im
plem

entation of a process 
that is in their interest.

10.2.4.4    The P
ublic P

rotector recom
m

ended that the governm
ent departm

ents concerned 
and the G

E
P

F m
ust in future and during the processing of em

ployees’ pension benefits 
ensure that they act in the best interest of the affected em

ployees to avoid
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11. LETTER
S O

F A
PPR

EC
IATIO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
PLA

IN
TS
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12.1 

S
ervice D

elivery

 
Table 12.1.1 – M

ain Services Provided A
nd Standards

M
AIN SERVICES

A
CTUAL CUSTOMERS

P
OTENTIAL 

CUSTOMERS
S

TANDARD OF SERVICE
A

CTUAL 
ACHIEVEMENT 

AGAINST STANDARDS

Outreach Initiatives 
Public in rural 
areas, government 
departments and 
institutions and, NGO’s

Public in 
rural areas, 
government 
departments and 
institutions and 
NGO’s

Six visiting points per 
province. Identification of 
systemic investigations

Seven hundred 
and sixty three 
(763) Clinics 
conducted

Effective and efficient 
investigations

Public in rural 
areas, government 
departments and 
institutions and NGO’s

Public in 
rural areas, 
government 
departments and 
institutions and 
NGO’s

Identification of root 
cause investigations, 
reports (general and 
parliamentary) on 
investigations completed.

Twelve thousand 
four hundred and 
thirty five (12 
435) complaints 
received 

Six thousand 
seven hundred 
and eighty (6780) 
brought forward

Thirteen thousand 
two hundred and 
twenty (13 220) 
finalised 

Five thousand 
nine hundred and 
ninety five (5995) 
carried over to the 
next financial year

Improve administrative 
support

OPP-internal clients 
OPP-internal 
clients

Appointment of staff to 
new regional offices. 
Appointment of outreach 
facilitators in all provinces.

Appointment 
of staff to new 
regional offices. 
Appointment of 
four (4) outreach 
facilitators in 
provinces.

12. H
U

M
A

N
 R

ESO
U

R
C

E M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T A

N
D

 D
EVELO

P-

M
EN

T12
1

S
i

D
li

M
EN

T
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Table 12.1.2 – C

onsultation A
rrangem

ents W
ith C

ustom
ers

T
YPE OF ARRANGEMENT

A
CTUAL C

USTOMERS
P

OTENTIAL        
C

USTOMERS
A

CTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Consultative forums with stakeholders
Community Development 
W

orkers (CDW
), NGOs and 

Government Departments

Public in rural 
areas, government 
departments insti-
tutions and NGOs

15 consultative forums established
Completed database of stakehold-
ers

 
Table 12.1.3 – Service D

elivery A
ccess Strategy

A
CCESS S

TRATEGY
A

CTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Awareness campaign  
Two hundred and thirty eight (238) meetings and workshops conducted

Outreach Facilitators
Four  (4)

W
orkshops 

Fourty five (45) 

Information Sessions
One hundred and ninety three (193)

Roadshows
Twenty two (22)

 
Table 12.1.4 – Service Inform

ation Tool

T
YPES OF INFORMATION TOOL

A
CTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Media
5 Media briefings organised

Electronic newsletter
One electronic newsletter produced 

Public Protector  Bulletin
Two bulletins produced

Brochures
Produced 100 000 brochures

Community meetings and workshops
Two hundred and thirty eight (238) meetings and workshops conducted

W
orkshops and meeting with Government                            

Departments, Institutions and NGO.
Forty five (45) workshops
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Table 12.1.5 – C

om
plaints M

echanism

C
OMPLAINTS M

ECHANISM
A

CTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Lodge complaints via correspondence/telephone
Twelve thousand four hundred and thirty five (12 435) complaints              
received

Own initiative investigations
Nine (9)  finalised

Identification of root cause and systemic investigations
Six (6) finalised

Clinics and visiting points
Seven hundred and sixty three (763) 

Receiving complaints at workshops and meetings
Outreach three thousand nine hundred and eighty three                                    
complaints (3983)

Visibility at functions (e.g. Rand Easter Show, Pretoria 
Show)

Conducted an exhibition at the Rand Easter Show and Pretoria Show

 
12.2    E

xp
en

d
itu

re 

 
Table 12.2.1 – Personnel C

osts B
y Program

m
e, 2008/09

P
ROGRAMME

T
OTAL             

E
XPENDITURE 

(R’000)

P
ERSONNEL 

E
XPENDITURE 

(R’000)

T
RAINING           

E
XPENDITURE

(R’000)

P
ROFESSIONAL 

AND S
PECIAL 

S
ERVICES 

(R’000)

P
ERSONNEL 

COST AS A 
PERCENT OF TOTAL              
EXPENDITURE

A
VERAGE       

P
ERSONNEL 

C
OST PER 

E
MPLOYEE 

(R’000)

To
tal

R
72 562

R
69 025

R
1 219 

R
2 318

95%
279

 
Table 12.2.2 – Personnel C

osts B
y Salary B

ands, 2008/09

S
ALARY BANDS

P
ERSONNEL E

XPEN-
DITURE (R’000)

%
 OF TOTAL      

PERSONNEL COST
A

VERAGE PERSONNEL COST PER 
EMPLOYEE (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
R0

0%
R

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
R8 175

11.8%
R110

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
R15 111

21.9%
R157

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)
R25 654

37.2%
R475

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 
R20 085 

29.1%
R873

To
tal

R
69 025

100%
R

279
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Table 12.2.3 – Salaries, O
vertim

e, H
om

e O
w

ners A
llow

ance and M
edical A

ssistance B
y Program

m
e, 2008/09

P
ROGRAMME

S
ALARIES

O
VERTIME

H
OME O

W
NERS A

LLOW
ANCE

M
EDICAL A

SSISTANCE

Amount (R’000)
Salaries as a 
%

 of personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Over-
time as 
a %

 of 
person-
nel cost

Amount (R’000)
HOA as 
a %

 of 
personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
Assis-
tance as 
a %

 of 
personnel 
cost

OPP
R65 288

94.5%
R82

0.05%
R1826

2.64%
R1870

2.7%

Total
R65 288

94.5%
R82

0.05%
R1826

2.64%
R1870

2.7%

 
Table 12.2.4 – Salaries, O

vertim
e, H

om
e O

w
ners A

llow
ance A

nd M
edical A

ssistance B
y Salary B

ands, 2008/09

S
ALARY B

ANDS
S

ALARIES
O

VERTIME
H

OME O
W

NERS A
LLOW

ANCE
M

EDICAL A
SSISTANCE

Amount 
(R’000)

Salaries 
as a %

 of 
personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Over-
time as 
a %

 of 
person-
nel cost

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as a %
 

of personnel 
cost

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
Assistance 
as a %

 of 
personnel 
cost

Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2)

R0
0%

R0
0.0%

0
0

0
0

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
R7 120

10.3%
R11

0.0%
R411

0.6%
R633

0.9%

Highly skilled produc-
tion (Levels 6-8)

R13 893
20.1%

R71
0.0%

R501
0.7%

R687
1.0%

Highly skilled supervi-
sion (Levels 9-12)

R24 820
36.0%

R0
0.0%

R285
0.4%

R549
0.8%

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16)

R19 455
28.2%

R0
0.0%

R630
0.9%

0.0%

To
tal

R
65 288

94.6%
R

82
0.0%

R
1 826

2.6%
R

1870
2.7%
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12.3  
E

m
p

lo
ym

en
t an

d
 vacan

cies 
 

Table  12.3.1 – Em
ploym

ent A
nd Vacancies by Program

m
e, 31 M

arch 2009

P
ROGRAMME

N
UMBER OF POSTS

N
UMBER OF POSTS 

FILLED
V

ACANCY R
ATE

N
UMBER OF POSTS FILLED ADDITIONAL 

TO THE ESTABLISHMENT

OPP
267

247
7.4%

0

To
tal

267
247

7.4%
0

 
Table 12.3.2 – Em

ploym
ent A

nd Vacancies by Salary B
ands, 31 M

arch 2009

S
ALARY BAND

N
UMBER OF POSTS

N
UMBER OF POSTS 

FILLED
V

ACANCY R
ATE

N
UMBER OF POSTS FILLED ADDITIONAL 

TO THE ESTABLISHMENT

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
0

0
0%

0
Skilled
(Levels 3-5)

77
74

3.8%
0

Highly skilled production
(Levels 6-8)

106
96

9.4%
0

Highly skilled  supervision             
(Levels 9-12)

59
54

8.5%
0

Senior  management (Levels 
13-16) 

25
23

8%
0

To
tal

267
247

7.4%
0

 
Table 12.3.3 – Em

ploym
ent A

nd Vacancies by C
ritical O

ccupation, 31 M
arch 2009

C
RITICAL OCCUPATIONS

N
UMBER OF POSTS

N
UMBER OF POSTS 

FILLED
V

ACANCY R
ATE

N
UMBER OF POSTS FILLED ADDITIONAL 

TO THE ESTABLISHMENT

CEO
1

1
0%

0

To
tal

1
1

0%
0
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12.4  

Job Evaluation 

 
Table 12.4.1 – Job Evaluation, 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009 - There W

ere N
o Job Evaluation D

uring The Financial Year

 
Table 12.4.2 – Profile O

f Em
ployees W

hose Salary Positions W
ere U

pgraded D
ue To Their Posts B

eing U
pgraded, 1 A

pril   

 
 

 
2008 To 31 M

arch 2009 - N
o Posts W

ere U
pgraded D

uring The Financial Year

 
Table 12.4.3 – Em

ployees W
hose Salary Level Exceed The G

rade D
eterm

ined B
y Job Evaluation, 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch  

 
 

 
2009 (In Term

s O
f Psr 1.V.C

.3) – There W
ere N

o Em
ployees W

hose Salary Level Exceeded The G
rade 

 
Table 12.4.4 – Profile O

f Em
ployees W

hose Salary Level Exceed The G
rade D

eterm
ined B

y Job Evaluation, 1 A
pril 2008  

 

 
 

 
To 31 M

arch 2009 (In Term
s O

f Psr 1.V.C
.3) - N

o Profile O
f Em

ployees W
hose Salary Level Exceed  

 

 
 

 
The G

rade 

 
12.5  

Turnover R
ates 

 
Table 12.5.1 – A

nnual Turnover R
ates B

y Salary B
and For The Period 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

S
ALARY B

AND

N
UMBER OF         

EMPLOYEES PER 
BAND AS ON            
1 A

PRIL 2008

A
PPOINTMENTS 

AND TRANS-
FERS INTO THE             
DEPARTMENT

T
ERMINATIONS 

AND TRANSFERS 
OUT OF THE 
DEPARTMENT

T
URNOVER RATE

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
0

0
0

0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
74

14
5

6.8%

Highly skilled production(Levels 6-8)
96

29
9

9.5%

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12)
54

2
5

9.3%

Senior Management Service Band A 
16

2
3

18.7%

Senior Management Service Band B 
4

0
1

25%

Senior Management Service Band C
2

1
0

0%

Senior Management Service Band D
1

0
0

0%

To
tal

247
48

23
9.31%

 
Table 12.5.2 – A

nnual Turnover R
ates B

y C
ritical O

ccupation For The Period 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009 –  
 

 

 
 

N
o A

nnual Turnover R
ates B

y C
ritical O

ccupation  

 
Table 12.5.3 – R

easons W
hy Staff is Leaving The D

epartm
ent

T
ERMINATION T

YPE
N

UMBER
%

 OF TOTAL
Death

1
4.3%

Resignation
20

87%
Expiry of contract

0
0%
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Dismissal – operational changes
0

0%

Dismissal – misconduct
1

4.3%

Dismissal – inefficiency 
0

0%

Discharged due to ill-health
0

0%

Retirement
1

4.3%

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 
0

0%

Other
0

0%

To
tal

23
100%

To
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f em
p

lo
yees w

h
o

 left as a %
 o

f th
e to

tal em
p

lo
ym

en
t

9.31%
 

 
Table 12.5.4 – Prom

otions by C
ritical O

ccupation - N
o Prom

otions by C
ritical O

ccupation

 
Table 12.5.5 – Prom

otions by Salary B
and

S
ALARY B

AND
E

MPLOYEES        
1 A

PRIL 2008

P
ROMOTIONS TO 

ANOTHER SALARY 
LEVEL

S
ALARY BANDS 

PROMOTIONS AS A 
%

 OF EMPLOYEES 
BY SALARY LEVEL

P
ROGRESSIONS 

TO ANOTHER 
NOTCH W

ITHIN A 
SALARY LEVEL

N
OTCH PROGRES-

SIONS AS A %
 OF 

EMPLOYEES BY 
SALARY BAND

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
74

0
0%

0

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8)

96
5

5.2%
0

Highly skilled supervision (Lev-
els9-12)

54
2

3.6%
27

Senior management (Lev-
els13-16)

23
2

13%
0

To
tal

247
9

3.6%
27

 
12.6  

Em
ploym

ent Equity 

 
12.6.1 – Total N

um
ber O

f Em
ployees (Including Em

ployees W
ith D

isabilities) in Each of the Follow
ing O

ccupational  
 

 
 

C
ategories as at 31 M

arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES                 

(SASCO)
M

ALE
F

EMALE
T

OTAL

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Legislators, 
senior 

officials 
and 

managers
9

0
0

4
8

0
0

2
23

Professionals
26

0
2

2
16

2
3

3
54
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Technicians and associate profes-
sionals

47
3

0
0

40
1

2
3

96

Clerks 
17

0
0

0
45

5
3

4
74

Service and sales workers
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Craft and related trades workers
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Elementary occupations
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

To
tal

99
3

2
6

109
8

8
12

247

E
m

p
lo

yees w
ith

                                 
d

isab
ilities

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

2

 
12.6.2 – Total N

um
ber O

f Em
ployees (Including Em

ployees W
ith D

isabilities) in Each of the Follow
ing O

ccupational  
 

 
 

B
ands as O

n 31 M
arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL B

ANDS
M

ALE
F

EMALE

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Total

 Top Management
2

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
3

Senior Management
7

0
0

4
7

0
0

2
20

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and                     
mid-management

26
0

2
2

16
2

3
3

54

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior manage-
ment, supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

47
3

0
0

40
1

2
3

96

Semi-skilled and discretionary  
decision making

17
0

0
0

45
5

3
4

74

Unskilled and defined decision 
making

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

To
tal

99
3

2
6

109
8

8
12

247
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12.6.3 – R

ecruitm
ent for the Period 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL B

ANDS
M

ALE
F

EMALE

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Total

Top Management
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

Senior Management
1

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
4

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and mid-
management

1
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

4

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior manage-
ment, supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

17
1

0
0

16
0

0
0

34

Semi-skilled and discretionary  
decision making

2
0

0
0

11
1

0
0

14

Unskilled and defined decision 
making

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Total
22

1
0

0
33

1
0

0
57

 
  12.6.4 – Prom

otions for the Period 1 A
pril 2008 to 31 M

arch 2009 – there w
ere N

o Prom
otions D

uring the Financial Year 

 
12.6.5 – Term

inations for the Period 1 A
pril 2008 to 31 M

arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL B

ANDS
M

ALE
F

EMALE

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Total

Top Management
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

Senior Management
1

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
3

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and mid-
management

3
1

0
0

0
0

1
0

5

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior manage-
ment, supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

6
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

9

Semi-skilled and discretionary    
decision making

2
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

5

Unskilled and defined decision 
making

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Total
12

2
1

0
7

0
1

0
23
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12.6.6 – D

isciplinary A
ction for the Period 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009

M
ALE

F
EMALE

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Total

Disciplinary action
4

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
6

 
12.6.7 – Skills D

evelopm
ent for the Period 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL CATEGORIES

M
ALE

F
EMALE

A
frican

C
oloured

Indian
W

hite
A

frican
C

oloured
Indian

W
hite

Total

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers

9
0

0
4

8
0

0
2

23

Professionals
26

0
2

2
16

2
3

3
54

Technicians and associate 
professionals

47
3

0
0

40
1

2
3

96

Clerks 
17

0
0

0
45

5
3

4
74

Service and sales workers
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Craft and related trades 
workers

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Plant and machine          
operators and assemblers

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

Elementary occupations
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

To
tal

99
3

2
6

109
8

8
12

247

E
m

p
lo

yees w
ith

       
d

isab
ilities

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

2
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12.7  

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
W

A
R

D
S

 

 
Table 12.7.1 – Perform

ance R
ew

ards by R
ace, G

ender, and D
isability, 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009

B
E

N
E

FIC
IA

R
Y P

R
O

FILE
C

O
S

T

N
UMBER OF 

BENEFICIARIES
T

OTAL NUMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES IN GROUP

%
 OF TOTAL 

W
ITHIN GROUP

C
OST (R’000)

A
VERAGE COST 

PER EMPLOYEE
African

Male
59

98
60%

R492 576
R8 348.74

Female
50

109
46%

R347 924
R6 958.48

Asian

Male
3

2
150%

R42 566
R14 188.66

Female
8

8
100%

R46 657
R5 832.12

Coloured

Male
3

3
100%

R20 183
R6 727.66

Female
7

8
87.5%

R34 453
R4 921.85

W
hite

Male
6

6
100%

R103 143
R17 227.00

Female
11

11
100%

R137 081
R11 711.50

Employees with a disability
1

2
50%

R 3 447
R3 447.75

Total
148

247
60%

R
1 228 219

R8 298.78

Accrual Performance bonus
R1586 677

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L
R

2 814 896
R

8 298.78

 
Table 12.7.2 – Perform

ance R
ew

ards by Salary B
ands for Personnel B

elow
 Senior M

anagem
ent Service, 

 
 

1 A
pril 2008 to 31 M

arch 2009

S
ALARY B

ANDS
B

ENEFICIARY P
ROFILE

C
OST

N
um

ber of 
beneficiaries

N
um

ber of 
em

ployees

%
 of total 

w
ithin salary 

bands

Total C
ost 

(R
’000)

A
verage cost 

per em
ployee

Total cost as 
a %

 of the 
total personnel              
expenditure

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
0

0
0%

0
0

0%
Skilled (Levels 3-5)

44
73

60.3%
R156 491

R3 557
0.2%

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

41
96

42.7%
R198 573

R4 843
0.3%
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Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

48
55

87.3%
R558 773

R11 641
0.8%

To
tal

133
224

59.4%
R

913 838
R

6 871
1.3%

 
Table 12.7.3 – Perform

ance R
ew

ards B
y C

ritical O
ccupations, 1 A

pril 2008 to 31 M
arch 2009 – N

o Perform
ance R

ew
ards  

 

 
 

by C
ritical O

ccupations

 
Table 12.7.4 – Perform

ance R
elated R

ew
ards (C

ash B
onus), by Salary B

and, for Senior M
anagem

ent Service

S
ALARY B

AND
B

ENEFICIARY P
ROFILE

T
OTAL C

OST
(R’000)

A
VERAGE COST 

PER EMPLOYEE

T
OTAL COST AS A %

 
OF THE TOTAL
PERSONNEL                
EXPENDITURE

Number of     
beneficiaries

Number of       
employees

%
 of total 

within band

Band A
12

23
56.5%

R239 890.00
R19 991

0.4%

Band B
3

3
66.7%

R74 530.00
R24 843

0.1%

Band C

Band D

To
tal

15
26

65.2%
R

314 420.00
R

20 961
0.5%

 
12.8 

 F
o

reig
n

 w
o

rkers 

 
Table 12.8.1 – Foreign W

orkers, 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009, by Salary B
and – There w

ere N
o Foreign W

orkers D
uring   

 
 

the Financial Year 

 
Table 12.8.2 – Foreign W

orker, 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009, by M
ajor O

ccupation - There w
ere N

o Foreign W
orkers  

 

 
 

by M
ajor O

ccupation 

 
12.9 

 L
eave u

tilisatio
n

 fo
r th

e p
erio

d
 1 Jan

u
ary 2008 to

 31 D
ecem

b
er 2008

 

 
Table 12.9.1 – Sick Leave, 1 January 2008 To 31 D

ecem
ber 2008

S
ALARY B

AND
T

OTAL DAYS
%

 DAYS W
ITH 

MEDICAL CERTIFI-
CATION

N
UMBER OF E

M-
PLOYEES USING 
SICK LEAVE

%
 OF TOTAL 

EMPLOYEES 
USING SICK 
LEAVE

A
VERAGE DAYS 

PER EMPLOYEE
E

STIMATED 
C

OST (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
445

76
0.17
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Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

225
101

0.45

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels9-12)

283
54

0.19

Senior management (Levels 
13-16)

77
27

0.35

To
tal

1030
N

/A
258

N
/A

0.25

 
Table 12.9.2 – D

isability Leave (Tem
porary and Perm

anent), 1 January 2008 to 31 D
ecem

ber 2008

S
ALARY B

AND
T

OTAL DAYS 
TAKEN

%
 DAYS W

ITH 
MEDICAL       
CERTIFICATION

N
UMBER OF 

E
MPLOYEES 

USING DISABILITY 
LEAVE

%
 OF TOTAL 

EMPLOYEES 
USING DISABILITY 
LEAVE

A
VERAGE DAYS 

PER EMPLOYEE
E

STIMATED 
C

OST (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Skilled (Levels 3-5)
37

100%
2

100%
19

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8)

0
0

0
0

0

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12)

26
100%

2
100%

13

Senior management (Levels 
13-16)

6
100%

1
100%

6

Total
69

100%
5

100%
14

 
Table 12.9.3 – A

nnual Leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 D
ecem

ber 2008

S
ALARY B

ANDS
T

OTAL DAYS TAKEN
A

VERAGE PER EMPLOYEE

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)
N/A

N/A

Skilled Levels 3-5)
1379

17.90

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
1304

12.91

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12)
1106

19.40

Senior management (Levels 13-16)
510

18.89

Total
4299

16.40
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Table 12.9.4 – C

apped Leave, 1 January 2008 To 31 D
ecem

ber 2008

S
ALARY B

ANDS
T

OTAL DAYS OF 
CAPPED LEAVE TAKEN

A
VERAGE NUMBER 

OF DAYS TAKEN PER 
EMPLOYEE

A
VERAGE CAPPED LEAVE PER 

EMPLOYEE AS AT 31 D
ECEMBER 

2008
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

N/A
N/A

N/A

Skilled Levels 3-5)
22

11
27.6

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)
3

3
33

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12)
17

8.5
44.1

Senior management (Levels 13-16)
16

8.0
29.4

To
tal

58
8.29

35.07

 
Table 12.9.5 – Leave Payouts For The Period 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

 
The follow

ing table sum
m

arises paym
ents m

ade to em
ployees as a result of leave that w

as not taken.

REASON
T

OTAL A
MOUNT 

(R’000)
N

UMBER OF           
EMPLOYEES

A
VERAGE PAYMENT PER           

EMPLOYEE

Leave payout for 2008/09 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle

R26 410.32
2

R13 205.16

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 
2008/09

0
0

0

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2008/09

R227590.57
22

R10 345.02

To
tal

R
254 000.89

24
R

10 583.37

 
12.10  H

IV
 an

d
 A

ID
S

 &
 H

ealth
 P

ro
m

o
tio

n
 P

ro
g

ram
m

es 

 
Table 12.10.1 – Steps Taken To R

educe The R
isk O

f O
ccupational Exposure

REASON
T

OTAL A
MOUNT 

(R’000)
N

UMBER OF E
MPLOY-

EES
A

VERAGE PAYMENT PER 
EMPLOYEE

Leave payout for 2008/09 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle

R26 410.32
2

R13 205.16

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 
2008/09

0
0

0

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2008/09

R227590.57
22

R10 345.02

To
tal

R
254 000.89

24
R

10 583.37
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Table 12.10.2 – D

etails O
f H

ealth Prom
otion A

nd H
IV and A

ID
S Program

m
es (Tick The A

pplicable B
oxes A

nd Provide The   
 

 
R

equired  Inform
ation)

Q
UESTION

Y
ES

N
O

D
ETAILS, IF YES

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement the provisions 
contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, 
provide her/his name and position.

X

Mr SJ Lentsoane as-
sisted by EW

P Committee 
Members and  Careways 
Group as Service Provider 

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific staff 
members to promote the health and well being of your employees? If so, indicate 
the number of employees who are involved in this task and the annual budget that is    
available for this purpose.  

X

9 EW
P Committee 

Members and 20 Peer 
Educators
Budget: R250 000

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Promotion 
Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of this 
Programme. 

X

Psychological Services
HIV and AIDS Disease 
Management Programme
Counselling 

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) 
of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the names 
of the members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.  

X

Mr S Lentsoane
Ms S Dube
Ms V Setlhodimela
Ms T Faku
Ms M Molokomme
Ms E De W

aal
Ms R Nair
Mr N Maoka
Mr S Mothupi

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies and practices to ensure that 
these do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis of their HIV status?  
If so, list the employment policies/practices so reviewed.  

X
HIV and AIDS Policy 
Employee W

ellness Policy

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees or those 
perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 
measures. 

X
Employee wellness      
programme in progress

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary Counselling 
and Testing? If so, list the results that you have you achieved. 

X
VCT taken during the HIV 
and AIDS Launch 

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact 
of its health promotion programme? If so, list these measures/indicators.

X
Mini surveys conducted for 
monitoring and evaluation
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12.11  L

ab
o

u
r relatio

n
s 

 
Table 12.11.1 – C

ollective A
greem

ents, 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009

S
UBJECT M

ATTER
D

ATE

N/A
N/A

 
Table 12.11.2 – M

isconduct A
nd D

isciplinary H
earings Finalised, 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

O
UTCOMES OF DISCIPLINARY HEARINGS

N
UMBER

%
 OF TOTAL

Correctional counselling
1

16.7%

Verbal warning
1

16.7%

W
ritten warning

2
33.3%

Final written warning
1

16.7%

Suspended without pay
0

0%

Fine
0

0%

Demotion
0

0%

Dismissal
1

16.7%

Not guilty
0

0%

Case withdrawn
0

0%

To
tal

6
100%

If there w
ere no disciplinary hearings, then use the follow

ing table

Disciplinary hearings – 2008/09
6

 
Table 12.11.3 – Types O

f M
isconduct A

ddressed A
t D

isciplinary H
earings

T
YPE OF MISCONDUCT 

N
UMBER

%
 OF TOTAL

Prejudicing the administration of OPP
2

33.3%

Unauthorised Appointments 
1

16.7%

Unauthorised use of telephone pin number
1

16.7%

Disrespect to fellow colleagues 
2

33.3%
To

tal
6

100%

 
Table 12.11.4 – G

rievances Lodged For The Period 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009

N
UMBER

%
 OF T

OTAL

Number of grievances resolved
3

100%
Number of grievances not resolved

0
0%

To
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f g
rievan

ces lo
d

g
ed

3
100%
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Table 12.11.5 – D

isputes Lodged W
ith C

ouncils For The Period 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009

N
UMBER

%
 OF T

OTAL

Number of disputes upheld
1

100%

Number of disputes dismissed
0

0%

Total number of disputes lodged
1

100%

 
Table 12.11.6 – Strike A

ctions For The Period 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009

T
OTAL NUMBER OF PERSON W

ORKING DAYS LOST
Total cost (R’000) of working days lost

N/A

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay
N/A

 
Table 12.11.7 – Precautionary Suspensions For The Period 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

N
UMBER OF PEOPLE SUSPENDED

N/A
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days

N/A

Average number of days suspended
N/A

Cost (R’000) of suspensions
N/A

 
12.12  S

kills d
evelo

p
m

en
t  

 
12.12.1 – Training N

eeds Identified 1 A
pril 2008 To 31 M

arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL C

ATEGORIES
G

ENDER
N

UMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES AS AT 
1 A

PRIL 2008

T
RAINING NEEDS IDENTIFIED AT START OF REPORTING PERIOD

Learnerships
Skills Program

m
es 

&
 other short 

courses

O
ther form

s 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials   
and managers

Female
10

9
0

9
Male

13
13

0
13

Professionals
Female

24
24

0
24

Male
30

30
0

30
Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female
46

46
0

46
Male

50
50

0
50

Clerks 
Female

57
57

0
57

Male
17

17
0

17

Service and sales workers
Female

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Male
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
Skilled agriculture and          
fishery workers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
Male

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
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Craft and related trades     
workers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
Male

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
Male

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Elementary occupations
Female

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

Male
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A

Sub Total
Female

137
136

0
136

Male
110

109
0

109

To
tal

247
245

0
245

 
12.12.2 – Training Provided 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

O
CCUPATIONAL C

ATEGORIES
G

ENDER
N

UMBER OF 
EMPLOYEES AS AT       
1 A

PRIL 2008

T
RAINING PROVIDED W

ITHIN THE REPORTING PERIOD

Learnerships
Skills Program

m
es 

&
 other short 

courses

O
ther form

s 
of training

Total

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers

Female
10

9
9

Male
13

9
9

Professionals
Female

24
7

7
Male

30
9

9
Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female
46

37
37

Male
50

25
25

Clerks 
Female

57
50

50
Male

17
7

7

Service and sales workers
Female

N/A
N/A

N/A
Male

N/A
N/A

N/A
Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

Male
N/A

N/A
N/A

Craft and related trades 
workers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

Male
N/A

N/A
N/A

Plant and machine           
operators and assemblers

Female
N/A

N/A
N/A

Male
N/A

N/A
N/A

Elementary occupations
Female

N/A
N/A

N/A
Male

N/A
N/A

N/A

Sub Total
Female

137
103

103
Male

110
50

50

To
tal

247
153

153
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12.13 In

ju
ry o

n
 d

u
ty 

 
Table 12.13.1 – Injury O

n D
uty Xe “Injury O

n D
uty” , 1 A

pril 2008 To 31 M
arch 2009

N
ATURE OF INJURY ON DUTY

N
UMBER

%
 OF TOTAL

Required basic medical attention only
4

100%

Temporary Total Disablement
0

Permanent Disablement
0

Fatal
0

To
tal

4
100%

 
12.14 U

tilisatio
n

 o
f co

n
su

ltan
ts 

 
Table 12.14.1 – R

eport O
n C

onsultant A
ppointm

ents U
sing A

ppropriated Funds

P
ROJECT T

ITLE
T

OTAL NUMBER OF CONSULTANTS       
THAT W

ORKED ON THE PROJECT
D

URATION:
W

ORK DAYS
C

ONTRACT VALUE                          
IN R

AND

Job Evaluation 
2

1 Year
R257 888.00

EW
P

3
2 Years

R500 000.00

Recruitment
2

2 Years
R500 000.00

Policy Manual
3

1 Year
R223 839.00

PPMDS
2

2 Year
R299 595.00

Team Building
2

1 Year
R767 800.00

To
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f p
ro

jects
To

tal in
d

ivid
u

al co
n

su
lt-

an
ts

To
tal            

d
u

ratio
n

:
W

o
rk d

ays

To
tal co

n
tract valu

e in
 

R
an

d

6
14

R2 549 122.00

N
ote: The am

ounts appearing in Table 9.14.1 are the total contracted am
ounts but not paid.

 
Table 12.14.2 – A

nalysis O
f C

onsultant A
ppointm

ents U
sing A

ppropriated Funds, In Term
s O

f H
istorically D

isadvantaged   

 
 

Individuals (H
dis)

P
ROJECT T

ITLE
P

ERCENTAGE OW
NERSHIP BY 

HDI GROUPS
P

ERCENTAGE MANAGE-
MENT BY HDI GROUPS

N
UMBER OF C

ONSULTANTS FROM 
HDI GROUPS THAT W

ORK ON THE 
PROJECT

Job Evaluation 
30%

30%
EW

P
26%

26%
Recruitment

57.3%
57.3%

Policy Manual
30%

30%
PPMDS

0%
0%

Teambuilding
0%

0%
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Table 12.14.3 – R

eport O
n C

onsultant A
ppointm

ents U
sing D

onor Funds

P
ROJECT T

ITLE
T

OTAL N
UMBER OF CONSULTANTS 

THAT W
ORKED ON THE PROJECT

D
URATION:

W
ORK DAYS

D
ONOR AND C

ONTRACT VALUE IN 
R

AND

Training
1

1 Year
R 112 000.00

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

 
Table 12.14.4 – A

nalysis O
f C

onsultant A
ppointm

ents U
sing D

onor Funds, In Term
s O

f H
istorically D

isadvantaged  
 

 
Individuals (H

dis)

P
ROJECT T

ITLE
P

ERCENTAGE OW
NERSHIP BY HDI 

GROUPS
P

ERCENTAGE MANAGE-
MENT BY HDI GROUPS

N
UMBER OF C

ONSULTANTS FROM 
HDI GROUPS THAT W

ORK ON THE 
PROJECT

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
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M
r Zain D

ocrat passed aw
ay unexpectedly on 5 O

ctober 2008, exactly tw
o 

years after joining the O
ffice of the P

ublic P
rotector as the C

hief Financial 
O

fficer on 5 O
ctober 2006. D

uring that short stint w
ith us, he w

as the m
ain 

contributor to the “clean audit reports of the O
P

P
”.  H

e is greatly m
issed.

IN
 M

EM
O

R
IU

M
M

r Z
ain D

o
crat
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R
ep

o
rt o

f th
e A

u
d

it C
o

m
m

ittee

R
ep

o
rt o

f th
e A

u
d

ito
r-G

en
eral

R
ep

o
rt o

f th
e C

h
ief E

xecu
tive O

ffi
cer

S
tatem

en
t o

f F
in

an
cial P

erfo
rm

an
ce

S
tatem

en
t o

f F
in

an
cial P

o
sitio

n

S
tatem

en
t o

f C
h

an
g

es in
 N

et A
ssets

C
ash

 F
lo

w
 S

tatem
en

t

N
o

tes to
 th

e A
n

n
u

al F
in

an
cial S

tatem
en

t 
 

108

110

117

122

123

124

125

126

13.  A
N

N
U

A
L FIN

A
N

C
IA

L STATEM
EN

TS FO
R

 TH
E YEA

R
 

EN
D

ED
 

31 M
A

R
C

H
 2009

EN
D

ED
31 M

A
R

C
H

 2009

P
A

G
E
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W
e are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 M

arch 2009.

A
u

d
it C

o
m

m
ittee m

em
b

ers an
d

 atten
d

an
ce

The A
udit C

om
m

ittee consists of the m
em

bers listed hereunder and m
eets quarterly as per its approved 

term
s of reference. D

uring the current year five m
eetings w

ere held.

N
am

e o
f M

em
b

er 
 

 
 

 
N

o
. o

f m
eetin

g
s atten

d
ed

M
s. M

. Vuso (C
hairperson)    

 
 

 
5

M
r. A

. S
om

a 
 

 
 

 
 

2
M

r. J. M
okw

ena  
 

 
 

 
3

A
u

d
it C

o
m

m
ittee resp

o
n

sib
ility

W
e report that w

e have adopted appropriate form
al term

s of reference in our C
harter in line w

ith the require-
m

ents of S
ection 51(1) (a) of the P

FM
A and Treasury R

egulations 27.1. W
e further report that w

e have 
conducted our affairs in com

pliance w
ith the C

harter.

The effectiveness of internal control

The system
 of internal control applied by the O

P
P over financial and risk m

anagem
ent is effective, efficient 

and transparent. 

In line w
ith the P

FM
A and the K

ing II R
eport on C

orporate G
overnance requirem

ents, Internal A
udit provides 

the A
udit C

om
m

ittee and m
anagem

ent w
ith assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effec-

tive. This is achieved by m
eans of the risk m

anagem
ent process, as w

ell as the identification of corrective 
actions and suggested enhancem

ents to the control and processes. From
 the various reports of the Internal 

A
uditors, the A

udit R
eport on the A

nnual Financial S
tatem

ents and the m
anagem

ent report of the A
uditor-

G
eneral S

outh A
frica, it w

as noted that no m
atters w

ere reported that indicate any m
aterial deficiencies in 

the system
 of internal control or any deviations there from

. A
ccordingly w

e can report that the system
 of 

internal control over financial reporting for the period under review
 w

as efficient and effective. 

T
h

e q
u

ality o
f in

 year m
an

ag
em

en
t an

d
 m

o
n

th
ly / q

u
arterly rep

o
rts su

b
m

itted
 in

 term
s o

f th
e A

ct an
d

 
th

e D
ivisio

n
 o

f R
even

u
e A

ct

W
e are satisfied w

ith the content and quality of m
onthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the 

A
ccounting O

fficer of O
P

P during the year under review
. 

O
F

F
IC

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 P
U

B
L

IC
 P

R
O

T
E

C
T

O
R

R
E

P
O

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

U
D

IT
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 31 M
A

R
C

H
 2009
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Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
Report of the Audit Committee

E
valu

atio
n

 o
f fi

n
an

cial statem
en

ts
The A

udit C
om

m
ittee has:

R
eview

ed and discussed the audited annual financial statem
ents to be included in the annual report 

• 
w

ith the A
uditor-G

eneral and the A
ccounting O

fficer;
R

eview
ed the A

uditor-G
eneral S

outh A
frica’s m

anagem
ent report and m

anagem
ent’s response 

• 
thereto; R

eview
ed changes in accounting policies and practices;

R
eview

ed O
P

P ’s com
pliance w

ith legal and regulatory provisions; and 
• 

R
eview

ed significant adjustm
ents resulting from

 the audit
• 

The A
udit C

om
m

ittee concurs and accepts the A
uditor-G

eneral S
outh A

frica’s  report on the annual financial 
statem

ents, and w
e are of the opinion that the audited annual financial statem

ents be accepted and read 
together w

ith the report of the A
uditor-G

eneral S
outh A

frica.

In
tern

al au
d

it
W

e are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has addressed the risks 
pertinent to O

P
P in its audits.

A
u

d
ito

r-G
en

eral S
o

u
th

 A
frica

W
e have m

et w
ith the A

uditor-G
eneral S

outh A
frica to ensure that there are no unresolved issues.

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

M
s. M

. V
u

so
C

hairperson of the A
udit C

om
m

ittee
31 M

ay 2009
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In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

I have audited the accom
panying financial statem

ents of O
P

P w
hich com

prise the state-
1. 

m
ent of financial position as at 31 M

arch 2009, and the statem
ent of financial perform

ance, 
the statem

ent of changes in net assets and the cash flow
 statem

ent for the year then ended, 
a sum

m
ary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on 

pages 122 to 159.

T
h

e acco
u

n
tin

g
 o

ffi
cer’s resp

o
n

sib
ility fo

r th
e fi

n
an

cial statem
en

ts
The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 

2. 
financial statem

ents in accordance w
ith the basis of accounting determ

ined by the N
a-

tional Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 to the financial statem
ents and in 

the m
anner required by the P

ublic Finance M
anagem

ent A
ct, 1999 (A

ct N
o. 1 of 1999) 

(P
FM

A
),and for such internal control as the accounting officer determ

ines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statem

ents that are free from
 m

aterial m
isstatem

ent, 
w

hether due to fraud or error. 

T
h

e A
u

d
ito

r-G
en

eral’s resp
o

n
sib

ility
A

s required by section 188 of the C
onstitution of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica, 1996 read 
3. 

w
ith section 4 of the P

ublic A
udit A

ct, 2004 (A
ct N

o. 25 of 2004) (PA
A

), m
y responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these financial statem
ents based on m

y audit.

I conducted m
y audit in accordance w

ith the International S
tandards on A

uditing read w
ith 

4. 
G

eneral N
otice 616 of 2008, issued in G

overnm
ent G

azette N
o. 31057 of 15 M

ay 2008. 
Those standards require that I com

ply w
ith ethical requirem

ents and plan and perform
 the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about w
hether the financial statem

ents are free from
 

m
aterial m

isstatem
ent.

A
n audit involves perform

ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the am
ounts and 

5. 
disclosures in the financial statem

ents. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgem

ent, including the assessm
ent of the risks of m

aterial m
isstatem

ent of the financial 
statem

ents, w
hether due to fraud or error. In m

aking those risk assessm
ents, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statem

ents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circum
-

stances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. A

n audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting poli-
cies used and the reasonableness of accounting estim

ates m
ade by m

anagem
ent, as w

ell 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statem

ents.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
6. 

basis for m
y audit opinion.

B
asis fo

r q
u

alifi
ed

 o
p

in
io

n
P

ro
p

erty, p
lan

t an
d

 eq
u

ip
m

en
t

In term
s of S

outh A
frican S

tatem
ents of G

enerally A
ccepted A

ccounting P
ractice, IA

S
 16 

7. 
(A

C
 123) P

roperty, plant and equipm
ent par 51 requires that the useful lives of assets shall 

be review
ed at each financial year end. M

anagem
ent did not review

 the useful life of assets 
during the current or previous financial periods. 

Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

Report of the Auditor General of South Africa

R
E

P
O

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 A

U
D

IT
O

R
-G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 O
F

 S
O

U
T

H
 A

F
R

IC
A

 T
O

 P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 O

N
 T

H
E

 F
IN

A
N

-
C

IA
L

 S
TA

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
 A

N
D

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 O
F

 O
P

P
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 
31 M

A
R

C
H

 2009
R

E
P

O
R

T
 O

N
 T

H
E

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 S

TA
T

E
M

E
M

T
S

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   110
2009/08/31   02:41:48 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

111

O
P

P
’s records did not perm

it the application of alternative audit procedures to determ
ine 

8. 
the useful lives of assets, as the conditions of the assets w

ere not reflected on the asset 
register.

C
onsequently, I did not obtain all the inform

ation and explanations I considered necessary 
9. 

to satisfy m
yself as to the accuracy and valuation of property, plant and equipm

ent am
ount-

ing to R
10,3 m

illion as disclosed in note 1 to the financial statem
ents.

O
p

in
io

n
 

In m
y opinion, except for the possible effects of the m

atter described in the basis for quali-
10. fied opinion paragraphs, the financial statem

ents present fairly, in all m
aterial respects, the 

financial position of the O
P

P as at 31 M
arch 2009 and its financial perform

ance and its cash 
flow

s for the year then ended, in accordance w
ith the basis of accounting determ

ined by 
the N

ational Treasury as set out in accounting policy note 1 and in the m
anner required by 

the P
FM

A
.

E
m

p
h

asis o
f m

atter 
I draw

 attention to the follow
ing m

atters on w
hich I do not express a qualified opinion:

11. 

B
asis o

f acco
u

n
tin

g
O

P
P

’s policy is to prepare financial statem
ents on the basis of accounting determ

ined by 
12. the N

ational Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.

S
ig

n
ifi

can
t u

n
certain

ties relatin
g

 to
 o

p
eratin

g
 lease p

aym
en

ts
A

s disclosed in note 27.3 to the financial statem
ents, there is significant uncertainty regard-

13. ing the paym
ent of operating leases in respect of prem

ises used by the O
P

P.  The contracts 
are betw

een the D
epartm

ent of P
ublic W

orks and the lessor. The O
P

P has not paid the 
m

onthly rental charge and I am
 unable to establish the contractual com

m
itm

ent of O
P

P in 
respect of these rental agreem

ents

R
estatem

en
t o

f co
rresp

o
n

d
in

g
 fi

g
u

res
 A

s disclosed in note 1.21 to the financial statem
ents, the corresponding figures for 31 

14. M
arch 2008 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during the year ended 

31 M
arch 2009 in the financial statem

ents of the O
P

P at, and for the year ended, 31 M
arch 

2008.

O
th

er m
atters

I draw
 attention to the follow

ing m
atter that relates to m

y responsibilities in the audit of the 
15. financial statem

ents:
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G
o

vern
an

ce fram
ew

o
rk

The governance principles that im
pact the auditor’s opinion on the financial statem

ents are 
16. related to the responsibilities and practices exercised by the accounting officer and execu-

tive m
anagem

ent and are reflected internal control deficiencies and in the key governance 
responsibilities addressed below

:

In
tern

al co
n

tro
l d

efi
cien

cies
S

ection 38(1)(a)(i) of the P
FM

A states that the accounting officer m
ust ensure that O

P
P has 

17. and m
aintains effective, efficient and transparent system

s of financial and risk m
anagem

ent 
and internal control. The table below

 depicts the root causes that gave rise to the deficien-
cies in the system

 of internal control, w
hich led to the qualified opinion. The root causes 

are categorised according to the five com
ponents of an effective system

 of internal control. 
(The num

ber listed per com
ponent can be follow

ed w
ith the legend below

 the table.) In 
som

e instances deficiencies exist in m
ore than one internal control com

ponent.

P
AR. NO.

B
ASIS FOR QUALIFIED

CE
RA

CA
IC

M

7 - 9
Property, plant and equipment 

3 and 4

LEGEND
CE = Control environment
The organisational structure does not address areas of responsibility and lines of reporting to support effective control 
over financial reporting.

1

Management and staff are not assigned appropriate levels of authority and responsibility to facilitate control over financial 
reporting. 

2

Human resource policies do not facilitate effective recruitment and training, disciplining and supervision of personnel.
3

Integrity and ethical values have not been developed and are not understood to set the standard for financial reporting.
4

The accounting officer/accounting authority does not exercise oversight responsibility over financial reporting and internal 
control.

5

Management’s philosophy and operating style do not promote effective control over financial reporting.
6

The entity does not have individuals competent in financial reporting and related matters.
7

RA = Risk assessment

Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

Report of the Auditor General of South Africa

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   112
2009/08/31   02:41:51 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

113

Management has not specified financial reporting objectives to enable the identification of risks to reliable financial 
reporting.

1

The entity does not identify risks to the achievement of financial reporting objectives.
2

The entity does not analyse the likelihood and impact of the risks identified.
3

The entity does not determine a risk strategy/action plan to manage identified risks.
4

The potential for material misstatement due to fraud is not considered.
5

CA = Control activities

There is inadequate segregation of duties to prevent fraudulent data and asset misappropriation.
1

General information technology controls have not been designed to maintain the integrity of the information system and 
the security of the data.

2

Manual or automated controls are not designed to ensure that the transactions have occurred, are authorised, and are 
completely and accurately processed.

3

Actions are not taken to address risks to the achievement of financial reporting objectives.
4

Control activities are not selected and developed to mitigate risks over financial reporting.
5

Policies and procedures related to financial reporting are not established and communicated.
6

Realistic targets are not set for financial performance measures, which are in turn not linked to an effective reward 
system.

7

IC = Information and communication

Pertinent information is not identified and captured in a form and time frame to support financial reporting.
1

Information required to implement internal control is not available to personnel to enable internal control responsibilities.
2

Communications do not enable and support the understanding and execution of internal control processes and responsi-
bilities by personnel.

3

M = Monitoring

Ongoing monitoring and supervision are not undertaken to enable an assessment of the effectiveness of internal control 
over financial reporting.

1

Neither reviews by internal audit or the audit committee nor self -assessments are evident.
2

Internal control deficiencies are not identified and communicated in a timely manner to allow for corrective action to be 
taken.

3
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K
ey g

o
vern

an
ce resp

o
n

sib
ilities

The P
FM

A tasks the accounting officer w
ith a num

ber of responsibilities concerning finan-
18. cial and risk m

anagem
ent and internal control. Fundam

ental to achieving this is the im
ple-

m
entation of key governance responsibilities, w

hich I have assessed as follow
s:

N
O.

M
ATTER

Y
N

C
lear trail o

f su
p

p
o

rtin
g

 d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n
 th

at is easily availab
le an

d
 p

ro
vid

ed
 in

 a tim
ely m

an
n

er

1.
No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of 
requested information.

√

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2.
The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit.

√
3.

The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor’s report.
√

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4.
The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines section 
40 of the PFMA.

√
Availability of key officials during audit 

5.
Key officials were available throughout the audit process.

√
Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and governance practices

6.
Audit committee

• OPP had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year.
√

• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference.
√

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of 
  the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10

7.
Internal audit

√
• OPP had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year.

√
• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan.

√
• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in
  Treasury Regulation 3.2

√

8.
There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect 
of financial and risk management.

√

9.
There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect 
of compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

√

10.
The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements.

√
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N
O.

M
ATTER

Y
N

11.
A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which 
includes a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2

√

12.
Powers and duties have been assigned, as set out in section 44 of the PFMA

√
Follow-up of audit findings

13.
The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed.

√
14.

SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented.
N/A

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15.
The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report that 
is accurate and complete.

√

16.
Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy 
and completeness of reported performance information.

√

17.
A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of 
monitoring the performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the entity against its mandate, 
predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators and targets as per Treasury Regulation 29.1

√

18.
There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid 
after proper assessment and approval by those charged with governance.

√

R
E

P
O

R
T O

N
 O

TH
E

R
 LE

G
A

L A
N

D
 R

E
G

U
LATO

R
Y R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS

R
ep

o
rt o

n
 p

erfo
rm

an
ce in

fo
rm

atio
n

I have review
ed the perform

ance inform
ation as set out on pages 10 to 42.

19. 

T
h

e acco
u

n
tin

g
 o

ffi
cer’s resp

o
n

sib
ility fo

r th
e p

erfo
rm

an
ce in

fo
rm

atio
n

The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required by section 40(3)(a) of the 
20. P

FM
A to ensure that the annual report and audited financial statem

ents fairly present the 
perform

ance against predeterm
ined objectives of O

P
P.

T
h

e A
u

d
ito

r-G
en

eral’s resp
o

n
sib

ility
I conducted m

y engagem
ent in accordance w

ith section 13 of the PA
A read w

ith G
eneral 

21. N
otice 616 of 2008, issued in G

overnm
ent G

azette N
o. 31057 of 15 M

ay 2008. 
In term

s of the foregoing m
y engagem

ent included perform
ing procedures of an audit na-

22. ture to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the perform
ance inform

ation and 
related system

s, processes and procedures. The procedures selected depend on the audi-
tor’s judgem

ent.
I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

23. for the review
 findings reported below

. 
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F
in

d
in

g
s o

n
 p

erfo
rm

an
ce in

fo
rm

atio
n

U
sefu

ln
ess an

d
 reliab

ility o
f rep

o
rted

 p
erfo

rm
an

ce in
fo

rm
atio

n
The follow

ing criteria w
ere used to assess the usefulness and reliability of the inform

ation 
24. on the O

P
P perform

ance w
ith respect to the objectives in its strategic plan:

C
onsistency:  H

as O
P

P reported on its perform
ance w

ith regard to its objectives, 
• 

indicators and targets in its approved strategic plan? 
R

elevance:  Is the perform
ance inform

ation as reflected in the indicators and tar-
• 

gets clearly linked to the predeterm
ined objectives and m

andate. Is this specific and 
m

easurable, and is the tim
e period or deadline for delivery specified?

R
eliability:  C

an the reported perform
ance inform

ation be traced back to the source 
• 

data or docum
entation and is the reported perform

ance inform
ation accurate and 

com
plete in relation to the source data or docum

entation?

The follow
ing audit findings relate to the above criteria:

R
ep

o
rted

 p
erfo

rm
an

ce in
fo

rm
atio

n
 n

o
t reliab

le

S
o

u
rce in

fo
rm

atio
n

 n
o

t accu
rate an

d
 co

m
p

lete
The source inform

ation provided to support the reported perform
ance inform

ation w
ith re-

25. gard to the investigations and reporting program
m

e did not adequately support the accu-
racy and com

pleteness of the facts.

A
P

P
R

E
C

IA
T

IO
N

The assistance rendered by the staff of the O
P

P during the audit is sincerely appreciated.
26. 

P
retoria

31 July 2009
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Legislative M
andate 

1. 

1.1 O
P

P is an institution established in term
s of C

hapter N
ine of the R

epublic of S
outh A

frica 
C

onstitution A
ct (A

ct N
o. 108 of 1996). Its additional m

andate is further provided for in the 
P

ublic P
rotector A

ct (A
ct N

o. 23 of 1994) as am
ended. The prim

ary objective of C
hapter N

ine 
institutions, including O

P
P, is to strengthen constitutional dem

ocracy. O
P

P fulfils its m
andate 

by investigating, either at its ow
n initiative or on receipt of com

plaints from
 aggrieved persons, 

allegations of im
proper conduct by organs of the S

tate. O
P

P has the pow
er to report and 

recom
m

end rem
edial action.

1.2 The core business of the O
P

P is:
To investigate any conduct in state affairs or in the public adm

inistration in any sphere 
• 

of governm
ent that is alleged or suspected to be im

proper or to result in im
propriety or 

prejudice.

To m
ediate, negotiate, conciliate, report and recom

m
end rem

edial actions.
• 

G
eneral review

 of the state of financial affairs
2. 

2.1 The O
P

P operates w
ith four program

m
es, w

hich are as follow
s:

P
ROGRAMME

S
UB-PROGRAMME

Programme 1: Investigations and Reporting
Programme 1.1: National Investigations
Programme 1.2: Provincial Investigations
Programme 1.3: Special Investigations

Programme 2: Executive Management

Programme 2.1: Public Protector
Programme 2.2: Deputy Public Protector
Programme 2.3 Chief Executive Officer
Programme 2.4: Executive Support
Programme 2.5: Communications
Programme 2.6: Security and Risk Management

Programme 3: Outreach
Programme 3.1: National Outreach
Programme 3.2: Provincial Outreach

R
E

P
O

R
T

 B
Y

 T
H

E
 C

H
IE

F
 E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
 O

F
F

IC
E

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

 A
U

T
H

O
R

IT
Y

 A
N

D
 

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 T

H
E

 R
E

P
U

B
L

IC
 O

F
 S

O
U

T
H

 A
F

R
IC

A
 F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 31 M
A

R
C

H
 

2009
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Programme 4: Corporate Support Services

Programme 4.1: Human Resource Management 
                           and Development 
Programme 4.2: Finance and Supply Chain Management
Programme 4.3: Knowledge Management
Programme 4.4: Information Technology 
Programme 4.5: Administrative Support

2.2 The O
P

P w
as successful in achieving its constitutional m

andate and has m
ade significant 

progress in reaching the poorest of the poor through the outreach program
m

e. In support of this 
statem

ent, see the report on P
erform

ance against S
trategic O

bjectives section of the A
nnual 

R
eport.

2.3  The developm
ent of the C

ase M
anagem

ent S
ystem

 (C
M

S
) w

as com
pleted in January 2009.  

D
uring the post im

plem
entation and stabilisation phase, com

puter literacy and w
orkflow

 and 
connectivity challenges m

ostly related to bandw
idth w

ere encountered. M
easures w

ere put in 
place to resolve the challenges and further training w

ill be finalised in the 2009/10 financial year.  
It is pleasing to report that the developm

ent of the system
 is a success and the system

 pro-
cesses are being stream

lined.  The system
 w

ill be m
onitored throughout the year and a possible 

reengineering of the process w
ill be considered in the 2010/11 financial year.  

2.4 The O
PP has posted an operating deficit for the year of R

5 006 m
illion. W

hen the depreciation 
charge of R

3 485 m
illion is added back the operating position is an operating surplus of R

1 521 
m

illion. M
atters w

hich further negatively affected the O
P

P
’s operating position w

ere:

The im
plem

entation of the first phase of the O
S

D
 salary adjustm

ent for legally qualified 
• 

staff w
hich resulted in an increase of approxim

ately 19.5%
; and

D
P

S
A overall approved salary increase percentage of 10.5%

 as opposed to the O
P

P 
• 

budget of only 6.5%
. 

C
ap

acity co
n

strain
ts

3. 

3.1 O
P

P has experienced high staff turnover in all the sections. The position of the C
hief E

xecutive 
O

fficer becam
e vacant and an Acting C

hief Executive O
fficer w

as appointed since 18 D
ecem

ber 
2007 until 31 D

ecem
ber 2008.  This had a ripple effect of acting appointm

ents in the O
P

P.  In 
O

ctober 2008, the O
P

P suddenly lost its C
hief Financial O

fficer in a car accident and this nega-
tively im

pacted on the operations of O
P

P.  M
easures w

ere put in place to appoint an A
cting 

C
hief Financial O

fficer and a consulting firm
 w

as appointed to assist O
P
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3.2 The C
hief E

xecutive O
fficer post w

as filled in January 2009, and the C
hief Financial O

fficer w
ill 

com
m

ence duties on 1 June 2009.

U
tilisatio

n
 o

f D
o

n
o

r F
u

n
d

s
4. 

4.1 A
s disclosed in note 2 of the notes to the A

nnual Financial S
tatem

ents, O
P

P entered into a 
M

em
orandum

 of U
nderstanding w

ith the H
um

an R
ights C

om
m

issions (H
R

C
), and the C

om
m

i-
ssion on G

ender E
quality (C

G
E

) to im
plem

ent the C
ivil S

ociety A
dvocacy P

rogram
m

e (C
S

A
P

).  
This program

m
e w

as funded by the E
uropean U

nion (E
U

) and the signatory of the Financing 
A

greem
ent is the S

A
H

R
C

.  In term
s of this agreem

ent, the E
U

 funded the salaries of six O
P

P 
em

ployees for tw
o years, starting from

 1 January 2007 until 31 D
ecem

ber 2008.  This has 
allow

ed O
P

P to expand the O
utreach program

m
e and the E

U
- funded em

ployees have since 
been absorbed in the O

P
P effective 1 January 2009.

4.2  O
ne of the objectives of the civil society program

m
e w

as to contract service providers to 
educate com

m
unities about their rights.

4.3 The O
P

P and the tw
o m

entioned C
hapter N

ine institutions encountered challenges in the im
-

plem
entation of the E

U
 program

m
e. This resulted in potential litigation by both the E

U
 and the 

relevant service providers. The C
hapter N

ine institutions have responded to all related cor-
respondence and are aw

aiting further correspondence from
 the other parties.

P
u

b
lic P

articip
atio

n
 in

 th
e N

atio
n

al Treasu
ry P

u
b

lic P
rivate P

artn
ersh

ip
s (P

P
P

) P
ro

g
ram

m
e

5. 

5.1 D
uring the financial year under review

, O
P

P has, along w
ith other N

ational D
epartm

ents, 
continued participating in a transversal P

ublic P
rivate P

artnership (P
P

P
) w

ith P
hakisa W

orld. 
This P

P
P is for a term

 of five years and is m
anaged by N

ational Treasury and the D
epartm

ent 
of Transport. The follow

ing services are provided for in this P
P

P
:

Long Term
 Fleet R

ental ( 5 years);
• 

S
hort Term

 Fleet R
ental (day to day);

• 
S

hort M
edium

 Term
 Fleet R

ental (m
ore than a m

onth but less than a year);
• 

24/7 C
all C

entre;
• 

Internet B
ased S

ystem
 w

ith an E
lectronic Log B

ook;
• 

C
hauffer and P

oint to P
oint D

riven S
ervices;

• 
Fuel M

anagem
ent S

ystem
;

• 
Vehicle Tracking D

evice for Long Term
 and S

hort M
edium

 Term
 R

ental;
• 

C
lassroom

 B
ased D

river Training; and
• 

Fleet C
onsultancy S

ervices.
• 
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E
ven

ts after th
e rep

o
rtin

g
 d

ate
6. 

There w
ere no m

aterial events subsequent to the statem
ent of financial position date.

B
u

sin
ess A

d
d

ress
7. 

 
P

h
ysical A

d
d

ress 
 

 
 

 
P

o
stal A

d
d

ress
 

175 Lunnon S
treet 

 
 

 
 

P
rivate B

ag X
677

 
H

illcrest O
ffice P

ark 
 

 
 

 
P

R
E

TO
R

IA
 

H
ILLC

R
E

S
T 

 
 

 
 

 
0001

 
0083

S
tatem

en
t o

f R
esp

o
n

sib
ility

8. 
8.1  The O

P
P is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of the annual 

financial statem
ents. The annual financial statem

ents presented on pages 122 to 159, have 
been prepared in accordance w

ith the effective S
tandards of G

enerally R
ecognised A

ccounting 
P

ractices (G
R

A
P

) issued by the A
ccounting S

tandards B
oard replacing the equivalent G

A
A

P 
S

tatem
ents.

8.2 O
P

P considers that, in preparing the financial statem
ents, the m

ost appropriate accounting 
policies have been used, consistently applied and are supported by reasonable and prudent 
judgm

ents and estim
ates.

8.3 The going-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the annual financial statem
ents. 

There is no reason to believe that the O
P

P w
ill not be able to continue its operations in the 

foreseeable future, based on forecasts and available cash resources. These annual financial 
statem

ents support the viability of the O
P

P.

8.4 The O
P

P has alw
ays assum

ed full accountability for m
aintaining com

pliance w
ith all applicable 

legislation, its established policies, system
s, and processes and for reporting its results w

ith 
objectivity and the highest degree of integrity. It is critical for users of O

P
P

’s annual financial 
statem

ents to have confidence that the financial inform
ation provided is tim

ely, com
plete, 

relevant, and accurate. 

8.5 The O
PP has established and m

aintains a strong ethical clim
ate so that its affairs are conducted 

to the highest standards of personal and corporate conduct. O
P

P also has established an 
effective system

 of internal control that provides reasonable assurance as to the integrity and 
accuracy of these financial statem

ents. The internal audit function m
aintains critical oversight 

over the key areas of its business and financial processes and controls, and reports directly to 
the A

udit C
om

m
ittee.

8.6 The O
P

P
’s external auditors, the A

uditor-G
eneral S

outh A
frica, are responsible for reporting on 

the fair presentation of these financial statem
ents. 
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8.7 The O
P

P is com
m

itted to, and fully understands and em
braces, all its fiduciary and legislative 

responsibilities. O
PP is dedicated to ensuring that the high standards of financial accounting and 

reporting as w
ell as the underlying system

 of internal controls are m
aintained. O

P
P

’s culture 
dem

ands integrity and O
P

P has the highest confidence in its processes, its internal controls, 
and its people, w

ho are objective in their responsibilities and w
ho operate under the highest 

level of ethical standards.

A
p

p
ro

val
9. 

 
The annual financial statem

ents set out on pages 122 to 159 have been approved by the   
 

 
C

hief E
xecutive O

fficer

M
r. T

h
em

b
a M

th
eth

w
a

C
hief E

xecutive O
fficer

31 M
ay 2009  
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2009
2008

A
ctu

al
A

ctu
al

N
o

tes
R

’000
R

’000
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

G
rants and transfers

2
92,354

81,480

O
ther incom

e
3

71
3

Finance incom
e

4
1,833

2,337

T
O

TA
L

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
94,258

83,820

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

A
dm

inistrative expenses
5

17,530
14,055

S
taff costs

6
69,024

52,174

Loss on disposal of assets
7

0
37

O
ther operating expenses

8
8,658

12,778

D
epreciation and am

ortisation
9

3,485
2,824

Finance C
osts

10
567

457

T
O

TA
L

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

99,264
82,325

 

S
u

rp
lu

s/(D
efi

cit) fo
r th

e year
-5,006

1,495
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2009
2008

A
ctu

al
A

ctu
al

N
o

tes
R

’000
R

’000

A
S

S
E

T
S

N
o

n
-cu

rren
t assets 

17,077
13,788

P
roperty, plant and equipm

ent
11

10,392
10,748

Intangible assets other than goodw
ill

12
6,685

3,039

C
u

rren
t assets

7,967
22,452

Trade and other receivables
13

292
1,312

Inventory
14

239
231

C
ash and cash equivalents

15
7,436

20,909
 

 

To
tal assets

25,044
36,239

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 A

N
D

 L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S

N
et A

ssets
6,991

11,997

A
ccum

ulated S
urplus/(D

eficit)
6,991

11,997

N
o

n
-cu

rren
t liab

ilities
1,569

2,006

N
on-current finance lease liability

16
1,569

2,006

C
u

rren
t liab

ilities
16,484

22,236

Trade and other payables
17

5,582
9,908

P
rovisions

18
10,328

6,874

D
eferred incom

e
19

0
5,000

C
urrent finance lease liability

16
574

455
 

 

To
tal n

et assets an
d

 liab
ilities

25,044
36,239
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N
et

A
ssets

 
R

’000

B
alance 31 M

arch 2007
10,328

P
rior year adjustm

ents
114

B
alance 31 M

arch 2007 R
estated

10,442
R

estated S
urplus/(D

eficit) 2008
2,400

P
rior year adjustm

ents
-845

R
estated B

alance as at 31 M
arch 2008

11,997
R

estated balance as at 31 M
arch 2008

11,997
S

urplus/(D
eficit for the year 2008/09

-5,006

B
alance as at 31 M

arch 2009
6,991
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C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

 S
TA

T
E

M
E

N
T

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

 Y
E

A
R

     
E

N
D

IN
G

 31 M
A

R
C

H
 2009

2009
2008

A
ctu

al
A

ctu
al

R
’000

R
’000

R
estated

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 A

C
T

IV
IT

E
S

C
ash received from

 grants and other incom
e

93,446
80,440

C
ash paid to suppliers and em

ployees
-101,092

-75,749

C
ash flow

s from
 operating activities

20
-7,646

4,691

Interest paid
-567

-457

N
et cash

 fl
o

w
 fro

m
 o

p
eratin

g
 activities

-8,213
4,234

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 IN

V
E

S
T

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
E

S

P
urchase of property, plant and equipm

ent
-2,526

-3,422

P
urchase of intangible assets

-4,085
-3,039

Interest received
1,833

2,337

N
et cash

 fl
o

w
 fro

m
 in

vestin
g

 activities
-4,778

-4,124

C
A

S
H

 F
L

O
W

S
 F

R
O

M
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S

R
epaym

ent of borrow
ings

-481
-322

N
et cash flow

 from
 financing activities

-481
-322

N
et increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

-13,474
-211

C
ash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

20
20,909

21,120

C
ash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

7,436
20,909
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 B
asis o

f p
rep

aratio
n

1. 

 
The financial statem

ents have been prepared in accordance w
ith the S

outh A
frican S

tatem
ents of  

 
G

enerally Accepted Accounting Practices (G
AAP) including any interpretations of such Statem

ents  
 

issued by the Accounting Practices Board, w
ith the prescribed Standards of G

enerally R
ecognised  

 
A

ccounting P
ractices (G

R
A

P
) issued by the A

ccounting S
tandards B

oard replacing the equivalent  
 

G
A

A
P S

tatem
ent as follow

s:

S
TANDARD OF GRAP

R
EPLACED STANDARD OF GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statement
AC101: Presentation of financial statements

GRAP 2: Cash flow statements
AC118: Cash flow statements

GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors

AC103: Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates 
and errors

 
C

urrently the recognition and m
easurem

ent principles in the above G
R

A
P and G

A
A

P S
tatem

ents   
 

do not differ or result in m
aterial differences in item

s presented and disclosed in the financial state - 
 

m
ents. The im

plem
entation of G

R
A

P 1, 2 and 3 has resulted in the follow
ing changes in the  

 
 

presentation of the financial statem
ents:

Term
inology differences:

S
TANDARD OF GRAP

R
EPLACED S

TATEMENT OF GAAP

Statement of financial performance 
Income statement

Statement of financial position
Balance sheet

Statement of changes in net assets
Statement of changes in equity

Net assets
Equity

Surplus/deficit for the period
Profit/loss for the period

Accumulated surplus/deficit
Retained earnings

Contributions from owners
Share capital

Distributions to owners
Dividends

Reporting date
Balance sheet date

The cash flow
 statem

ent can only be prepared in accordance w
ith the direct m

ethod.
• 

S
pecific inform

ation has been presented separately on the statem
ent of financial position such as:

• 
R

eceivables from
 non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers

 »
Taxes and transfers payable

 »
Trade and other payables from

 non-exchange transactions
 » A

m
ount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances is required

• 
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P

aragraph 11 – 15 of G
R

A
P 1 has not been im

plem
ented due to the fact that the local and interna  

 
tional budget reporting standards is not effective for this financial year. A

lthough the inclusion of  
 

 
budget inform

ation w
ould enhance usefulness of the financial statem

ents, non-disclosure w
ill not   

 
affect the objective of the financial statem

ents.

1.2 
C

u
rren

cy

These financial statem
ents are presented in S

outh A
frican R

ands since that is the currency 
inw

hich the m
ajority of O

P
P

s’ transactions is denom
inated. G

rants received from
 the E

uropean 
U

nion through the C
ivil S

ociety A
dvocacy P

rogram
m

e w
ere received in S

outh A
frican R

ands.

1.3 
R

even
u

e reco
g

n
itio

n

R
evenue is m

easured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. R
evenue is 

recognised w
hen it is probable that future econom

ic benefits w
ill flow

 to the enterprise and these 
benefits can be m

easured reliably. 

G
ran

ts an
d

 tran
sfers

G
rants and transfers constitute transfer paym

ents from
 the D

epartm
ent of Justice and  

 
C

onstittional D
evelopm

ent and the E
uropean U

nion through the C
S

A
P P

rogram
m

e.

G
rants and transfers are recognised as revenue in the statem

ent of financial perform
ance:

W
hen it is probable that the econom

ic benefits or service potential associated w
ith the 

a. 
transaction w

ill flow
 to the entity

W
hen the am

ount of the revenue can be m
easured reliably

b. 
To the extent that there has been com

pliance w
ith any restrictions associated w

ith the 
c. 

grant.

U
ntil the conditions of a grant or transfer have been m

et a liability is recognised, under U
nspent

C
onditional G

rants and Transfers, equal to the value of the grant or conditions w
ith w

hich there 
m

ust still be com
pliance. Thereafter a transfer is m

ade to revenue w
hen the conditions have been 

m
et.

In
co

m
e fro

m
 in

vestm
en

ts

Incom
e from

 investm
ents constitutes interest accrued on favourable balances w

ith com
m

ercial 
banking institutions. Interest revenue is accrued on a tim

e basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, w

hich is the rate that exactly discounts 
estim

ated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net 
carrying am

ount.
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1.4 
R

eg
u

lar, fru
itless an

d
 w

astefu
l exp

en
d

itu
re

Irregular expenditure m
eans expenditure, other than authorised expenditure, incurred in contra

vention of, or not in accordance w
ith a requirem

ent of any applicable legislation, including the 
P

ublic Finance M
anagem

ent A
ct

Fruitless and w
asteful expenditure m

eans expenditure that w
as m

ade in vain and w
ould have been 

avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

A
ll irregular, fruitless, and w

asteful expenditure is charged against incom
e in the period in w

hich 
they are incurred.

1.5 
D

eb
ts w

ritten
 o

ff

O
P

P has adopted a policy, consistent w
ith Treasury R

egulations issued in term
s of the P

ublic 
Finance M

anagem
ent A

ct, w
ith regards to the w

riting off of debts. In term
s of this policy, debt is 

w
ritten off if:

The debtor is untraceable and it w
ould not be econom

ically viable to em
ploy tracing agents;

• 
The debt cannot be supported by adequate supporting docum

entation;
• 

R
ecovery of debt w

ould be uneconom
ical;

• 

R
ecovery w

ould cause undue hardship to the debtor or his/her dependents; and
• 

It is advantageous for the S
tate to effect settlem

ent of the claim
 or to w

aiver the claim
.

• 

A
ll debts w

ritten off require the express w
ritten authorisation of the A

ccounting O
fficer.

1.6 
E

m
p

lo
yee B

en
efi

ts

R
etirem

en
t b

en
efi

t co
sts

O
P

P offers its em
ployees the option of choosing both a defined contribution plan and a defined 

benefit plan. The defined benefit plan offered to em
ployees is the G

overnm
ent E

m
ployees P

ension 
Fund (G

E
P

F). In term
s of the rules of the G

E
P

F, the N
ational R

evenue Fund is responsible for any 
potential liability that m

ight arise as a result of this plan. This im
plies that once contributions are 

paid, O
P

P has no further paym
ent obligations. Therefore, the defined benefit obligation, the related 

current service cost, the past service cost (if applicable), and any actuarial gains or losses are not 
recognized in the annual financial statem

ents of O
P

P, but is disclosed in the financial statem
ents of 

the N
ational R

evenue Fund.
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P
aym

ents to both defined contribution and defined benefit plans are charged to the incom
e state-

m
ent in the year to w

hich they relate. 

S
h

o
rt-term

 em
p

lo
yee b

en
efi

ts

The cost of all short-term
 em

ployee benefits is recognised during the period in w
hich the em

ployee 
renders the related service. Accruals have been m

ade for benefits w
here the em

ployer has a present 
obligation to pay the benefit as a result of the em

ployees’ services rendered to balance sheet date. 
The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted am

ounts based on current salary rates.

G
ratu

ity

In term
s of the P

ublic P
rotector’s conditions of service, the P

ublic P
rotector is entitled to a taxable 

lum
p sum

 gratuity on vacation of his office. The gratuity calculation is based on his basic salary and 
his period in office. The provision raised in the annual financial statem

ents is the actual am
ount that 

is payable to the P
ublic P

rotector on vacating his office.

1.7 
E

xtrao
rd

in
ary item

s

All item
s of incom

e and expense arising in the ordinary course of business are taken into account in 
arriving at the surplus. W

here item
s of incom

e and expense are of such size, nature, or incidence 
that their disclosure is relevant to explain the perform

ance of O
P

P, they are separately disclosed 
and appropriate explanations are provided.

1.8 
Tran

sfer p
aym

en
ts

A
ssets and revenue recognised as a consequence of a transfer are m

easured at the fair value of 
the assets recognised as at the date of recognition. M

onetary assets are m
easured at their nom

inal 
value unless the tim

e value of m
oney is m

aterial, in w
hich case present value is used, calculated 

using a discount rate that reflects the risk inherent in holding the asset. N
on-m

onetary assets are 
m

easured at their fair value, w
hich is determ

ined by reference to observable m
arket values or by 

independent appraisal by a m
em

ber of the valuation profession. R
eceivables are recognised w

hen 
a binding transfer arrangem

ent is in place but cash or other assets have not been received.

1.9 
P

ro
p

erty, p
lan

t an
d

 eq
u

ip
m

en
t

In
itial reco

g
n

itio
n

P
roperty, plant and equipm

ent com
prise of com

puter equipm
ent, furniture and fittings, office equip-

m
ent and m

otor vehicles and are stated at historical costs less accum
ulated depreciation. W

here 
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significant parts of an item
 of property, plant and equipm

ent have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate item

s.

S
u

b
seq

u
en

t co
sts

The cost of replacing a m
ajor part of an item

 of property, plant and equipm
ent is recognised in the 

carrying am
ount of such an item

 at acquisition if it could be m
easured reliably and if it is probable 

that the future econom
ic benefits em

bodied in the item
 w

ill flow
. 

D
ep

reciatio
n

D
epreciation is charged against the assets on a straight line basis so as to fully depreciate the 

asset to its net realisable value at the end of its useful live, from
 the date available for use. A

ssets 
bought specifically for a project and intended for donation at the end of the project’s life are depreciated 
over the life of the contract as the residual value at that point w

ill be nil. The assets residual values,  
useful lives and m

ethods of deprecation are review
ed and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial 

year-end.

U
sefu

l lives

The follow
ing are the estim

ated useful lives of the different categories of assets and w
hich are de

preciated on the straight-line m
ethod over the follow

ing periods:

Computer equipment
4 – 8 years

Furniture & fittings
5 – 16 years

Office equipment
5 – 8 years

Motor Vehicle
5 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the sam
e basis 

as ow
ned assets or, w

here shorter, the term
 of the relevant lease. 

D
ereco

g
n

itio
n

The carrying am
ount of property, plant and equipm

ent is derecognised on disposal or w
hen no future 

econom
ic benefits are expected from

 its use or disposal.
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G
ain

s o
r lo

sses o
n

 d
isp

o
sal

G
ains or losses on disposal are included in the S

tatem
ent of Financial P

erform
ance and are deter-

m
ined by com

paring sales proceeds to the carrying am
ounts. 

1.10  
In

tan
g

ib
le assets o

th
er th

an
 g

o
o

d
w

ill

R
eco

g
n

itio
n

Intangible assets other than goodw
ill consist of com

puter softw
are. Intangible assets other than 

goodw
ill are stated at cost less accum

ulated depreciation and any accum
ulated im

pairm
ent losses.

S
u

b
seq

u
en

t co
sts

S
ubsequent cost is recognised in the carrying am

ount of such an item
 at acquisition if it could be 

m
easured reliably and if it is probable that the future econom

ic benefits em
bodied in the item

 w
ill 

flow
. 

A
m

o
rtisatio

n

E
ach item

 is am
ortised over its useful life once it is available for use. A

m
ortisation is charged so as 

to w
rite off the cost or valuation of assets over their estim

ated useful lives, using the straight-line 
m

ethod. The estim
ated useful lives, residual values, and depreciation m

ethod are review
ed at each 

year end, w
ith the effect of any changes in estim

ate accounted for on a prospective basis.

U
sefu

l lives
Intangible assets other than goodw

ill are am
ortised over the follow

ing periods, considered to be 
their estim

ated useful lives:

C
om

puter softw
are 2 – 7 years.

D
ereco

g
n

itio
n

 

The carrying am
ount of intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or w

hen no future econom
ic 

benefits are expected from
 its use or disposal.

G
ain

s o
r lo

sses o
n

 d
isp

o
sal

G
ains and losses on disposal are included in the S

tatem
ent of Financial P

erform
ance and are 

determ
ined by com

paring sales proceeds w
ith the carrying am

ounts.
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1.11  
In

ven
to

ry 

Inventory com
prises of consum

ables on hand at balance sheet date. Inventory is valued at the low
er 

of cost and net realisable value, and im
pairm

ent losses are recognized as expenditure im
m

ediately. 
Inventory costs are assigned using the First in First out (FIFO

) costing m
ethods.

1.12  
Im

p
airm

en
t o

f assets 

A
t each balance sheet date, O

P
P review

s the carrying am
ount of its tangible and intangible assets 

to determ
ine w

hether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an im
pairm

ent loss. If 
any such indication exists, the recoverable am

ount of the assets is estim
ated in order to determ

ine 
the extent of the im

pairm
ent loss (if any). W

here it is not possible to estim
ate the recoverable 

am
ount for an individual asset, the recoverable am

ount is determ
ined for the cash-generating unit 

to w
hich the asset belongs.

If the recoverable am
ount of an asset (cash generating unit) is estim

ated to be less than its carrying 
am

ount, the carrying am
ount of the asset (cash generating) is reduced to its recoverable am

ount. 
Im

pairm
ent losses are im

m
ediately recognised as an expense, unless the relevant asset is carried 

at a revalued am
ount under another standard, in w

hich case the im
pairm

ent loss is treated as a 
revaluation decrease under the standard.

W
here an im

pairm
ent loss subsequently reverses, the carrying am

ount of the asset (cash-generating 
unit) is increased to the revised estim

ate of its recoverable am
ount, but so that the increased carrying 

am
ount does not exceed the carrying am

ount that w
ould have been determ

ined had no im
pairm

ent 
loss been recognised for the asset (cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an im

pairm
ent 

loss is recognised as incom
e im

m
ediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued am

ount 
under another standard, in w

hich case the reversal of the im
pairm

ent loss is treated as a revaluation 
increase under that other standard.

1.13  
L

eases

Finance leases are treated in term
s of IA

S
 17 and refer to a contract that transfers the risks,  

rew
ards, rights, and obligations incidental to ow

nership to the lessee. It is recorded as a purchase
of equipm

ent by m
eans of long-term

 borrow
ings. A

ll other leases are classified as operating leases.

A
ssets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at their fair value at the date of acquisi-

tion. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease 
obligation. Finance costs, w

hich represent the difference betw
een the total leasing com

m
itm

ents 
and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the incom

e statem
ent over the term

 of the 
relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the rem

aining balance of the 
obligations for each accounting period.
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R
entals payable under operating leases are charged to incom

e on a straight-line basis over the 
term

 of the relevant lease. W
here allow

ance is m
ade in the lease agreem

ent for an annual escalation 
in rentals payable, the actual lease paym

ents are recognised in a straight line basis over the term
 

of the lease. 

1.14  
F

in
an

cial In
stru

m
en

ts

R
eco

g
n

itio
n

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet w
hen O

P
P becom

es a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrum

ent.

All “regular w
ay” purchases and sales of financial liabilities are recognised using trade date accounting.

M
easu

rem
en

t

Financial instrum
ents are initially m

easured at cost, w
hich includes transaction costs. S

ubsequent 
to initial recognition these instrum

ents are m
easured as set out below

.

F
in

an
cial assets

O
P

P
’s principle financial assets are accounts receivable and cash equivalents.

A
ccounts receivables

• 

A
ccounts receivables are stated at their nom

inal value as reduced by appropriate allow
ances for 

estim
ated irrecoverable am

ounts. S
hort-term

 receivables w
ith no interest rate are m

easured at the 
original invoice am

ount if the effect of discounting on individual transactions is im
m

aterial.

F
in

an
cial liab

ilities

O
P

P
’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.

A
ll financial liabilities are m

easured at am
ortised cost, com

prising original debt less principle pay-
m

ents and am
ortisations, except for financial liabilities held-for-trading and derivative liabilities, 

w
hich are subsequently m

easured at fair value.
A

ccounts payables
• 

A
ccounts and other payables are stated at their nom

inal value. S
hort-term

 payables w
ith no interest 

rate are m
easured at the original invoice am

ount if the effect of discounting on individual transactions 
is im

m
aterial. A

ll payables are settled w
ithin 30 days. W

here there is a delay in paym
ent it is usually 
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due to a dispute on the transaction. U
nder such circum

stances the tim
e delay is not regarded as being 

m
aterial. 

1.15  
P

ro
visio

n
s

P
rovisions are recognised w

hen there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a 
past event, it is probable that it w

ill be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estim
ate can 

be m
ade of the am

ount of the obligation.

The am
ount recognised as a provision is the best estim

ate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. W

here a provision is m
easured using the cash flow

s estim
ated to settle 

the present obligation, its carrying am
ount is the present value of those cash flow

s. 

W
hen som

e or all of the econom
ic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be reco-

vered from
 a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reim

bursem
ent w

ill be received and the am
ount of the receivable can be m

easured reliably. 

1.16  
C

ash
 an

d
 cash

 eq
u

ivalen
ts

C
ash and cash equivalents com

prise cash on hand and cash held w
ith banks, all of w

hich is 
available to O

P
P. 

1.17  
K

ey so
u

rces o
f estim

atio
n

 u
n

certain
ty

The follow
ing are the key assum

ptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estim
ation 

uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a m
aterial adjustm

ent 
to the carrying am

ounts of assets and liabilities w
ithin the next financial year:

R
eview

 of residual lives, carrying values and im
pairm

ent charges for property, plant 
• 

and equipm
ent and intangible assets – refer to A

ccounting P
olicy 1.9 P

roperty, P
lant 

and E
quipm

ent; A
ccounting P

olicy 1.10 Intangible assets other than goodw
ill and 

A
ccounting P

olicy 1.12 Im
pairm

ent of assets; and 
R

eview
 of the recoverability of outstanding debts and the w

riting off of debt – refer to 
• 

A
ccounting P

olicy 1.6 D
ebts w

ritten off. 

1.18  
C

o
m

p
aratives

In order to conform
 to changes, com

parative figures have been adjusted, w
here necessary, in 

presentation in the current year. The com
parative figures show

n in these financial statem
ents are 

Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   134
2009/08/31   02:42:21 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

135

lim
ited to the figures show

n in the previous year’s audited financial statem
ents and such other com

parative figures that O
P

P m
ay reasonably have available for reporting.

1.19  
G

o
in

g
 co

n
cern

The S
tatem

ents have been prepared on a going-concern basis. M
anagem

ent is not aw
are of any 

uncertainties, related to events or conditions w
hich cast significant doubt over the ability of O

P
P

’s 
office (O

P
P

) to continue as a going concern. There is no intention to liquidate the O
P

P or to cease 
operating. 

1.20  
E

ffect o
f n

ew
 G

R
A

P
 stan

d
ard

s

The follow
ing G

R
A

P standards have been approved but are not yet effective:
G

R
A

P 4 – 14, 16, 17, 19 and 100 – 102.

The effective date of the above standards is 1 A
pril 2009. The effect of adopting these G

R
A

P 
standards w

hen they becom
e effective is not expected to have a significant im

pact on the financial 
statem

ents as the principles are sim
ilar to those already applied under the equivalent of S

A G
A

A
P.

1.21  
P

rio
r p

erio
d

 erro
rs

The follow
ing prior period errors have been adjusted:

A voided transaction in the G
eneral ledger during 2007/08 resulted in an overstatem

ent of an am
ount 

of R
702 000 being carried forw

ard under Accounts payable. This am
ount has been adjusted betw

een 
A

ccounts payable and the M
edical A

id contributions. It affected the m
edical aid contributions during 

2007/08. The line item
s affected w

as:

D
ESCRIPTION

R
ANDS (R)

Accounts payable
(702 000)

Medical Aid
702 000

The rentals of a building leased in M
abopane as an office allow

s for an escalation of rentals. 
• 

The rentals payable w
ere not straight lined during 2007/08 and this adjustm

ent has now
 been 

m
ade. The am

ount involved for 2007/08 w
as R

9 911. The line item
s affected w

as:

D
ESCRIPTION

R
ANDS (R)

Other operating expenses
9 911

Trade and other payalbes
(9 911)
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The rentals in respect of the leased building at M
abopane are paid by the D

epartm
ent of 

• 
W

orks although the agreem
ent is w

ith the O
P

P. N
o account has been received in this respect 

and an accrual is m
ade for any possible liability. The line item

s affected are as follow
s:

D
ESCRIPTION

R
ANDS (R)

Other operating expenses
90 877

Accruals
(90 877)

P
hoto copiers are leased from

 K
onica M

inolta in term
s of a transversal contract m

anaged 
• 

by N
ational Treasury. D

uring 2007/08 additional photo copiers w
ere acquired. A

t that stage 
negotiations w

ere pending for an increase in contract charges. A finance lease obligation w
as 

allow
ed for as from

 date of acquisition, w
hich w

as S
eptem

ber 2007, of the photo copiers. The 
negotiations w

ere only finalised later and the agreem
ents w

ere signed on 1 M
arch 2008. The 

first six m
onths w

ere therefore changed from
 a finance lease obligation to operating leases. 

D
epreciation of R

123 156,82 and rentals of R
147 260,47 w

ere adjusted. The line item
s af-

fected is:

D
ESCRIPTION

R
ANDS (R)

Depreciation
(123 156)

Accumulated Depreciation  - Office Equipment
123 156

Other Operating expenses
147 260

Operating expenses
(40 673)

Non-current Fin Leases Liabilities
(106 587)

Non-current Fin Leases Liabilities
(13 517)

Current portion of finance lease liability
13 517

A vehicle w
as acquired from

 the G
overnm

ent G
arage for use by the P

ublic P
rotector as from

 
• 

A
pril 2006. It has been judged that the lease should be recorded as a Finance lease in stead 

of an O
perating lease. The vehicle has now

 been recorded in the assets register at an am
ount 

of R
616 274 w

ith the equivalent liability. The depreciation and finance costs, since that date, 
have also been allow

ed for.

The line item
s affected w

as:

D
ESCRIPTION

2006/07 (R)
2007/08(R)

Motor vehicle Public Protector
616 274

-

Non-current Fin Leases Liabilities
(616 274)
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Depreciation
123 255

123 255

Accumulated Depreciation Motor vehicle
(123 255)

(123 255)

Other Operating expenses
(238 786)

(238 786)

Operating expenses
176 104

154 572

Non-current Fin Leases Liabilities
62 662

84 214

Non-current Fin Leases Liabilities
84 214

28 929

Current portion of finance lease liability
(84 214)

(28 929)

A
ssets have been donated to the O

P
P by the D

epartm
ent of Justice. These assets have been 

• 
recorded at a nom

inal value of R
1 per asset. These assets have now

 been fair valued at an 
am

ount of R
193 464, backdated to 2006/07. D

epreciation since 2006/07 has been allow
ed 

for. The net book value is now
 R

135 425. The line item
s affected is as follow

s:

D
ESCRIPTION

2006/07 (R)
2007/08 (R)

Donated assets
(193 464)

Furniture and fittings
166 250

Office Equipment – Cost (Own)
9 929

Computer equipment
17 285

Depreciation
16 625

16 625

Depreciation
992

992

Depreciation
1 728

1 728

Accumulated depreciation
(19 346)

(19 346)
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2.
Grants and transfers

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

National Departments
91,475

80,222
Foreign Institutions

879
1,258

To
tal

92,354
81,480

2.1
N

atio
n

al D
ep

artm
en

ts
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Transfer from Department of Justice
86,475

78,722
Deferred Income recognised as income in current year

5,000
6,500

Income deferred in current year
0

-5,000
To

tal
91,475

80,222

2.2
F

o
reig

n
 In

stitu
tio

n
s

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

European Union (Civil Society Advocacy Programme)
879

1,258
To

tal
879

1,258

D
uring the 2006/07 financial year, O

P
P concluded a M

em
orandum

 of U
nderstanding w

ith the 
E

uropean U
nion w

hereby the salaries for six O
P

P em
ployees w

as funded by the E
uropean U

nion 
through the C

ivil S
ociety A

dvocacy P
rogram

m
e. This agreem

ent ended 31 D
ecem

ber 2008. A
lso 

refer to N
ote 6.

3.
O

th
er In

co
m

e
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

 Revenue
71

3
To

tal
71

3

4.
F

in
an

ce In
co

m
e

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Interest on cash and bank deposits
1,833

2,337
To

tal
1,833

2,337

5.
A

d
m

in
istrative E

xp
en

ses
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

General and administrative expenses
16,832

13,574
Auditor’s Remuneration

698
481

To
tal

17,530
14,055
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6.
S

taff co
sts

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Basic salaries
47,366

34,944
Performance awards

2,600
1,611

Service Bonus
2,520

2,613
Defined Pension contribution plan expense

4,049
2,766

Medical Aid contributions
1,870

1,636
Housing allowance

1,826
1,325

Pension allowance
1,812

1,922
Travel allowance

2,795
2,581

Other allowances
4,187

2,772

To
tal

69,025
52,170

Included in the above is the salary cost of R
878822.58 that relates to the salaries for six em

ployees funded 
by the E

uropean U
nion through the C

ivil S
ociety A

dvocacy P
rogram

m
e

7.
L

o
ss o

n
 d

isp
o

sal o
f assets

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Loss on disposal of assets
0

37

To
tal

0
37

D
uring the year ended 31 M

arch 2008, assets w
ith a carrying am

ount of R
 37 124 w

ere disposed of. There 
w

ere no disposals during 2008/09

8.
O

th
er o

p
eratin

g
 exp

en
ses

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Staff training and development
1,219

1,551
Consultants, contractors and special services

2,318
4,553

Maintenance, repairs and running costs
280

547
Operating leases

4,183
1,616

Other
658

4,510
To

tal
8,658

12,777
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O
p

eratin
g

 leases

The amount of operating leases are as follows:
Building & Other Fix Structures

1,808
538

Photocopiers
34

41

Motor Vehicles (Phavis W
orld)

2,341
887

 Other
0

151

To
tal

 
4,183

1,617

C
o

m
m

itm
en

ts in
 resp

ect o
f o

p
eratin

g
 leases are:

B
u

ild
in

g
s an

d
 o

th
er fi

xed
 stru

ctu
res

Payable within one year
550

441
Payable within two to five years

437
987

 
987

1,428

9.
D

ep
reciatio

n
 an

d
 am

o
rtisatio

n
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Office equipment
695

397
Motor vehicles

433
446

Computer equipment
1,303

1,362
Furniture and fittings

615
619

Intangible assets
439

0

Total
3,485

2,824

10.
F

in
an

ce C
o

sts
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Obligations under financet leases 
567

457

To
tal

567
457
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11
Property, plant and equipment

2009
C

o
m

p
u

ter 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

F
u

rn
itu

re
&

 F
ittin

g
s

O
ffi

ce 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

M
o

to
r V

eh
icle

To
tal

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

C
ost

Balance at 1 April 2008
7,571

4,500
2,806

3,062
17,939

Additions 
1,478

845
204

0
2,527

Additions Leased assets
0

0
103

60
163

Cost at 31 March 2009
9,050

5,345
3,112

3,122
20,629

D
epreciation and am

ortisation

Balance at 1 April 2008
3,885

1,509
1,200

597
7,191

Current year charge
1,303

615
695

433
3,046

Depreciation at 31 March 2009
-5,188

-2,124
-1,895

-1,030
-10,237

Book value at 31 March 2009
3,862

3,221
1,217

2,092
10,392

2008
C

o
m

p
u

ter 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

F
u

rn
itu

re&
 

F
ittin

g
s

O
ffi

ce 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t

M
o

to
r V

eh
icle

To
tal

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

C
ost

Balance at 1 April 2007
6,099

4,185
2,013

2,228
14,525

Additions
1,656

344
1,269

894
4,163

Disposals
183

28
475

60
746

Cost at 31 March 2008
7,571

4,500
2,806

3,062
17,942

D
ep

reciatio
n

 an
d

 am
o

rtisatio
n

Balance at 1 April 2007
2,934

890
1,050

174
5,048

Current year charge
1,362

648
397

446
2,853

Disposals
411

28
247

23
709
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Depreciation at 31 March 2008
-3,886

-1,508
-1,200

-597
-7,192

Book value at 31 March 2008
3,685

2,992
1,607

2,465
10,748

Fair value adjustm
ents. A

ssets donated are valued at fair value having regard to the age of the assets and 
that there are lim

ited dem
and for these types of assets. Values w

ere placed on the different types of assets 
and values w

ere allocated accordingly.

12
In

tan
g

ib
le assets o

th
er th

an
 g

o
o

d
w

ill
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

C
o

m
p

u
ter S

o
ftw

are

C
o

st

Balance at 1 April 2008
3,039

0

Additions
4,085

3,039

Balance at 31 March 2009
7,124

3,039

A
m

o
rtisatio

n

Balance at 1 April 2008
0

0

Current year charge
439

0

Balance at 31 March 2009
439

0
B

o
o

k valu
e at 31 M

arch
 2009

6,685
3,039

13
Trad

e an
d

 o
th

er receivab
les

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Trade receivables
139

1,262
Other receivables

153
50

To
tal

292
1,312
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A
t balance sheet date, no debts are considered im

paired, and a provision for doubtful debts has not been 
raised. O

P
P has also not w

ritten off any debts during the period under review
.

Liquidity Analysis
As at 31 March 2009, Trade receivables of R139 were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis for these trade 
receivables are as follows:

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Up to 3 months past due
139

315
3 to 6 months past due

0
323

Over 6 months past due
0

322

139
960

Trade receivables are disclosed at undiscounted values. A comparison of the undiscounted values against the discount-
ed values is provided in the table below:

U
n

d
isco

u
n

ted
D

isco
u

n
ted

R
’000

R
’000

Up to 3 months past due
139

132
3 to 6 months past due

0
0

Over 6 months past due
0

0

139
132

14
In

ven
to

ry
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Consumables
239

231

To
tal

239
231
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Inventory represents consum
ables on hand at year end. Inventory has been costed using the First In First 

O
ut (FIFO

) m
ethod. 

15
C

ash
 an

d
 cash

 eq
u

ivalen
ts

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Cash at bank
7,386

20,859
Cash on hand

50
50

To
tal

7,436
20,909

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair values. Cash at bank earns interest at floating 
rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement: 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

20,909
21,120

16
L

ease o
b

lig
atio

n
s

R
eco

n
ciliatio

n
 b

etw
een

 th
e to

tal o
f th

e m
in

im
u

m
 lease p

aym
en

ts an
d

 th
e p

resen
t valu

e: 

F
in

an
ce leases

U
p

 to
 1 year

1 to
 5 

years
M

o
re th

an
 

5 years
To

tal

R’000
R’000

R’000
R’000

Y
ear en

d
ed

 31/3/2008

Future minimum lease payments
777 

2,456 
-   

3,233 

Finance cost
322 

450 
-   

772 
P

resen
t valu

e
455 

2,006 
-   

2,461 

Y
ear en

d
ed

 31/3/2009

Future minimum lease payments
842 

1,818 
-   

2,662 

Finance cost
268 

248 
-   

516 
P

resen
t valu

e
574 

1,569 
-   

2,146 
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2009
2008

A
n

alysed
 fo

r fi
n

an
cial rep

o
rtin

g
 p

u
rp

o
ses:

R
’000

R
’000

Non-current finance lease liability 
1,569

2,006
Current finance lease liability (recoverable within 12 months)

574
455

N
et fi

n
an

ce lease liab
ility

2,143
2,461

2009
2008

N
et carryin

g
 am

o
u

n
t o

f leased
 assets

R
’000

R
’000

Office equipment
421

595
Motor vehicles

1,533
1,259

1,954
1,854

F
in

an
ce L

eases: 

O
P

P is leasing photocopiers under Finance Leases in term
s of a transversal contract m

anaged 
by N

ational Treasury.  The average lease term
s range betw

een three and five years.  For the year 
ended 31 M

arch 2009 the average effective borrow
ing rate w

as 12%
. Interest rates are fixed at the 

contract date. O
P

P
’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the 

leased assets.  

P
u

b
lic P

rivate P
artn

ersh
ip

O
P

P is leasing m
otor vehicles in term

s of a service level agreem
ent betw

een the D
epartm

ent of 
Transport and P

hakisaw
orld. The agreem

ent is m
anaged by N

ational Treasury and the D
epartm

ent 
of Transport. The average lease term

 is five years or 150 000 km
. The rate of interest varies betw

een 
10%

 and 12.5%
. The vehicles are returned after the lease period of five years.

17
Trad

e an
d

 o
th

er p
ayab

les
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Trade creditors
970

3,985
Accruals

4,612
5,923

Total
5,582

9,908
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Trade creditors are disclosed at undiscounted values. A
ll trade creditors are payable w

ithin three 
(3) m

onths of balance sheet date. 

18
P

ro
visio

n
s

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

S
alary an

d
 related

 exp
en

ses

Opening balance
3,270

2,317

Increase/(decrease) in provision for salary and related expenses
        

132
1,433

Transfer to Accruals as per change in accounting policy
0

-479

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
3,402

3,271

Allowance is made for the value of untaken leave due to staff. This amount will only be payable to staff at resignation or 
retirement from duty. The amount payable will be based on the respective salaries and untaken leave due to staff.

Allowance is made for performance bonuses payable to staff. The actual amount will be based on their individual per-
formances. The provision is based on a maximum of 2.5%

 of the total salary budget.

Levies provision
Opening balance

198
163

Increase/(decrease) in provisions for levies
-75

35

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
123

198

Allowance is made for levies payable to the Compensation Commissioner. The provision is based on 0.33%
 of salaries 

paid. A final calculation will be made when the amount is due.

Public Protector Gratuity
Opening balance

3,406
2,814

Increase in provision for Public Protector Gratuity
3,398

592

Closing balance
6,804

3,406
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The term of the Public Protector is coming to an end during September 2009. The final amount payable will be calcu-
lated at the end of his term based on the final salary.

Total provisions
Opening balance

6,874
5,293

Increase/(decrease) in total provisions
3,454

2,060

Transfer to Accruals as per change in accounting policy
0

-479

Closing balance
10,328

6,874

19
D

eferred
 In

co
m

e 
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Opening balance
5,000

6,500
Deferred Income recognised as income in current year

-5,000
-6,500

Income deferred in current year
0

5,000
C

lo
sin

g
 b

alan
ce

0
5,000

D
eferred Incom

e relates to the portion of the G
rants and transfers received w

hich has not been recog-
nised in the S

tatem
ent of Financial P

erform
ance, as the expenditure that it is intended to com

pensate 
has not yet been incurred.

20
R

eco
n

ciliatio
n

 o
f su

rp
lu

s fo
r th

e year to
 cash

 g
en

erated
 

fro
m

 o
p

eratio
n

s
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

Surplus for the year
-5,006

1,495
Adjusted for:

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
0

37
Depreciation

3,485
2,824

Income from investments
-1,833

-2,337
Finance Costs

567
457

Operating cash flows before working capital changes
-2,787

2,476
Net change in working capital

-4,859
2,217

-7,646
4,693
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21
C

h
an

g
es in

 w
o

rkin
g

 cap
ital

2009
2008

R’000
R’000

(Increase)/Decrease in debtors
1,020

-1,043
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors

-4,326
4,357

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories
-8

-231
Increase/(Decrease) in unspent conditional grants

-5,000
-1,500

increase/(decrease) in provisions
3,455

634

N
et ch

an
g

e in
 w

o
rkin

g
 cap

ital
-4,859

2,217

22.
R

elated
 p

arty tran
sactio

n
s

22.1
K

ey m
an

ag
em

en
t p

erso
n

n
el

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

Public Protector & Deputy Public Protector
2,435

1,662
Chief Directors

3,982
3,295

To
tal

6,417
4,957

Key management personnel includes the Public Protector, Deputy Public Protector, Chief Executive Officer, and the 
Chief Directors. 

2009

M
u

sh
w

an
a M

L
-P

u
b

lic P
ro

tecto
r

R

Salary
                1,502,617 

Medical Aid Allowance
                      10,152 

Entertainment Allowance
                         7,000 

Settlement Allowance
                67,200 

Non Pensionable Allowance
                  3,500 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
                1,590,469 

Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   148
2009/08/31   02:42:41 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

149

S
h

ai M
T- D

ep
u

ty P
u

b
lic P

ro
tecto

r

Salary(including Backdates)
               506,295 

Travelling Allowance
                    144,000 

Housing Allowance
                    144,000 

Non Pensionable Allowance
                      49,914 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
                    844,209 

R
u

sso
n

 R
D

- C
h

ief E
xecu

tive O
ffi

cer R
esig

n
ed

 M
ay 2008

Salary
                53,725 

Severance Package
               604,384 

Pensionable Allowance
                  4,258 

Medical Aid Allowance
                  8,516 

Travelling Allowance
                22,166 

Non Pensinable Allowance
                  6,650 

Leave Payout
                29,443 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
                    729,142 

M
th

eth
w

a T
P

- C
h

ief E
xecu

tive O
ffi

cer A
p

p
o

in
ted

 1 Jan
u

ary 2009

Salary
               146,562 

Pensionable Allowance
                21,984 

Medical Aid Allowance
                  7,966 

Travelling Allowance
                67,758 

Resettlement Allowance
                48,854 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
                    293,124 

F
o

u
rie C

H
 C

h
ief D

irecto
r

Salary
               420,845 

Pensionable Allowance
                59,827 

Medical Aid Allowance
                36,552 

Travelling Allowance
               136,281 

Non Pensionable Allowance
                  8,653 

13th Cheque
                33,237 

Merit Bonus
                28,392 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
                    723,787 
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N
d

o
u

 L
R

 C
h

ief D
irecto

r

Salary
               395,325 

Medical Aid Allowance
                21,600 

Travelling Allowance
                80,000 

Non Pensionable Allowance
                41,401 

Housing Allowance
                35,460 

13th Cheque
                31,794 

Merit Bonus
                10,647 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
               616,227 

S
ch

u
tte M

 C
h

ief D
irecto

r

Salary
               428,641 

Pensionable Allowance
                61,623 

Travelling Allowance
                48,000 

Non Pensionable Allowance
               171,505 

Merit Bonus
                17,745 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
               727,514 

T
h

o
ke S

M
 C

h
ief D

irecto
r

Salary
               399,546 

Acting Allowance
               183,068 

Pensionable Allowance
                57,229 

Medical Aid Allowance
                36,000 

Travelling Allowance
                48,000 

Non Pensionable Allowance
                96,150 

13th Cheque
                31,794 

Merit Bonus
                28,392 

Leave Payout
                11,707 

T
O

TA
L

 E
A

R
N

IN
G

S
               891,886 

22.2
O

th
er related

 p
arty tran

sactio
n

s

PP enjoys representation on the board of the Civil Society Advocacy Programme, which is funded by the European 
Union. In addition to funding received from the European Union through this programme, staff members from OPP also 
received training, which was funded by the European Union through this programme. It is not possible to quantify the 
benefits related to this training. The European Union assistance ended 31 December 2008.
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23.
23.1 F

in
an

cial in
stru

m
en

ts

In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

 an
d

 o
verview

This note represents information about the exposure to risks, the objectives, policies and processes 
for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are 
included throughout these financial statements.

23.2 R
isks

The OPP has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

C
redit risk

Liquidity risk 
M

arket risk

The Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for managing and monitoring the financial 
risks to which the OPP is exposed to.

23.2.1 C
red

it risk:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party 
by failing to discharge an obligation. OPP’s only exposure to credit risk related to the agreement with the 
European Union whereby the salaries for six OPP employees is funded by the European Union through 
the Civil Society Advocacy Programme. OPP enjoyed representation on the board of the Civil Society 
Advocacy Program

m
e, and was therefore able to continually m

anage this risk. This agreement ended 
on the 31 December 2008 and the account has been settled in full.

All debtors are requested to settle their accounts within 30 days, debts are also recovered in install-
ments at the request of a debtor.

The OPP does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any counterparty or group of parties hav-
ing similar characteristics.

23.2.2 L
iq

u
id

ity R
isk:

The OPP is exposed to liquidity risk as it is dependent on the transfers and grants received from the 
Department of Justice. Timely receipts of Transfers and Grant amounts are necessary for the OPP to 
be able to make payments as and when required in terms of its financial liabilities.

Due to the nature of its business, the OPP manages liquidity risks by maintaining adequate cash 
reserves.
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23.2.3 M
arket risk:

i) Foreign E
xchange R

isk:
OPP is exposed to limited foreign exchange risk as OPP does not have international operations, and 
the majority of its transactions are performed locally. OPP has therefore not implemented any specific 
risk management strategies related to the mitigation of this risk.

ii) Interest rate risk:
OPP is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk arising from Cash on hand at commercial banks, which 
earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. OPP is also exposed to fair value 
interest rate risk arising from fixed interest rates in the finance lease contracts entered into for the ac-
quisition of Motor Vehicles and Photocopiers. OPP’s ability to mitigate this risk is limited by the fact that 
these finance lease contracts are transversal contracts managed by National Treasury, and prohibitions 
contained in the Public Finance Management Act.

The OPP’s exposure to market risk (in the form of interest rates risk) arises as a result of the following:

a) Possible interest on late payment by the OPP.
b) Interest income linked to rates prescribed by National Treasury.
c) Interest on accounts held at banking institutions.
d) Discounting of financial instruments.

The OPP is mainly exposed to interest rate fluctuations.  The OPP’s financial assets and financial 
liabilities are managed in such a way that the fluctuations in variable rates do not have material impact 
on the surplus/ (deficit) as the OPP settles its outstanding obligation within 30 days and interest on out-
standing debts is charged monthly using the applicable interest rates. Refer to the sensitivity analysis 
below to illustrate the possible effect of changes in the variable interest rates on the financial assets 
and liabilities.

C
o

n
cen

tratio
n

 o
f m

arket risk 

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

V
ariab

le rate in
stru

m
en

ts

Financial assets
                -   

          -   
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Financial Liabilities ( accounts payables)
5,582 

     9,908 

To
tal

5,582 
9,908 

F
ixed

 rate in
stru

m
en

ts

Financial liabilities
                -   

          -   

Financial assets: Accounts receivable
292

1,312

To
tal

292
1312

23.2.4 F
air valu

es 

OPP’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and 
trade and other payables.

No financial asset was carried at an am
ount in excess of its fair value. The following m

ethods and 
assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial assets and financial liabilities.

Trade receivables 
The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity 
of this financial asset.

Trade payables

The carrying amount of trade payables at discounted values. 

23.2.5 A
n

alysis o
f fi

n
an

cial assets an
d

 liab
ilities

F
in

an
cial assets

2008/09
Cash and bank 

Loans and                  
receivables 

R’000
R’000

O
p

en
in

g
 b

alan
ce

   20,909 
           1,312 

Net gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
         -   

                -   

Office of the Public Protector
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   153
2009/08/31   02:42:48 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

154

Interest income 
    1,833 

                -   
Impairments

         -   
                -   

Net other movements
  (15,306)

          (1,020)

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
    7,436 

   292 

Maximum credit exposure
    7,436 

    292 

Sensitivity analysis:
Effect of interest rate changes

      (425)
               (24)

F
in

an
cial assets

2007/08
Cash and bank

Loans and               
receivables

R’000
R’000

O
p

en
in

g
 b

alan
ce

   21,120 
              269 

Net gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
         -   

                -   
Interest income 

    2,337 
                -   

Impairments
         -   

                -   
Net other movements

   (2,548)
           1,043 

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
   20,909 

           1,312 

Maximum credit exposure
   20,909 

           1,312 

F
in

an
cial liab

ilities

2008/09
Loans 

Payables

R’000
R’000

O
p

en
in

g
 b

alan
ce

    2,461 
           9,908 

Net gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
Interest expense

       335 
                -   

Net other movements
      (653)

          (4,326)

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
    2,143 

           5,582 
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Sensitivity analysis:
Effect of interest rate changes

        (69)
             (232)

2007/08
Loans 

Payables

R’000
R’000

O
p

en
in

g
 b

alan
ce

    1,428 
           5,550 

Net gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
Interest expense

       457 
                -   

Net other movements
       576 

           4,358 

C
lo

sin
g

 b
alan

ce
    2,461 

           9,908 

Sensitivity analysis:
Effect of interest rate changes

78
309

A
ssu

m
p

tio
n

s:
The sensitivity analysis has been based on a decrease in interest rates of 150 basis points w

hich is based 
on the approxim

ate change in prim
e rates for the period under review

.  The O
P

P is not m
aterially exposed 

to other price risks.

L
in

e item
N

o
te

L
o

an
s an

d
 

receivab
les

F
in

an
cial 

L
iab

ilities 
at am

o
r-

tised
 co

st

F
in

an
ce 

lease li-
ab

ilities

To
tal 

carryin
g

 
am

o
u

n
t

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

31-M
ar-09

Trade and other receivables
13

        292 
          -   

              -   
292 

Cash and cash equivalent
15

     7,436 
          -   

              -   
7,436 

Trade and other payables
17

     5,582 
          -   

              -   
5,582 

Finance lease liability ( Current)
16

          -   
          -   

574 
574 

Finance lease liability ( Non-current)
16

          -   
          -   

1,569 
1,569 

To
tal

   13,310 
        -   

2,143 
15453
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31-M
ar-08

Trade and other receivables
13

     1,312 
          -   

              -   
1,312 

Cash and cash equivalent
15

   20,909 
          -   

              -   
20,909 

Trade and other payables
17

     9,908 
          -   

              -   
9,908 

Finance lease liability ( Current)
16

          -   
455 

455 
Finance lease liability ( Non-current)

16
          -   

2,006 
2,006 

To
tal

   32,129 
          -   

2,461 
34,590 

F
air valu

e sen
sitivity an

alysis fo
r fi

xed
 rate in

stru
m

en
ts

The OPP does not account for any fixed rate for financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore a 
change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit and loss.

C
ash

 fl
o

w
 sen

sitivity an
alysis

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) surplus or deficit 
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant

                       50 basis point Increase

2009
-25,032

                                50 basis point increase

2008
7,474

The follow
ing changes in prim

e overdraft rates of B
anks (as determ

ined by S
A

R
B

) occurred betw
een                 

01 A
pril 2008 - 31 M

arch 2009

2008/09

D
ate o

f ch
an

g
e

In
terest rates

C
h

an
g

e in
 b

asis 
p

o
in

ts (F
ro

m
 p

revi-
o

u
s rates)

2007/12/07
14.50 

2008/04/11
15.00 

0.50
2008/06/13

15.50 
0.50

2008/12/12
15.00 

(0.50)
2009/02/06

14.00 
(1.00)

2009/03/25
13.00 

(1.00)
To

tal
(1.50)
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2007/08

D
ate o

f ch
an

g
e

In
terest rates

C
h

an
g

es in
 b

asis 
p

o
in

ts ( F
ro

m
 p

revi-
o

u
s rates)

2006/12/08
12.5

2007/06/08
13

0.50

2007/08/17
13.5

0.50

2007/10/12
14

0.50

2007/12/07
14.5

0.50

To
tal

2.00

24
Irreg

u
lar E

xp
en

d
itu

re

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

R
eco

n
ciliatio

n
 o

f irreg
u

lar exp
en

d
itu

re

O
pening balance

 
13

-306
A

d
d

: Irreg
u

lar exp
en

d
itu

re cu
rren

t year.
335

457
To

tal
 

348
151

L
ess:  A

m
o

u
n

ts co
n

d
o

n
ed

335
457

A
dm

inistrative expenses
 

0
0

S
taff costs

0
0

O
ther operating expenses

0
0

P
roperty, plant and equipm

ent
 

335
457

L
ess:  N

o
t co

n
d

o
n

ed
13

0
A

dm
inistrative expenses

 
0

0
S

taff costs
0

0
O

ther operating expenses
13

0
P

roperty, plant and equipm
ent

 
0

0
Irreg

u
lar exp

en
d

itu
re aw

aitin
g

 co
n

d
o

n
em

en
t

13
13

A
dm

inistrative expenses
 

0
0

S
taff costs

0
0

O
ther operating expenses

13
13

P
roperty, plant and equipm

ent
 

0
0
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Irreg
u

lar exp
en

d
itu

re
2009

2008
R

’000
R

’000
In

cid
en

t                                               

P
aym

ents m
ade for finance leases

335
457

D
iscip

lin
ary step

s

N
one as these are transversal contracts approved by N

ational 
Treasury and condoned by the A

ccountant G
eneral.

In
cid

en
t

P
rocurem

ent process not follow
ed

13
13

T
h

e p
erso

n
 in

vo
lved

 w
as d

ism
issed

.
 

348
470

25
G

ifts, d
o

n
atio

n
 an

d
 sp

o
n

so
rsh

ip
s received

2009
2008

R
’000

R
’000

D
uring 2007/08 2 w

ood carvings w
ere received.

N
o gifts w

ere received during the year.
0

0

 
0

0

26
G

ifts, d
o

n
atio

n
s an

d
 sp

o
n

so
rsh

ip
s p

aid
2009

2008

R
’000

R
’000

D
esk ornam

ents to staff
0

12

 
0

12
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27. C
o

n
tin

g
en

t L
iab

ility

 
 

27.1 E
u

ro
p

ean
 U

n
io

n 

  
The O

P
P and the tw

o other C
hapter N

ine institutions encountered challenges in the im
plem

en-
tation of the E

U
 program

m
e. This resulted in potential litigation by both the E

U
 and the relevant 

service providers. The C
hapter N

ine institutions have responded to all related correspondence 
and are aw

aiting further correspondence from
 the other parties. It is not anticipated that there 

should be any substantial liability in this respect.

  
27.2 O

ccu
p

atio
n

al S
alary D

isp
en

satio
n

  
In term

s of P
ublic S

ervice C
o-ordinating B

argaining C
ouncil R

esolution no 3 of 2008, legally 
qualified em

ployees in the public service, appointed in term
s of the P

ublic S
ervice A

ct, 1994, are 
entitled to an im

proved salary structure, back dated to 1 July 2007.

  
The legally qualified em

ployees in O
P

P are appointed in term
s of the P

ublic P
rotector A

ct, and 
not the P

ublic S
ervice A

ct. H
ow

ever, based on past practices, O
P

P m
ay have a contractual and 

constructive obligation to provide the im
proved salary structure to legally appointed staff of the 

O
P

P. The financial im
plications resulting from

 the im
plem

entation of the O
S

D
 cannot as yet, be 

quantified. D
iscussions w

ill be held w
ith N

ational Treasury, the D
epartm

ent of P
ublic S

ervice and 
A

dm
inistration and other relevant parties to confirm

 this obligation and, if necessary, to quantify 
the financial im

plications. N
o reliable estim

ate of this contingent liability can be m
ade.

  
27.3. O

ffi
ce R

en
tals. 

  
The D

epartm
ent of P

ublic W
orks has been paying the leases in respect of all office buildings 

occupied by the O
P

P. O
P

P has not reim
bursed the D

epartm
ent of P

ublic W
orks for this expendi-

ture and there is no clarity w
hether any other D

epartm
ent reim

bursed them
. A

ll agreem
ents, 

except the one for O
P

P at M
abopane, are w

ith the D
epartm

ent of W
orks. The D

epartm
ent of 

P
ublic W

orks has indicated that future invoices to the O
P

P w
ill allow

 for these am
ounts. There is 

no clarity w
hether it includes any paym

ents in respect of previous periods. There is therefore a 
possible contingent liability. Future negotiations w

ill establish any obligations in respect of previous 
periods. A

n estim
ate of the possible contingent liability is 2009 R

13 233 818 (2008 R
7 153 144) 

and previous periods am
ounts could not be estim

ated reliably. 

  
27.4 M

ail an
d

 G
u

ard
ian

  
Judgm

ent is aw
aited since 2007 in an application by the M

ail and G
uardian in connection w

ith 
the so-called “O

ilgate” report. The only cost im
plication could relate to legal costs, w

hich is 
dependent on the ruling of the Judge. 
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The follow
ing vision and m

ission w
ere adopted in the 2009 – 2012 strategic plan:

1. 

 
V

isio
n

: 
 

 “To be one of the leading P
ublic P

rotector (O
m

budsm
an) institutions in the w

orld”.

 
M

issio
n

:
 

“To strengthen constitutional dem
ocracy by conducting investigations into alleged or suspected   

 
im

proper conduct by organs of state, reporting and recom
m

ending rem
edial action, and enhancing  

 
aw

areness and accessibility to all.

 P
rogram

m
es

2. 
 

O
perations have been revised to three program

m
es nam

ely: Investigations and O
utreach, Executive  

 
S

upport and C
orporate S

ervices. This new
 realignm

ent w
ill support our strategic drive for the O

P
P  

 
to rem

ain lean and highly professional.  The respective Program
m

es contribute to the revised vision  
 

statem
ent for O

ffice of the P
ublic P

rotector as follow
s:

 
P

ro
g

ram
m

e 1:
 

“To conduct excellent investigations and be accessible to all”

 
P

ro
g

ram
m

e 2:
 

“To provide w
orld class strategic direction”

 
P

ro
g

ram
m

e 3:
 

“To provide excellent support services to enable the organisation to deliver on its m
andate”

The strategic objectives and elem
ents of the strategic objectives are as follow

s:
3. 

3.1 To be one of the leading P
ublic P

rotector (O
m

budsm
an) institutions in the w

orld.
 

3.1.1 
To enhance international participation.

 
3.1.2 

To establish an effective relationship w
ith organs of state.

 
3.1.3 

To establish the m
edia as a critical partner for enhancing the w

ork of the   
 

 
O

P
P.

 
3.1.4 

To establish strategic partnerships w
ith stakeholders.

 
3.1.5 

A
n effective integrated internal and external com

m
unications strategy

3.2  To ensure that all allegations of im
proper conduct by the state and its entities  are investigated, 

reported on and appropriate rem
edial action taken.

 
3.2.1 

To investigate alleged im
proper conduct.

 
3.2.2 

To produce reports on investigations.
 

3.2.3 
To take rem

edial action.

13. T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 A

H
E

A
D
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3.2.4 

To m
onitor the im

plem
entation of recom

m
endations.

3.3 To ensure accessibility of O
P

P services to all persons and com
m

unities.
  

3.3.1 
To raise aw

areness of the m
andate of O

P
P.

 
3.3.2 

To take the services of O
P

P to com
m

unities.

3.4 To ensure the efficient and effective m
anagem

ent/leadership of O
P

P of the 
  

P
ublic P

rotector.
 

3.4.1 
E

nsure autom
ation of business system

s and processes.
 

3.4.2 
E

nsure good governance.
 

3.4.3 
E

nsure that the organisational structure is aligned to the strategy.
 

3.4.4 
M

onitor and evaluate the overall institutional perform
ance.

 
3.4.5 

E
nsure the im

plem
entation of the S

ervice D
elivery C

harter.
 

3.4.6 
Institutionalise organisational m

em
ory, research and know

ledge products.

3.5 To ensure high perform
ance culture by attracting and retaining highly com

petent  
 

and skilled individuals.
  

3.5.1 
Integrated H

R
 strategy and policies im

plem
ented.

 
3.5.2 

Instill a conducive environm
ent to support a high perform

ance culture.
 

3.5.3 
E

nsure that organisational values are displayed in the behaviour of  
 

 
 

em
ployees.

 
3.5.4 

Further developm
ent, review

 and im
plem

entation of the E
m

ployee  
           

 
W

ellness P
rogram

m
e
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N
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 O

F
F

IC
E

O
ffice of the P

ublic P
rotector

P
rivate B

ag X
677

P
retoria

0083

175 Lunnon S
treet

H
illcrest O

ffice P
ark

H
illcrest

0083
Tel: (012) 366 7000
Fax: (012) 362 3473

P
R

O
V

IN
C

IA
L

 O
F

F
IC

E
S

F
ree S

tate       
 

P O
 B

ox 383 
 

 
 

 
B

loem
fontein 

 
 

 
9300 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ublic P
rotector H

ouse  
 

82 K
ellner S

treet 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

loem
fontein 

 
 

 
 

Tel: (051) 448 6172/6185 
 

Fax: (051) 448 6070 
 

 
G

au
ten

g
 

P O
 B

ox 32738  
 

 
B

raam
fontein 

 
 

 
     

2017 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

           
C

onstitutional H
ill 

 
 

 
W

om
en’s Jail 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2 K
otze S

treet 
 

 
 

 
 

C
/o K

otze &
 Joubert S

treets 
 

 
Johannesburg 

 
 

 
Tel: (011) 339 3737/2047
Fax: (011) 339 2858

14. O
P

P
 A

D
D

R
E

S
S

E
S

Public Protector_A
nnual R

eport_vr 502.indd   162
2009/08/31   02:43:00 PM



P
ub

lic P
ro

tecto
r S

o
uth A

frica A
nnual R

ep
o

rt  1 A
p

ril 2008 - 31 M
arch 2009

163

K
w

aZ
u

lu
-N

atal 
P O

 B
ox 4267 

 
 

 
 

D
urban  

 
 

 
4000 

 
 

 
 

 

22nd Floor 
 

S
uite 2114 

 
 

 
 

C
om

m
ercial C

ity B
uilding 

 
 

 
D

urban  
 

 
 

Tel: (031) 307 5300/5250/5251
Fax (031) 307 2424

L
im

p
o

p
o

P O
 B

ox 4533 
 

 
 

 
P

olokw
ane 

 
 

 
0700 
 

 
 

 
 

U
nit 2301, W

yndom
 P

ark 
 

 
23 R

abie S
treet  

 
 

P
olokw

ane
Tel: (015)295 6984 

 
 

Fax: 015)295 2870 
 

 

M
p

u
m

alan
g

a 
P O

 B
ox 3373 

 
 

 
 

N
elspruit 

 
 

 
 

1200 
 

 
P

innacle B
uilding 

 
 

 
S

uite 101 
 

 
 

 
1 P

arkin S
treet  

 
 

 
N

elspruit
Tel: (013) 752 8543 

 
 

Fax: (013) 752 7883 
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N
o

rth
ern

 C
ap

e      
 

P O
 B

ox 1505 
 

 
 

 
K

im
berley 

 
 

 
 

8300 
 

 
 

 
 

4 S
ydney S

treet  
 

 
P

retm
ax B

uilding 
 

 
 

2nd &
 3rd Floor  

 
 

 
K

im
berley  

 
 

 
 

 
8300 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Tel: (053) 831 7766 / 8325381/2
Fax: (053) 832 3404
 

 
N

o
rth

 W
est    

P O
 B

ox 512 
 

 
 

 
M

afikeng 
 

 
 

 
2745 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ublic P

rotector’s C
ham

bers 
 

 
C

nr M
artin &

 R
obinson S

treets 
 

M
afikeng 

 
 

 
 

Tel: (018) 381 1060/1/2  
Fax: (018) 381 2066

W
estern

 C
ap

e      
P O

 B
ox 712 

 
 

 
 

C
ape Tow

n 
 

 
 

 
8000 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4th Floor 
 

 
 

 
51 W

ale S
tr/B

ree S
tr 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ape Tow

n 
 

 
 

 
Tel: (021) 423 8644 

 
 

Fax: (021) 423 8708 
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E
astern

 C
ap

e    
P O

 B
ox 1400 

 
 

 
 

B
isho 

 
 

 
 

5605 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
U

nathi H
ouse

Independent Avenue, B
isho

B
ehind P

ick ‘n P
ay

Tel: (040) 635 1286/7/1145/1126 
Fax: (040) 6351291

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
  O

F
F

IC
E

S
  

G
eo

rg
e

P O
 B

ox 9481
G

eorge
6530

1st Floor S
outh W

ing 
 

 
 

B
ataleur P

ark 
 

 
 

 
C

nr C
athedral &

 C
radock S

treet  
G

eorge
6259
Tel: (044) 874 2887/904
Fax: (044) 874 5922

K
u

ru
m

an
P O

 B
ox 79 

 
 

 
 

M
othibistad  

 
 

 
8474 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 R
ose Avenue

S
hop 1

K
urum

an
8460
Tel: (053) 712 1762 / 2347
Fax: (053) 712 2417
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M
ab

o
p

an
e 

 
 

 
P O

 B
ox 3165

R
osslyn  

 
 

0200
C

entral H
ouse 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2nd Floor, R

oom
 334 

 
 

 
M

abopane 
 

 
Tel: (012)702 5458/4330
Fax: (012)702 8127
 R

u
sten

b
u

rg
P O

 B
ox 371 

 
 

 
 

Tlhabane 
 

 
 

 
0309 

 
 

 
 

 
S

uite N
o 12 

 
 

 
 

O
ld S

A
R

S
 B

uilding 
135 K

lopper S
treet 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ustenburg

Tel: (014)592 9023/6
Fax: (014)592 9031

S
iyab

u
sw

a
P O

 B
ox  2391 

 
 

 
 

S
IYA

B
U

S
W

A 
 

 
 

 
0472 

 
 

 
 

 

O
ld P

arliam
ent B

uilding  
 

Job S
kosana S

treet 
 

 
 

S
IYA

B
U

S
W

A
0472
Tel: (013)973 0033/6
Fax: (013)973 0029
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U
p

in
g

to
n

P
O

 B
ox 15

U
pington 

8800
U

m
bra B

uilding
55-59 M

ark S
treet

U
pington

8800
Tel: (054) 338 5740
Fax: (054) 331 0036

V
ryb

u
rg

P O
 B

ox 891
Vryburg  

 
 

 
8000 

 
 

 
 

 
 

O
ld M

utual B
uilding

55 M
arket S

treet
Vryburg
8600
Tel: (053)927 2221
Fax: (053)927 2509

T
O

L
L

 F
R

E
E

 N
O

: 0800 11 20 40
w

w
w

.p
u

b
licp

ro
tecto

r.o
rg
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N
O

T
E

S
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